Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors
Regular Monthly Meeting

Dial-A-Ride

A Service of Tillamook County Transportation District

Thursday, November 21, 2019 at 6:30PM

Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon



BOARD OF DIRECTORS — REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING
Tillamook County Transportation
REVISED AGENDA
Thursday, November 21, 2019
Robert J. Kenny Board Hearing Room 3600 Third St., Ste. A, Tillamook, Oregon

REGULAR MEETING

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Announcements & Changes to Agenda

Public & Guest Comments

Executive Session, Labor Negotiations ORS 192.660(2)(d)

g S ol s R e

GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT

7. Financial Report (Pgs. 1-20)
8.  Service Performance Report (Pgs. 21-25)
9.  Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance (Pgs. 26-102)
10.  Planning & Development
11.  Grant Funding
12.  Facility/Property Management
13.  NW Rides Brokerage
14.  Miscellaneous

CONSENT
15.  Motion to Approve the Minutes of October 24, 2019 Regular Board Meeting (Pgs. 103-108)
16.  Motion to Accept Financial and Operations Reports: October 2019

ACTION ITEMS
17 None

DISCUSSION ITEMS

18.  Strategic Plan — Next Steps

19.  Staff Comments/Concemns

20.  Board of Directors Comments/Concerns
21.  Adjournment

UPCOMING EVENTS
Holiday Party @ TCTD Maintenance Facility, Saturday, December 14™ from 4-7pm

Next regularly scheduled meeting to be held Thursday, December 19, 2019



Account Code

Tillamook County Transportation District

Normal Trial Balance

From 10/31/2019 Through 10/31/2019

1001
1006
1009
1011
1020
1030
1040

Report Total

Report Difference

Date: 11/5/1S 10:23:34 AM

Account Title Debit Balance Credit Balance
General Checking Account 124,922.79 .
Payroll Checking 9,255.32 -
NW RIDES ACCOUNT 29,757.79 -
Prop. Mgmt. Checking 37,372.44 «
LGIP - General Account 659,779.44 -
LGIP - Capital Reserve 676,898.13 «
Petty Cash 200.00
1,508,428.12 29,757.79
1,478,670.33 @/
11-b 1%

MONTHLY BOARD REPORT - CASH

Page: 1



[ :9%eq aouBLIBA 29 108png (ILA/M Moday (qOg Aoy
%FS TS (00°000°01) 00°000°TT 00°000°T1 0070 000
%SL'1E (E6'9LL'Y) 00°000°L LOETTT L9 1¥S $9°86¢
%9¢°6¢ (00'006°€1) 00°000°€T 00°001°6 00°005°1 00°006°L
2%00°0 (00°000°1) 00°000°1 0070 £E°¢8 00°0
%89°+¢ (82°696°6) 00°000°TT TL0E0TL 00°000°C 6SEE8T
2%00°0 {(00°000°01) 00°000°01 000 £eees 000
%001 10°0FF 00°000°1 10°0FF°1 £ees 0070
2%00°6Z1 90°06T 00°000°1 90°06Z°1 £eeg 06'8€T
2%9€°1¢C (00°89¢°28) 00°000°S01 00'ZEFTT 00°000°¢T 000
%9681 (00'91Z°15T) 00°000°01€ 00°¥8L°8¢S 00°000°SL 0070
200705 (00058°¢€) 00°00L°L9 00°058°c€ 000 00°¢Z6°91
%0008 (00°000°+2) 00°000°8Y 00000+ 000 000
2%68°LE (00008°'622) 00°000°0LE 00°00T°0F1 00°000°001 000
2000 (00FIv'16L) 00V IF16L 00°0 00°'$S8°L61 000
%000 (00°000°6%1) 00°000°6¥1 00°0 000 000
2000 (00°000°0Z€) 00°000°0Z€ 00°0 00°0 000
%CL'8F (009F1°LTT) 00°000°L8T 00'¥S8°6El 00°0 00°LIT'68
%€9°9¢ (6£7+98°€%) 00°000°¢8 19°CE1°1€ ££7€30°L 19°6E1°1€
26000 (00°000°052) 00°000°05T 000 000 0070
%6L'81 (Zresv'ze) 00°000°0F 88°91¢°L 00°0 09°TSHE
2000 (00°000°¢Z6) 00°000°€Z6 0070 00°0ST°1€T 000
%90°C¢ (£0°5L8°665) 00°000°€88 L6'FTI'EST £€°E8C EL 9¢169°CS
%6911 (61°2£€°091) 00°000°SLT [8°L99°F11 L97916TT 89°'668°CT
%00°0 (00°STE7965° 1) 00°6TS 965 1 000 0070 00°0

0HE¢ QouBLIR A 193png [e10,], [emoy 128png poLd g [BN10Y poLd

198png [B10],

610T/1€/01 YSNOIYL 610T/1/01 WOl

B3 A UL

oL

JUDUIAIRIG [BIDURUT ]

JuaLINy)

LS uoneliodsues |, A)uno) Joowe[|L,

L6V
0lev
006%
ocsy
(1189 4
0Lvy
00¥%¥
00cv
Shey
over
(a4
cTey
0Zey
olcy
LEIY
91y
CElY
0Ely
0Zly
oLty
0oLy
0cor
000¥
00s¢€

NV S#:60 L1 6L/S1/11 2

pun, [eIauar) woi IJsuel ]
awoouj dx5] [euonerad() esea]
JWOOU] ISBI]

QUWoauf mz_m_fm:;u/g\

2WOOU] 1SIU]

WOo2U[ - S198SVY JO J[BS
AWodU] w:Onu:m:uume
suoneradQ sng [eroadg
01€€ - SuBID

() T1€¢ - siuein

ALS - SIUBID)

Yaep uod lauked vV.LOMN
11€S V.I1d - siueld

spuern) [ende)

K1euonaosicy J11S
Amunuwosinuf JILS
B[OUWLO] ALLS

XB [, [[OIAB 21B])S JISURL], SSBIA]
ANUIADY JoquuL [, RIS

xe ] Aaadolg s 1sed

xe ] Auadord

ANUIAIY J9BIUOD)

sa1e.]

rende) Suryiom

522IN0SAY

=l



7 98eq aouBLIBA 29 193png LA/ Hoday qOg AIuoA
%c0°0¢€ T1'660°C 00°000°¢ 88006 00°0sC et
%9T°¢C 00'89¢°¢ 00°000°CI 00°TE9°9 00°000°1 000
%I1¥'9 SL0AL0L 00°000°SL cT'608 00°0€29 00081
%9998 00°000°1 00°00¢°L 000059 00°€29 00°0
%E0¥T €T'T6678I1 00°000°5T CLLOOG ££°€80°C 00°0
%8T 9% 64719509 00°08L°TLL [T881°C¢ LI'6L6'S CEHETE
%ET0E 61°9€0°18S°1 00¥S899Z°C [8°L18°689 00°SLOPSI 18976 1
%P9 LEL (+9°69¥°8) 00°005°TT ¥9°696°0€ 00°6L8°1 00°0
%C9°0¢€ LE63L'SY 00°000°99 £9°01Z°0¢ 000 99°LLIY
%89°€C 90 +81°9¢ 00°009°CL Fo'clr 6l 00°0 LEEVTY
%66'8€ 6090191 00¥S1°69T 16 Lv6¥01 000 LT LETET
%00°¢T 19957901 00°001°Cr1 9¢ EESCE LY IP8'LL T609LL
%T6'C1 £9°£C8°8¢ 00°000°0L CE9PILL £€EERC 06910°C
%50°6C €9°LEOVTY 00°00S°191°1 LETIVLEE LY16L°96 8'896°€L
%380°LT €8 LE8°€8 00°000°¢11 Srerl’le ££°E85°6 FEVPIL
%ESLE ¥L'010°0ST 00°000°StE 9T 68676 00°0€L™8T LELLERL
%811 (L8'TSH0L99) 00°TOL°L9S"L £1°679°968 TETIS'LEL 6£T68°TTT
%000 (00T¥8°S16) 00°TH8S16 000 000 00°0
%00°001 0070 00°000°¢ 00°000°€ 000 00°0
%0070 (00'98L°9t) 00°98L°9% 00°0 00°0 00°0
%0070 (00°5€8°11) 00°S€8°11 000 00°0 000
9% €€ J0UBLIB A 1293png [v10], [emoy 198png] poLa [BN1OY POLIa]
198png [B10] I3 A JUaLIn)) uauny) LNy

610Z/1€/01 YN0y L, 6107/1/01 Woi]

Justualel§ [eroueul

LS| uoneliodsuel] £1Juno)) JOowRILL

ovis
ocle
£01¢
[4V18Y
101¢
001¢

€cos
£¢0¢
ceos
1€0¢
0s0¢
0r0¢
0£0¢
0T0¢
010¢

gley
Lley
916¥
cl6¥

NV SE60:11 61/SI/11 =21ed

A wawdinby 221150
suondiosqng 2y song
guruue[

QDUBUINUIRIA 2)1SQI A
woddng aanensuupy
SOOIAIDG [BUOISSIJOL]

SADIAIRG PUR S[BLIIBIA
SIDIAIOG [QUUOSID ] [B1O],

‘suj uonjesuadwoyy s1oyI0 M
BQOA [[01KB]

JUAWAIAY []0IKR]
areoyl[eaf] [|0IKB
asuadxr [[o1deq
JouBUdIUIRIA :[JOlILR ]
SIDALI(] (10188

yoredsiy :[jorfe
UOITBISIUIWPY :[[014R]

SAOIAIDG [AUUOSId]

SA0INOSAY [B10],

pung AILS WOl 1agsteL],
V.LOMN Wolj 1ajsuel ],
pun,| [ LS Wolj IajsueL],

S "Y2IN Y2 A WOLJ I9JSURIL]



¢ 1a%e( QVUBLIEA 79 198png (. LA/M 1Hoday qOg Alyiuo
%000 00°9S+°01 00¥16°0T 00°8SH°01 00°00€ 00°6TTS
%TEET 8S TP IPI’L 00°LLE 88F°1 T ElLyE [+929°601 81765808
%SH T8 Co'gel 00°00$°C $E190°T ££°80¢ €L°6TI°1
%8165 $0'90€°S 00°000°€1 96°€69°L €€7E€80°1 16'1€€°1
20070 00°000°1 0070001 000 €Ees 000
%67 7T CEBPE 8l 00°00S°FT S9156°S LY T¥0"T 18981
20070 007005911 00005911 000 €EB0L'G 0070
%EL6E TTor0'6 00°000°S 1 8L°656'S 00°0ST°1 TE69¢El
%EEEE 00°009°¢ 00°00%°8 00°008°T 00°00L 00°00L
2%L00L 0t°80L 00°L9€°C 098591 cT'L6l 09°85¢
%PTIE 6TTE0°T 00008 1L°89% 00°szl 66'L9
%00°LT 187 €81°66T 00°000°05€ 619156 L9°991°6C 81°¢€8'9T
278'6E 8€°0SE°0T1 00°000°00¢ Th6r9°6L L9°999°9] LT66LTE
2%6€°0T #STEY6T 00°005°LE Op"LY9°L 00°STIE 1€ 181°¢
2%99°€T LT 1IF91 00°008°1Z £.°880°C 00°0SL°T [SHLIT
2000 00°09S %91 00709591 000 000 000
2%T6°1T 67 111716 00005759 1S°8SEFI £E°8CH¢C 67°98C
%EETE 00°S10°1 00°005°1 00°S8t 00°SZ1 00°SEl
%F9° €€ TL698°LT 00000 8TOELTL 10°00S°¢ 79°076F
%L1 08 LT TE6'] 00°000°01 €5°LY08 £€°€E8 00009
%89°81 £E1LE01 00°000°€1 L9 8THT £€°€80°1 cE'1T8
%000 000008 000008 000 00°000°L 00°0
%S0°6 10°687°CE 00005°¢E 66°F1T°E €E'80LT 1L40T'1
%E0'TE 05 #95°6¢ 00°00§°cH 0S°sE6 C1 00°€T9°¢ cT08TY
096E€ d0uUBLIE A 108png [e10] [enjoy 123png poLad [em0Y POl
.Em_usm_ [e101, .E@> JLEARIEg] .EE.EU Eu._.:._nu

610Z/1€/01 Y3noIy L 610¢/1/01 Wwoif

JUSWAIE)S [BIOURUI]

PLOSI[ uonwliodsuka I, A)yuUno) JOowr[i],

00cs

9res
oree
0gee
00€s
06c¢
€8ce
08z¢
0LTE
09ce
9 78S
ores
ozze
01¢8
[61<
06I1¢
c8I¢C
081¢
CLIS
0LIS
091¢
0sI¢
SvIS

NV S#:60:11 61/S1/11 1B

S1Ua1d[09Y] 01 SJUSWIAR] 1S

SjudLARJ [e102dg
SIDIAIDG PUE S[BLIIBIA [BI0],

quiepy £iroe,] suoneradg
Treday] 2 urey Atedorg
§90.] 19582 X9[ ]

sasuadxy Suneiadg Aredold
uo)) FuneradQ) rIoUD
JUIBIA J2IUDD) JOUSIA 79 HSUBL],
QSBIT 19)UA)) 0)ISIA 9 1ISUBL]
pun.j uoreaIday 10qe WS
o3e180

sosuadxy] jony

asuadxq a[oroA

Sururea], @ [2ABL],

asuadxs] suoydaja],

UBISO([-23 USYIM
JunayIeA

uoneNSIUIWPY [0Y0d[Y 29 Sni(]
sasuadxy [ruoneiadp
sasuadxy] pieog

sosuadxs] 2010

20UBINSU]

SaSUIDIT 79 S99,

WY 1amnduwo)y



¥ :08eq 20UBRLIBA 79 105png (JLA/M Hodoy qOg Ajyiuo
%E0°T 80°88€°6C 00°000°0€ T6'119 00°005°T 6'119
%000 00°000'9 000009 000 00008 000
%00°€ S8 6P8Y 00°000°¢ S1°0¢1 L991Y 7E'56
%000 00'000°SL 00°000°CL 000 000 00°0
%000 00°000°006 00°000°006 00°0 00°000°00L 000
%000 00°00¢°L 00°00S°L 000 000 000
%CS1°1 80°1VTTT 00°00$°ZT 76'85T 000 76'85T
%£9°C1 9%'ST0r8 00° 16566 $S€95°¢I FE'EEY'S 85209
%S ¥ 8L CEF 91 00°165°6¢C TTSSIEl 000 000
20T 8¥ 89°685°C 007000°S E01+T L991Y 85209
2%00°0 00°000°ST 00°000°S 1 00°0 00°0SZ°L 0070
%0070 00°000°0¢ 00°000°0¢ 000 L9991 000
2%L9°0 001999°+2TT 00'999°6£7°C 00°000°S 1 00°0 0070
2%00°0 0070257965 000257965 00°0 00°0 00°0
2600°0 00°SER°CHS 00°6£8°66S 000 000 000
%SH'L 00°000°6F1 00°000°191 00000°Z1 00°0 00°0
2000 00°000°01 00°000°01 00°0 000 000
%P €0 00°9L¥ 198 00°9LF 798 00°000°¢ 000 000
%000 0068 T1 00°5£8°11 0070 000 000
%0008 009S6°CI 00+16°5T 00'856°C1 00°00€ 00'6LF'9
%00°0¢ 00°00¢'C 00°000°S 00°008°T 000 00°0ST°1
o€ AUBLIBA 198png [v10], [emoy 193png poLad [en10Y poLId |
Ewﬁzm _Eor—l ED\/ .:._@.::U .Em.::U Eo.C:U

610T/1€/01 YSnoIyT, 610Z/1/01 WoL]

JUSWIIE)S [BIOUBUL]

JLSI( uoneliodsue. I, AJuno)) Joowe[ji,

0109
1209
0209
0109
0009
938
0s€EsS

8EES
AR
0zes
o1es

0816
CLIG6
0916
0€16
0€le
00le

10Ts

WV S+60-T1 61/51/11 -=1Bd

s19]]2yS/23eudilg doig sng
04 uoneIueLL] (19D [aNn,]
apeiddn 1ondwon
uonIppyAuswdoeday ue A
uonIppy Audwase[day sng
U0BAOUY -sasuadxy] "upupy
uoneAsouay 3 reday Surpjing

saseyain g [eude)

1AIAS 193(] [BI0,
IAIRS 199 ILLO
asuadx uso (N d
ISQIa1U 19sBa XA[,|
[edrourl ] :9se27 X214

201198 192(]
KepnQ [ende)
SIgJSUBL] [B10],

[egl pun,j Surpuy pajerdoiddeun)
arnipuadxf] aInin,[ 10J JAIISAY
PUN V. LOMN O I9jsueL],
JAIDSDY Y2 A 0] IQJSUBL],
pun,[ [BISUSN) 0} 1JSUBL]

[£6€ dIDT 01 19Jsuel],

SI9Jsuel],
sjuowAe ] [eroadg [B1o L

siuardioay] 01 spudwAE 1S

\$)



¢ :a8e( 20UBLIBA 79 198png (I LA/M Hoday Od Alpuoiy

%6ET1 PLUTEV'SLY™9 00°TOL°L9S"L 98°699°880°1 Tr1S8°¢L6 £E8FYLET

%081 LETEEBIST 00 160°9%S°1 £9°6SL°LT L00ST60L ¥L°89G°1

%80 16°S0EPEY'] 00°00S°9Fb°1 60'v61°TI LYILYEOL 91'996

%8LT 06'9T£°68¢ 00°005°00% OLELT'TI 00°0 0070 009
04€€C JOUBLIB A 123png [e10], [emoy 108png poLad [BNOY POLId]

198png [®10]

610T/1€/01 YOI, 610T/1/01 WO

JB9 A JULIy)

oL’y

JULWIRJE]S [BIOUBUL]

JuaLInY)

1Ls1(q uoneliodsuea ], £juno)) Yoowe|[LL,

NV SF60 1T 61/ST/11 9ed

sasuadxy w10,

AepinQ ende) B1o],
saseyang [ende) [v10],
s19load renden py10



[ :08k] 2DUBLEA %9 198png (L LA/M Hoday dOg Ao NV TT60: 11 61/S1/11 Ped
%69+ 8¥°090°¢C1 00°000°0T TE6£6'9 L9°999°1 97'9¢6] 01z8 osuadxy suoydafa,
%10'+T 19°668°1 00°005°C 6£009 ££'80T 00°0 081¢ sosuadxg [euonesodo
%P6 01 TL'68T'TI 00°008°¢1 8TO1E°1 00°0SI°L FTE01 0LIS sasuadxy 22130
250070 00°000°C 00°000°C 000 L9'991 000 091§ QOUBINSU]
%P 9TS (66'+7S°8) 00°000°T 66'¥CS 01 L9991 00°00§ 051§ SOSUAIIT 79 S99,
%9981 00°00Z°CT 00°000°S1 00°008°C 00°0ST° 00°00L SPIS WP 1emndwie)
%E0 Y LU66E°T 00°00S°T €8°001°1 ££°80¢ TTSTT oris Wy wowdinby 20150
%000 00'00€°1 00°008°1 0070 00°¢zl 00°0 0zIs suonduosqng 7 sangg
9%9S°L 0€'L8F 81 00°000°0T 0STIST L9999°] 00°0 001¢ SAIAIAG [BUOISSAJOI]
SAVIAIRS pUR S[BLIdIBIN
Y%L6'LE 66'T17'98T 00°000°12¥ 10°L8SET 00°008°€€ FLI9T1E SADIAIAG [BULOSIA [B10],
%000 (P00 0070 €750 0070 000 §S0¢ SU[ uoesuaduoy) SIIOA
%85°68 0€'80¢ 00°000°C 0L T6L° 0070 9¢°¢69 £60¢ BO2A [[014ed
%8S 71T (6L716T°T) 00°000°C 6L 16T 000 89'896 ze0s JuawRINRY [[OIAE]
% T0T (TrLogcn) 00°000°S1 TrL9g'0E 00°0 €I'IT6°L 150¢ areoyl[eaH (01
%0€'8 CTPLL'RY 00°000°SL SL'STT9 00°0§T°9 6L°L9T[ 0508 asuadxy [[014e
%8198 8€78CH° 00°000°C1 T9'1PE01 00°000°T T9CIET 1708 1201pu :0IAR
%T8'ST 18°9£9°CET 00'000°S1€ 61°€9¢€°18 00092 9EHEL'SI 0108 UOHENSIUIPY ([[0IAR]
SADIAIIS [QUUOSIA]
%67 SE (SE€CE8H9TT)  00°000°005°€ SO¥OT'CET'T L9'999° 162 90 [8+°18C S20INOSY [BI0],
%000 (00°000°0€€) 00°000°0S€ 000 L9°991°6T 000 00¥¥ QUIOIUT SNORUE[[20SIIA
%17 6€ (SECE]PTIGT)  00°000°0ST°E COPIICET’T 00°00$°29¢C 90'18%'18C  9Z0F anusAY YMN
SA0INOSIY
9%E¢ QoueLIE A 128png [e10], [enoy 193png poLng [NV POLIR]
Huwm:m._ [210], B3 A U2 jua.ny) Jualnyy

610Z/1€/01 USNOIYL 610T/1/01 WO
JUSLUAIRLG [BIQUBUL,]

PLYsI] vonejrodsues ], AJuno)) JOOWeR[L],



7 938eg 20ueLIBA 29 198png (I LA/M Hoday qOg ALuop
%E8°LE £9°EE8°CLIT 00°000°005°¢ LEIIIFTEL FEE80°06T CE90T991
%00°0 00°000°0F 00°000°0% 00°0 EEEEE'E 00°0
%00°0 00°000°0Y 00°000°0F 00°0 EEECEE 000
%0070 00°000°0% 00°000°0% 00°0 EETEEEE 000
%b16E 9 0T 68’1 00°000°6£0°€ 9E6LE 63T 10°08T°€5T 1TSPOTEl
%I18°FE 89°98¢ 00°006 ceele 00°SL 9618
%EEEE 00°00Z°€ 00°008°F 00°009°1 00°00% 00°00%
%P11€ PI'9L6°0FT 00°000°0S€ 98°€70°601 L9991°6T 01°LLT'OE
Wlv 1+ 009TETT1 00°000°061 00 #89°8L £EEERCI 0078881
%LS O ESPLIOTY T 00°000°00¥°C LY'STR'ELG 00°000°00Z 96'6£1°T8
%6T'T 0T¢88 Y 00°000°S 08'vII L9OTF €6'6
%er 11 09'0L6°L 00°000°6 0¥'620°1 00°0sL °SL8
04€€ QOUBLIE A 198png [B10]. [enjoy 1238png poLRd [enOY poLRJ
193png [e10], Ied & juauny) jua1Iny) L)

610Z/1€/01 Y3noIy L, 6107/1/01 Woig

1UDWRIEIS [BIDUBLIL]

PLSK uoneiodsue. I, AUno ) JOowe[i,

¢Z09

0oes
18Z¢
L9ZS
9928
£9ze
09zs
0Tcs

.GD

WV ZT:60:11 61/51/11 -21ed

sasuadxy w10,
AepinQ [ende) e1o],
saseyaing [ende) [g10],
JuauIsaAu] UEN_DUM_
saseyoing endey
Kepno enden
SROIAISS PUR S[RLIDIRIA [BI0],
sasuadxy] Suneradp Auadord
U RO
2SINQUIISY 5L J9UNJOA
JUIWASINQLULSY 2FBI[I[A IoqUIDJA]
uonenodsuel ] paseyan
a3e1s0
Bururel] 2 [SABI],



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 10/1/2019 Through 10/31/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

14105 10/31/2019 (50.00)  JUDY RIGGS 12202018 BOARD MEETING

14800 10/8/2019 368.35 ADP, LLC PAYROLL SERVICES

14801 10/8/2019 764.04 ATU LOCAL #757 UNION DUES

14802 10/8/2019 388.90 BOB CHRISTENSEN'S PLUMBING TRANSIT CENTER WATER LEAK

14803 10/8/2019 29.50 Bullard Law, P.C. LEGAL

14804 10/8/2019 900.00 Care Inc. STF AND STIF

14804 10/8/2019 1,250.00 Care Inc. STF AND STIF

14805 10/8/2019 996.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE JANITORIAL AND BUS CLEANING

14806 10/8/2019 700.00 City Of Tillamook TRANSIT CENTER LEASE

14807 10/8/2019 97.44 CLAYTON NORRBOM MILEAGE/OPERATIONS

14808 10/8/2019 6,007.75 Columbia Pacific Economic NWOTA ADMINISTRATION JULY-S
2019

14809 10/8/2019 103.51 COMCAST COMCAST

14810 10/8/2019 127.43 CENTURYLINK TELEPHONE

14811 10/8/2019 697.50 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT

14812 10/8/2019 5,026.78 Gillespie Graphics BUS 301 GRAPHICS

14813 10/8/2019 2,250.00 INNOVA LEGAL ADVISCRS INVESTIGATION, TRANSIT VISITC
CENTER, MISC

14814 10/8/2019 275.00 KDEP-FM/KTIL-FM/KTIL-AM ADVERTISING

14815 10/8/2019 95.00 LEONARD STITT CDL PHYSICAL

14816 10/8/2019 1,221.92 Marie Mills Center, Inc JANITORIAL TRANSIT CENTER

14816 10/8/2019 4,329.00 Marie Mills Center, Inc STF PAYMENT

14817 10/8/2019 115.00 North Coast Lawn LANDSCAPING

14818 10/8/2019 1,000.00 NATHAN LEVIN October Lease

14819 10/8/2019 130.73 Office Depot Credit Plan FOLDERS/OFFICE SUPPLIES

14819 10/8/2019 136.64 Office Depot Credit Plan PRINTER TONER

14820 10/8/2019 1,129.46 PETROCARD INC. fuel

14821 10/8/2019 24.92 Rosenberg Builders Supply SHOP SUPPLIES

14822 10/8/2019 4,125.00 SDAO MEMBERSHIP

14823 10/8/2019 19,317.14 Sheldon Oil Distributors FUEL

14824 10/8/2019 606.17 TILLAMOOK ELECTRONIC SUPPLY BOARD ROOM LOW VOLTAGE PRC

14825 10/8/2019 48.00 TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHOPPER, LLC BOARD MEETING NOTICE

14826 10/8/2019 274.56 VERIZON TABLET DATA AUG 27-SEP 26

14827 10/8/2019 300.00 VFW-KILCHIS-TILLAMOOK BAY POST VETERANS DAY - MARKETING

14828 10/9/2019 3,595.78 CARDMEMBER SERVICE CREDIT CARD CHARGES

14829 10/15/2019 111.30 CAR CARE SPECIALISTS, INC. DEF

14830 10/15/2019 465.83 Advance Auto Parts vehicle maintenance

14831 10/15/2019 622.85 E & E Auto Body, Inc. DOOR REPAIR

14832 10/15/2019 4,035.96 LES SCHWAB WAREHQUSE CENTER TIRES

14833 10/15/2019 43.78 McCOY FREIGHTLINER vehicle maintenance

14833 10/15/2019 37.68 McCOY FREIGHTLINER INVENTORY

14833 10/15/2019 3,117.12 McCOY FREIGHTLINER BUS 301 MAINTENANCE

14834 10/15/2019 31.59 DAVISON AUTO PARTS, INC. vehicle maintenance

14835 10/15/2019 698.73 PETERSON TRUCKS INC inventory

14836 10/15/2019 850.45 TILLAMOOK DIESEL REPAIR vehicle maintenance

14836 10/15/2019 16.10 TILLAMOOK DIESEL REPAIR ° vehicle maintenance #303

14836 10/15/2019 8.10 TILLAMOOK DIESEL REPAIR vehicle maintenance #303

14837 10/15/2019 696.26 Tillamook Motor Co. bus 200 maintenance

14838 10/15/2019 145.25 WEST COAST EXHAUST vehicle maintenance

14838 10/15/2019 10.08 WEST COAST EXHAUST vehicle maintenance

14838 10/15/2019 360.72 WEST COAST EXHAUST vehicle maintenance

14838 10/15/2019 165.60 WEST COAST EXHAUST vehicle maintenance

14838 10/15/2019 72.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST vehicle maintenance

14838 10/15/2019 97.20 WEST COAST EXHAUST vehicle maintenance

14838 10/15/2019 105.49 WEST COAST EXHAUST vehicle maintenance ”

14838 10/15/2019 36.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST vehicle maintenance q

14838 10/15/2019 36.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST vehicle maintenance

Date: 11/14/19 12:43:26 PM

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 10/1/2019 Through 10/31/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

14838 10/15/2019 108.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST vehicle maintenance

14839 10/15/2019 45.02 Western Bus Sales vehicle maintenance

14840 10/17/2019 368.35 ADP, LLC PAYROLL SERVICES

14841 10/17/2019 245.76 ALSCO - Portland Linen MATT SERVICE

14842 10/17/2019 132.82 BRENT OLSON NWR VEHICLE INSPECTIONS

14842 10/17/2019 83.52 BRENT OLSON MILEAGE/VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

14842 10/17/2019 102.66 BRENT OLSON MILEAGE/VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

14843 10/17/2019 1,001.40 CRISTINA ELLIS RELEASE OF CLAIM

14844 10/17/2019 147.64 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS WATER

14845 10/17/2019 52.54 Dish DISH

14846 10/17/2019 892.54 DOUGLAS PILANT MILEAGE/MEETINGS(7 MONTHS
WORTH)

14847 10/17/2019 1,044.54 Fred Meyer Customer Charges CARD CHARGES

14848 10/17/2019 2,300.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT

14848 10/17/2019 358.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC computer licenses

14849 10/17/2019 548.87 GOVERNMENT ETHICS COMM UNIT 24 GOVERNMENT ETHICS COMMISSII

14850 10/17/2019 29.75 KEMPS NORTH COAST TOOLS OIL FILTER WRENCH,/TOOLS

14851 10/17/2019 125.00 MAC TOOLS DISTRIBUTING RATCHET/TOOLS

14852 10/17/2019 225.22 Pacific Office Automation copier lease

14853 10/17/2019 277.43 PINPOINT STITCHES AND INK LLC uniforms

14854 10/17/2019 188.94 TABATHA WELCH MILEAGE/TRAINING

14855 10/17/2019 144.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS 27/LIGHTS

14856 10/28/2019 4,183.50 ADVANCED DIESEL SERVICE BUS 34 ENGINE REPAIR

14857 10/28/2019 842.00 APW DISTRIBUTING FURNACE MAINTENANCE

14858 10/28/2019 81.22 ARAMARK UNIFORMS

14859 10/28/2019 135.00 BIO-MED TESTING SERVICE, INC., DRUG SCREENING

14860 10/28/2019 99.18 BRENT OLSON MILEAGE/VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

14861 10/28/2019 1,296.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE JANITORIAL & BUS CLEANING

14862 10/28/2019 700.00 City Of Tillamook TRANSIT CENTER LEASE

14863 10/28/2019 127.60 CLAYTON NORRBOM SDAO TRAINING MILEAGE & ANNL
DRIVER TRAINER MILEAGE

14864 10/28/2019 850.00 CoastCom, Inc. TELEPHONE NWR & TCTD

14865 10/28/2019 290.24 E & E Auto Body, Inc. VAN 107 LABOR

14866 10/28/2019 50.00 Gary A. Hanenkrat BOARD WORKSHOP

14866 10/28/2019 50.00 Gary A. Hanenkrat BOARD MEETING

14867 10/28/2019 2,700.00 INNOVA LEGAL ADVISORS STAFF PLAN/TRANSIT
CENTER/CLOVERDALE

14868 10/28/2019 50.00 JACKIE EDWARDS BOARD WORKSHOP

14868 10/28/2019 50.00 JACKIE EDWARDS BOARD MEETING

14869 10/28/2019 50.00 JIM HUFFMAN BOARD WORKSHOP

14869 10/28/2019 50.00 JIM HUFFMAN BOARD MEETING

14870 10/28/2019 50.00 JUDY RIGGS BOARD WORKSHOP

14870 10/28/2019 50.00 JUDY RIGGS BOARD MEETING

14871 10/28/2019 50.00 Linda Adler BOARD WORKSHOP

14871 10/28/2019 50.00 Linda Adler BOARD MEETING

14872 10/28/2019 50.00 MARTY HOLM BOARD WORKSHOP

14873 10/28/2019 50.00 MELISSA CARLSON-SWANSON BOARD WORKSHOP

14873 10/28/2019 50.00 MELISSA CARLSON-SWANSON BOARD MEETING

14874 10/28/2019 30.00 DAVISON AUTO PARTS, INC. BALANCE DUE ON INVOICE

14875 10/28/2019 50.33 Office Depot Credit Plan PAPER AND FOLDERS

14876 10/28/2019 41.25 Oregon State Police BACKGROUND CHECKS

14877 10/28/2019 142.29 PACIFIC CITY SUN ADVERTSING

14878 10/28/2019 1,104.62 PETROCARD INC. FUEL

14879 10/28/2019 42.83 Tillamook PUD LARGE BUS BARD

14879 10/28/2019 30.90 Tillamook PUD SMALL BUS BARN

14880 10/28/2019 210.35 WEST COAST EXHAUST VAN 109 SPARK PLUG

14880 10/28/2019 144.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST VAN 108 SERVICE AND TUNE UP

Date: 11/14/19 12:43:26 PM

Page: 2



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 10/1/2019 Through 10/31/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description
14880 10/28/2019 438.44 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS 32 AIR COMPRESSOR
14881 10/29/2019 146.83 DSU PETERBILT & GMC INC SHOP INVENTORY

Report Total 90,904.19

Date: 11/14/19 12:43:26 PM Page: 3



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1006 - Payroll Checking
From 10/1/2019 Through 10/31/2019

Document Document

Number Date Payee

5535 10/8/2019  SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS.
SERVICE

5536 10/8/2019  PACIFIC SOURCE

5537 10/15/2019  HRA VEBA TRUST

5538 10/29/2019  ATU LOCAL #757

Date: 11/14/19 12:43:35 PM

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT
From 10/1/2019 Through 10/31/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description
1833 10/31/2019 (16.00) FAITH WINNGER CLIENT MILEAGE

1838 10/31/2019 (15.00)  JAMIE GLUTH CLIENT MILEAGE

1842 10/31/2019 (41.50)  JENNIFER STRIMPLE CLIENT MILEAGE

1858 10/31/2019 (43.50) MELISSA KIRSCH CLIENT MILEAGE

2171 10/8/2019 253.46 BRENT OLSON NWR VEHICLE INSPECTIONS
2171 10/8/2019 69.60 BRENT OLSON NWR VEHICLE INSPECTIONS
2171 10/8/2019 71.92 BRENT OLSON NWR VEHICLE INSPECTIONS
2172 10/8/2019 130.00 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER bus passes

2172 10/8/2019 130.00 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER bus passes

2172 10/8/2019 60.00 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER bus passes

2173 10/8/2019 1,398.00 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC NWR LEGAL

2174 10/9/2019 1,074.39 CARDMEMBER SERVICE CREDIT CARD CHARGES
2175 10/11/2019 1,948.88 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR

2175 10/11/2019 1,148.24 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR

2175 10/11/2019 1,820.24 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR

2175 10/11/2019 1,998.56 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR

2175 10/11/2019 1,788.80 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR

2176 10/11/2019 3,878.60 ELLIOTT'S MEDICAL TRANSPORT NWR

2177 10/11/2019 5,985.80 COLUMBIA MEDICAL NWR

2178 10/11/2019 11,729.90 K & M MEDIVAN NWR

2178 10/11/2019 11,389.10 K & M MEDIVAN NWR

2179 10/11/2019 8,365.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE NWR

2179 10/11/2019 7,001.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE NWR

2179 10/11/2019 6,776.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE NWR

2179 10/11/2019 205.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE TELEPHONE

2180 10/11/2019 7,468.50 METRO WEST NWR

2181 10/11/2019 10,152.27 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE NWR

2182 10/11/2019 1,285.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT NWR

2182 10/11/2019 591.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT NWR

2182 10/11/2019 584.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT NWR

2182 10/11/2019 458.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT NWR

2183 10/11/2019 17,759.25 WAPATO SHORES NWR

2183 10/11/2019 19,245.50 WAPATO SHORES NWR

2183 10/11/2019 12,480.00 WAPATO SHORES NWR

2184 10/11/2019 4,336.80 WILLAMETTE VALLEY TRANSPORT NWR

2184 10/11/2019 1,759.80 WILLAMETTE VALLEY TRANSPORT NWR

2185 10/15/2019 1,283.76 ALFREDO EVANGELISTA VOLUNTEER

2186 10/15/2019 1,845.34 ALICE CONLEY volunteer mileage

2187 10/15/2019 446.62 BRENDA PARKER volunteer

2188 10/15/2019 5,070.00 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER nwr

2188 10/15/2019 170.00 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER passes

2188 10/15/2019 12.00 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER passes

2189 10/15/2019 3,633.60 ELLIOTT'S MEDICAL TRANSPORT nwr

2190 10/15/2019 866.54 JANNA SMITH VOLUNTEER

2191 10/15/2019 2,030.34 JOHN REKART IR VOLUNTEER

2192 10/15/2019 713.60 JOY WINKELHAKE VOLUNTEER

2193 10/15/2019 4,518.30 K & M MEDIVAN nwr

2193 10/15/2019 9,287.45 K & M MEDIVAN nwr

2194 10/15/2019 3,103.23 KKANDIS LIDAY VOLUNTEER

2195 10/15/2019 1,225.46 LEANN CHUINARD VOLUNTEER

2196 10/15/2019 6,797.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE nwr

2156 10/15/2019 9,302.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE nwr

2196 10/15/2019 9,963.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE nwr

2197 10/15/2019 8,879.10 METRO WEST payables

2198 10/15/2019 687.50 MTN RETREAT SECURE TRANSPORT payables

2198 10/15/2019 1,625.00 MTN RETREAT SECURE TRANSPORT payables ] /L)
2198 10/15/2019 5,781.25 MTN RETREAT SECURE TRANSPORT mtn retreat july 2019 \

Date: 11/14/19 12:43:43 PM BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT
From 10/1/2019 Through 10/31/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description
2199 10/15/2019 12,353.54 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE nwr

2199 10/15/2019 13,345.17 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE nwr

2199 10/15/2019 14,646.26 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE nwr

2199 10/15/2019 14,570.89 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE nwr

2199 10/15/2019 2,333.85 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE nwr

2200 10/15/2019 2,355.32 SEAN REKART VOLUNTEER
2201 10/15/2019 558.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT nwr

2201 10/15/2019 770.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT nwr

2201 10/15/2019 583.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT nwr

2201 10/15/2019 1,044.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT nwr

2201 10/15/2019 1,160.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT july passes

2201 10/15/2019 1,160.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT august passes
2201 10/15/2019 1,000.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT september passes
2202 10/15/2019 2,295.87 VAL HOLYOAK VOLUNTEER
2203 10/15/2019 14,939.75 WAPATO SHORES nwr

2203 10/15/2019 20,121.75 WAPATO SHORES payables

2203 10/15/2019 18,259.25 WAPATO SHORES nwr

2203 10/15/2019 11,021.50 WAPATO SHORES nwr

2204 10/15/2019 2,121.30 WILLIAM NERENBERG volunteer mileage
2205 10/17/2019 500.00 ECOLANE USA, INC. ECOLANE

2206 10/17/2019 26.03 Fred Meyer Customer Charges CARD CHARGES
2207 10/17/2019 700.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT
2208 10/17/2019 12,724.50 K & M MEDIVAN nwr km

2208 10/17/2019 12,872.35 K & M MEDIVAN nwr km

2208 10/17/2019 10,455.00 K & M MEDIVAN nwr km

2208 10/17/2019 2,153.05 K & M MEDIVAN nwr km

2209 10/17/2019 225.22 Pacific Office Automation copier lease

2210 10/28/2019 1,536.26 CoastCom, Inc. TELEPHONE NWR & TCTD
2211 10/28/2019 11,021.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE NWR

Report Total 407,322.06

Date: 11/14/19 12:43:43 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

Page: 2



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1011 - Prop. Mgmt. Checking
From 10/1/2019 Through 10/31/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

4243 10/8/2019 300.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE JANITORIAL AND BUS CLEANING

4244 10/8/2019 585.00 INNOVA LEGAL ADVISORS INVESTIGATION, TRANSIT VISITC
CENTER, MISC

4245 10/8/2019 545.64 Marie Mills Center, Inc JANITORIAL 3RD STREET

4246 10/8/2019 425.00 North Coast Lawn LANDSCAPING

4247 10/8/2019 95.00 RJ'S LOCK & KEY LLC office door adjustment

4248 10/8/2019 299.74 TILLAMOOK CITY UTILITIES WATER & SEWER

4249 10/8/2019 166.95 CITY SANITARY SERVICE GARBAGE

4250 10/28/2019 350.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE JANITORIAL & BUS CLEANING

4251 10/28/2019 1,584.96 Tillamock PUD ELECTRIC AND LOAN

Report Total 4,352.29

Date: 11/14/19 12:44:13 PM Page: 1



\ UMPQUA BANK: CLOSING DATE 10/25/2019
Date Vendor Description of Transaction Amount
DOUG PILANT '
9/30/2019 |PACIFIC RESTAURANT MEALS/MEETING W/MISS E 30.50
10/7/2019 RODEO STEAKHOUSE MEALS/STAFF MEETING _ B 50.96
10/9/2019 GODADDY FEES & LICENSE DOMAIN NAME ' $ 90.85
10/21/2019 PARKSIDE DINER 'MEAS/MEETING W/JUDY $ 34.25
$ 206.56
CATHY BOND -
10/07/19 |ADOBE 'SOFTWARE $ 2499
10/18/19 |ENDICIA POSTAGE $ 9.95
10/24/19 |IRON MOUNTAIN SHREDDING $ 75.40
_ $ 110.34
‘ | ] BRENT OLSON
| 09/30/19 |PANDA EXPRESS MEALS/NWR VEHICLE INSPECTIONS $ 7.80
10/07/19 |PANDA EXPRESS MEALS/NWR VEHICLE INSPECTIONS | $ 780
10/09/19 |PANDA EXPRESS 'MEALS/BUS SHUTTLE W/DRIVER $ 17.90
10/15/19 |BRAKE SYSTEMS |BUS 32 BRAKES $ 390.62
10/15/19 |SHELL OIL FUELBUS 34 E 50.00
10/16/19 RAM MOUNTS TABLET MOUNT $ 95.32
10/24/19 MTCPRO SOFTWARE $ 98.00
= _ $ 667.44
| ‘ TABATHAWELCH |
09/26/19 |FRED MEYER OFFICE SUPPLIES | B $ 84.71
 09/27/19 |BENTLEYS GRILL MEAL/TRAINING 3 $ 1120
09/30/19 |SAFEWAY MEAL/TRAINING $ 4.85
09/30/19 |BAUDVILLE INC EMPLOYEE OF THE YEAR OFFICE WALL PLAQUES | $ 463.01
09/30/19 |HAPPY DRAGON MEAL/TRAINING $ 22.70
09/30/19 ' GRAND HOTEL HOTEL/TRAINING - $ 231.57 |
10/01/19 'MONTEREY CO. EMPLOYEE/YRS OF SERVICE PINS $  372.00
10/02/19 |THE FLAG COMPANY 'REPLACED FLAGS '$  258.92
10/15/19 |USPS ] POSTAGE - '$ 50.00
10/16/19 |ALASKA AIR ‘TRAVEL/TRAINING - $ 480.59
10/16/19 |ENDICIA POSTAGE $ 17.99 |
10/17/19 |ALASKA AIR TRAVEL/TRAINING E 108.00
10/18/19 |SAFEWAY _ MEAL/TRAINING B $ 16.08 |
10/23/19 POSITIVE PROMOTIONS |EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION/FITNESS CHALLENGE  $ 93.75
10/24/19 LYFT CAB RIDE/TRAINING ' $ 17.95
' $  2,213.32
~ CLAYTON NORRBOM
10/23/19 |PIG 'N PANCAKE MEALS/TRAINING i $ 71.85
- $ 7185
STATEMENT TRUE UP $ (0.03)
- _ - Charges total $  3,269.48
| ] Grand Total| $  3,269.48
|
APPROVAL DATE

|\



UMPQUA BANK

«ctober 2019 Statement
e Open Date: 09/25/2019 Closing Date: 10/24/2019
T

@ Visa® Company Card with Rewards
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460)

Reward Points

Earned This Statement
Reward Center Balance
as of 10/23/2019
For details, see your rewards summary.

3,665
13,911

ST Mail payment coupon

Payment Options: .| with a check

Please detach and send coupon with check payable to: Cardmember Service

UMPQUA BANK

24-Hour Cardmember Service: 1-866-552-8855

(l . to pay by phone
1 . to change your address

000010010 01 SP 000638247745238P Y

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

3600 3RD ST STE A
TILLAMOOK OR 97141-2730

Page 10f 5
Account: Y7790
Cardmember Service { 1-866-552-8855
BUS 30 ELN 78 15
Activity Summary
Previous Balance + $4,734.14
Payments - $4,734.17crR
Other Credits $0.00
Purchases + $3,269.51
Balance Transfers $0.00
Advances $0.00
Other Debits $0.00
Fees Charged $0.00
interest Charged $0.00
New Balance = $3,269.48
Past Due $0.00
Minimum Payment Due $33.00
Credit Line $10,000.00
Available Credit $6,730.52
Days in Billing Period 30
Pay enline at Pay by phone

I
\Q; MyaCCoUNtacoess.com (' 1-866-552-8855

CPN 001469460
J30000032k9489

Account Number 17790

Payment Due Date 11/22/2018

New Balance $3,269.48

Minimum Payment Due $33.00

Amount Enclosed

Cardmember Service

P.O. Box 790408
St. Louis, MO 63179-0408

|||lllllllllIIIIIIIIiIIlIIIIIll{iIlI'lIII‘IIIIII]II'III!IIIIIllll



UMPQUA BANK

wctober 2019 Statement 09/25/2019 - 10/24/2019
.. TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460)

:l.fi

[

Cardmember Service "‘

Page 20f 5
1-866-552-8855

Rewards Center Activity as of 10/23/2019

Rewards Center Activity” 0
Rewards Center Balance 13,911
*This item includes points redeemed, expired and adjusted.
This Year
Rewards Earned Statement to Date
Points Earned on Net Purchases 2,873 24 055
Gas, Restaurants & Telecom Double Points 792 6,894
[ Total Earned 3,665 30,949

For rewards program inquiries and redemption
Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:30 pm (CST) Saturday an

available 24 hours @ day, 7 days a week.

Paying Interest. You have a 24 to 30 day interest-free period for P

revious balance in full by the Payment Due
avoid additional INTEREST CHARGES on Pu
Payment Due Date shown on the front of your monthly Accoun

There is no interest-iree period for transactio

except as provided in any Offer Materials. Those transactions are su

to the Account until the date they are paid in full.

SKIP THE MAILBOX. Switch to e-statements and securely access your

myaccountaccess.co m/paperless

Post Trans

Transaction Description

09/30 09/26 0057 PACIFIC RESTAURANT TILLAMOOK O $3050 ——m—

10/07 10/02 6007 RODEO STEAK HOUSE - TI TILLAMOOK OR _ §5096 ———

10/09 10/08 0048 DNH*GODADDY .COM 480-5058855 AZ $0085 ——m

10/21 10/18 5389 PARKSIDE DINER GARIBALDl OR $34.25 —m—
$206.56

Total for Account 308

Post

Date Transaction Description

Ref #
- r

10/07
10/18
10/24

650-321-2640 CA

800-934-3453 MA
. 2022

ENDICIA FEES
IRON MOUNTAIN
Total for Account

4719
6366

Date shown on your monthly Account
rchases, you must pay your new balance in full by the

t statement.

ns that post to the Account as Advanc
bject to interest from the date they post

ADOBE *ACROPRO SUBS 800-833-6687 CA

s, call 1-888-229-8864 from 8:00 am to 10:00 pm (CST)
d Sunday. Automated account information is

urchases provided you have paid your
statement. \n order to

es or Balance Transfers

statements online. Get started at

Amount

Amount

$24.99
$9.95

$75.40

$110.34

Continued on Next Page

Notation




UMPQUA BANK

October 2019 Statement 09/25/2019 - 10/24/2019
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description

es and Other Debi
08/26 0925 7129 FRED-MEYER #0377  TILLAMOOK OR
09/27 09/25 9994 BENTLEYS GRILL SALEM OR
09/30 0e/26 0380 SAFEWAY #0412 SALEM OR
09/30 09/27 5378 BAUDVILLE INC. 800-728-0888 M|
09/30 09/27 0100 HAPPY DRAGON STAYTON CR
09/30 09/27 4820 THE GRAND HOTEL SALEM SALEM OR
10/01 09/30 0080 IPY*The Monterey Compa 877-2909290 OR
10/02 09/30 1308 THE FLAG COMPANY  800-9620956 GA
1015 10/10 9085 USPS POSTAGE STAMPS.C 310-482-5800 CA

10/16 10/14 1567 ALASKA Al0272143897156 SEATTLE WA
WELCH/TABATHA 10/23/12
PORTLAND ORE TO SAN DIEGC
SANDIEGO TO PORTLAND ORE

10/16 10/15 1864 ENDICIA 800-576-3279 CA

10/17 10/14 0304 ALASKA Al SEATTLE WA

10/18 10/16 0494 SAFEWAY #2723 TILLAMOOK O©OR

10/23 10/21 1863 POSITIVE PROMOTIONS IN HAUPPAUGE NY

10/24 10/23 6673 LYFT *RIDE WED5PM lyftcom CA
Total for Account ) 114146

Page 3 of 5
( 1-866-552-8855

Amount Notation

$64.71
$11.20
$4.85
$463.01
$22.70
$231.57
$372.00
$258.92
$50.00
$480.59

$17.99
$108.00
$16.08
$93.75
$17.95
$2,213.32

Post Trans
Date Date

09/30 02/22 1312 PANDA EXPRESS 2736 WARRENTON OR
10/07 10/06 5214 PANDA EXPRESS 2736 WARRENTON OR
10/09 10/08 1806 PANDA EXPRESS #1051 WILSONVILLE OR
10/15 10/14 0065 BRAKE SYSTEMS INC  503-2362116 OR
10/15 10/12 5884 SHELL OIL 57443146709 NEWBERG OR
10/16 10/15 4567 NPI/RAM MOUNTS 206-763-8361 WA
10/24 10/23 5927 FS *www.micpro.com 877-3278914 CA
Total for Account 12649

T CreditLimit $3000

Amount Notation

$7.80
$7.80
$17.90
$390.62
$50.00
$95.32
$98.00
$667.44

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description
‘ - Purchases and Other Debifs
10/23 10/21 1038 PIG'N PANCAKE-LINCOLN LINCCLN CITY OR

Continued on Next Page

Notation




UMPQUA BANK

October 2019 Statement 09/25/2019 - 10/24/2019 Page 40f 5

_ TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460)

Cardmember Service ,  1-866-552-8855
| ~ CreditLimit $2500

;'ENBRRBOM

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
$71.85

Total for Accoun BT5

Post Trans
Amount Notation

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description

$1,074.39cR —

10/10 10/10 8 PAYMENT THANK You

10/10 10110 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $64.00cR ———

10/10 10110 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $3,595.78cR ——
Total for Account ~ 1 7790 $4,734.17CR

Total Fees Charged in 2019

Total interest Chargedin 2019 $0.00

Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is the annual interest rate on your account.

#% 0 DR for current and future ransactions.

Balance Annual Expires
Balance Subject to Interest Percentage with
Balance Type By Type Interest Rate Variable Charge Rate Statement
~+BALANCE TRANSFER $0.00 $0.00 YES $0.00 14.49%
«pJRCHASES $3,269.48 $0.00 YES $0.00 14.49%
=*ADVANCES $0.00 $0.00 YES $0.00 26.24%

Continued on Next Page



Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT Oct 2019
RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE OCT OCT YTD YTD YTD %

2019 2018 FY 19-20 FY 18-19 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service
Tillamook County 1,079 912 4,326 3,561 21.5%
NW Rides 811 733 3,080 2,947 4.5%
Dial-A-Ride Total 1,890 1,645 7,406 6,508 13.8%
Deviated Fixed Route Service
Rt 1: Town Loop 4,013 3,750 15,005 15,238 -1.5%
Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 592 546 2,650 2,787 -4.9%
Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 3,244 3,029 13,073 13,007 0.5%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 1,403 1,309 8,535 5,364 21.8%
Local Fixed Rt Total 9,252 8,634 37,263 36,396 2.4%
Inter City Service
Rt 5: Portland 836 871 3,760 3,824 -1.7%
Rt 60X: Salem 997 921 4,157 3,993 4.1%
Rt 70X: Grand Ronde 500 585 1,905 2,241 -15.0%
Inter City Total 2,333 2,377 9,822 10,058 -2.3%
Other Services
Tripper Routes 151 201 435 542 -19.7%
Special Bus Operations 70 0 1,139 1,134 0.4%
Other Services Total 221 201 1,574 1,676 -6.1%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 13,696 12,857 56,065 54,638 2.6%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 19-20 | FY 18-19 | Change
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 6,922 302 30,356 30,060 1.0%
Senior/Disabled 3,921 1,512 21,900 20,631 6.2%
Child/Youth (less than 18 years of age) 962 76 3,808 3,947 -3.5%
Total 11,806 1,890 56,065 54,638 2.6%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 19-20 | FY 18-19 | Change
Ride Connection 89| 374 263 42.2%
Tillamook Bay Community College 328 722 755 -4.4%
NWOTA Visitor Pass 769 799 -3.8%
NW Rides 739 2,752 2,947 -6.6%
Helping Hands Shuttle 131 614 242 153.7%

11/16/2019

10-19 RIDERSHIP REPORT .xlsx

M)

-

\



Tillamook County Transportation District Oct 2019

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE

Operating
Service Passengers Farebox Cost
Month per Hour Ratio per Hour
Dial-A-Ride Services
Oct-18 1.3 59.0% 65.05
Jul-19 1.5 60.0% 68.88
Aug-19 1.6 52.8% 78.00
Sep-19 1.6 55.6% 73.66
Oct-19 1.6 58.2% 70.87
STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36 |
Deviated Fixed Routes
Oct-18 6.1 9.9% 66.07
Jul-19 6.3 9.5% 69.09
Aug-19 6.5 9.1% 78.09
Sep-19 6.3 9.7% 73.64
Oct-19 6.3 9.6% 70.86
[ STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 64.60
Intercity Services
Oct-18 3.3 23.5% 73.30
Jul-19 3.4 19.5% 76.05
Aug-19 3.4 18.6% 87.42
Sep-19 3.4 19.6% 83.54
Oct-19 3.3 20.5% 80.90
STANDARD 2.9 31.5% 72.86 —|
Other Services
Oct-18 6.0 3.3% 58.30
Jul-19 5.5 11.2% 63.81
Aug-19 4.9 6.2% 7210
Sep-19 5.0 7.3% 66.97
Oct-19 5.1 8.3% 63.56
STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 55.54

Dial-a-Ride includes Central, North and South Counties Dial-A-Ride Services

Deviated Fixed Routes: 1 Town Loop, 2 Oceanside, 3 Manzanita/Cannon Beach, 4 Lincoln City
Intercity Routes: 5 Portland, 60X Coastal Connector, 70X Salem/Grand Ronde

Other Services: Trippers and Special Bus Operations



e
-

| abed %992 116208 1500 Joa1iq g JogeT ‘ebesji 810
6502 SL's 80°0 %¢E'82 66°'E G8'zL 09tv'zZ0'L |6¥S'PLE  9PLILE £88'Z85 288°'c6l ¥€9'89¢  €p89l SE0'vl 690°9S 6L6'882 S$@JIAJeg QLDL [BjoL
62'S ¥0'L 60°0 %E8 Lg 95°'€9 /5961 051"y 989 L69CL A4 1E0'F GS¥ 60¢€ 7 L£9°1 S80IAI8g J8YJO [Bj0L
89S og't 80°0 %L'8 9 ve¥9 £64'GL leg'e 7S 890'0L SLe'L 0S¥’ vie Sve 6EL'L 69E’L uoneladQ sng [e1ads
BlL'¥ 29’0 cL'o %69 89 96°09 P06°€ 8 vl 0e9'e 60¢€ 185 r4 4% 9 SEl 89¢ siaddu |
EERIISERPED )
8G9l L0°G S00 %G 02 €€ 06°08 cle'ere LLB'6Y G99'9 196’621 GEV'9G 20’201 L¥S'E €00 228’6 68.'6Y Ripisul [eyo L
e 8e’L £0°0 %EV L'C 1208 GoZ'LS L92'LL £86°L 128°0€ 0S0'€lL 21L8've 968 147 S06'L PEV'E 8puUoyY pueigy X0.L
00°0L 992 S0°0 %6’ LL 8¢ 96'€8 98926 650'6L osv'e GLL' LY cob'ee 96" 9s5e'L POL'L LSL'Y 6E0'LL waes X09
£9°0E 996 200 %06 sy Sp'8L 0z0'c6 160'6l 1€9'C GLE'LS £96'61 66'LE S6Z'L 98L'L 09.°€ gLe'ee PuEod G0
Ap1e]
889 [ 0L'0 %L'6 €9 98°04 VI AZ N FAVALT 82Zcl zel'vve  LlZ's. ELO'EPL 1269 196G €92°/E SZ0'Ly aIn0y palelAaq [e10L
£vL 19°L L0°0 %96 9t g€e'LL 850'601 ge0'ee YEL'E Gl6'LS SLe've ¢le'LY 2L9')L A GEG'9 96701 AND ujooUr 0
9247, LEL 60°0 %80L 6'G 90'¢s 0EL'651 LL9'EE L06'% £99'06 0S6'62 9¥6'95 ozv'e 8022 €L0'el LPL'LL EJlUBZUBIN €0
€9'E oLt S0°0 %C’S £e 9569 6EL'9S 2G8°LL LBL L 9EL'ee GGE'6 18L°L1 180°L 108 0s9'2 8e6'e spisueasQ/sHeIBN g0
289 040 FAN %4701 86 96'€9 250'86 0LL'0z Zov'e £v6'29 166'01 606°02 ZrL'l €651 S00°GL SF 0L dooumoy Lo
aInoy pajeiAeg
9C'Ly £9°9¢ 0’0 %Z 89 9L 1804 2sy'LeE Gle'LL £195'0L £05'G61L 90L'09 Z8erlL 026'S 29 o0F'L 20F"961 dvad el
90’89 LL'6S 200 %L 6L 0k €824 6E6'0ET  [BLL'SY 180°L 881'0¢€} SE6'Y 9Er'S8 116’ LLL'E 080 160781 sapid MN
8., 98¢ S00 %9 LL L G6'99 £15'90L |[.l6V'ZZ 0ES'E 71£'G9 LLL'GL 9v8'82 €61 LB L 9ze'y LLE'ZL apid-y-elg
90IAIBS 9pig-V-BlIg
uny/einoy
(g) Jnop (¢) e1e4  Apisgng oney anoH Jad  (¢) ayey | (¢) s1s00) | (g) sison  (¢)1s0D (8) s1500 SIS0J SeIN SINOH ANCH siBussed (8)
SoIMBS abelany ¢ Busseq xogaled sibusseqd  AunoH 1ej01 J0811pU| j=1TTg peseg pases Aunag pled alA ORIIRS alA BNUGASH
januanay + * AlnoH abeapy alA i alA aled dlA
6L0C/9L/LL 610¢ 190 NiyL

0202/6L02 A4 IEN}OY
2JUBWIOLIS PUB SOIJSIIE]S 9]BQ-01-JBajA Jouysig uonepodsuel) Ajunon yoouue|ji L



¢z abed
%99 Gez'e9 099°'220'L SZZ'6S6 %6°L- |99¢- SEO'PL LoVl %9°C vl 59095 8€9'VS %C' b 295 616'882 16¢£'58¢2 §80IAleg d1DL IeyolL
%102 98z°c 159'61 Z.LE'9L %Ll0L |82 60 L8¢ %lL'9- |e0l- LG 9971 %L€0Z |860°L LE9'L B6ESG S80IAI8S 18Y)0 [BjoL
%691 BLZ'C £G62'Gl 9V'EL %L 9 gl ave 0€e %% 0 S BEL'L YEL'L %0°ZE9 |[28L°L 69E°1L /8L uoneladQ sng [e1oads
%8 € 800°L 06 968'2 %8'GC |EL 9 LS %L6L- [L0L- GeY s %6'ce- |¥B- 892 [4°19 siaddu
EERINESEED TS}
%E 0l 1GL'eC ZL6'ZYe Slz'0ce %00 b= £00°E 700 %EC- |9EC- Z28'6 860°01 %L €~ |GLB'L- 6826V #0L'LS Auossiu| ejo
%L1 0009 GOZ'LS 992'LS %CL 8 ELL S04 %0°GL- |9gE- G06'L e’z %6°82- |686- YEV'C ger'e apuoy puels X0.L
%E'6 L06'2L 989'26 GBL'Y8 %80~ |6- POL'L eLL'L %l¥ 9L 1Sy £66'C %8'S 809 6£0'LL Lev'oL we|es X09
%S 0L 968'8 0zZ0'c6 ¥9L'¥8 %00 0 981°L 98L°L %L L P9 09.L'€ ¥28'c %Lt~ |PEG'L- 9LE'9E 058°LE PUEOd S0
NI
%E"L 195'82 6.£'Cel ZL8'e6e %0°0 0 196'S 196°G %'e 298 £92'LE 96€'9E %81 v68°L GZ0'Ly LEL'BE 8lnoy paxi4 207 [Bj0L
%L9 (6989 850'60F  68L'20L %00 |0 A AR %81l [LLL'L GES'O 9e's %L'GlL  [8LEL 9610l 2LL'6 A0 ujedur 0
%E°L 628'0L 0€L'65L Log'8rL %0°0 0 802'c 80¢e'c %50 99 £L0'El 200'€lL %e'S cr8 LrL'LL G0oE'9L EJIUBZUEWN £0
%S°L 226't 6E1'95 LLe'es %070 0 208 208 %6 |LEL- 059'z 1812 %Lv Sl 826¢ €8¢ apisuead/suUeleN 20
%9°L L¥6'9 250'86 S0L'LB %00 0 €EG'L £EG'L %SL-  |EEeC- G00'GL 8EZ'SL %0'p- Lt~ ¥S¥0L S68°01 dooumo] Lo
aNoy paleirag
%92 GZ9'8 2S'LEE 928°8ee %8G~ |E£6E- 2oLV GG0'S %8'El |B6B 90r'L 80G'9 %E’L agr'e 897961 £86°C61 dvd |BloL
%t L- glLe'e- 6£6'0EC LSe'vee %66~ |6FE- LLL'E 0zs'e %S ¥ €El 080t VBT %10 oel L6081 196°€8L Sapid MN
%9°ZL 8€6'LL £16'90L S.5'v6 %9°E jeis} 165'L GEG'L %S°Le  |994 9ze'y 195G %G'ee  |56eC LLE°CL 9L0'01L apiy-y-ielq
ERIIVEISE-TsIs B =lTa]
UNy/ano,

aousleyiq | soualayiq 1500 [E101 1500 [E10.L aouaiayiq | @oualaglg  sinoH sSiNOH | @oussayiq | saualeyig sibusseq  sibussed gousteyiq [ eouslayl] enusasy  enusasy H/81IN0Y

jusoiad unowy juadlad unowy ERIINELS ]IV TS juaaiad junowy Jusaiad junoLuy ale4 ale

0Z/6L 6L/8L 0c/6l 61/81 0e/6l 6L/8L 0z/6L 6L/81

6102 120 iy L

uosuedwon JBaA-19A0-IBO A

6102 190 Ny L

6102 120 niyL

6102 120 nuyl

61/8L Ad 01 8L/LLAL

jJouysiq uoneuodsuel] Ajunos yoouwe|jil




%E € 680'2€ 7IETL66 GZ2'656 SiseD [ejoL
IS $ %002 14oid snid - S]S00 pedUIsAD
eL'ay $ ajey Aunoy yoseod %02 06L'y 6¥S'vLE Bse'0LZ Sis0Q P8lig
%992 PEAUIBAQ SNid sng |lews %9'E ZL0'GL £88'289 128'298 sisoQ paseg AnoH
99'SE $ ajey AunoH UBAIUIN %L 18821 Z88'€6l 66081 §]s00) paseg abes|y
%0'E siseQ joedig snid  yoid peayianQ |enjoy %2 0 (e04) YEQ'89E BEE'6OE abeajpy
LOYe  § aley AunoH |enjoy S soualayiq  eouaRYId 0zZ/6L 6L/8L uondudsag
:uonejnajes aey Alnoy %0l snid snid ‘uone|nojes ajiw Jad 3509 jusaiad  Junowy 0Z/61 Ad OV GLI8LAL
1509 uone[najes uoneladQ sng [e19ads 610Z 18q0}00 ybnoiyl aLA uospedwo?)
¢ abegq
%L L0°0- =]} ez's %0'G- %S %E 82 %L 62 %9y 20 oY 8¢ %9'8 LLS S8'ZL 80'49 S32AIBG JBUYIO [BIoL
%P'eee |2L0 70 L ¢e0 %6¢5L  |%0S %E'8 %E'E %l ¥l 60" L's 09 %06 9z's 99°€9 0€'8s sadlAes JeylQ [elo ]
%8828 |01 oz'L 9l'0 %2925 | %EL %L'8 %t L %8'G- €0 9t 6t %96 £9'G re't9 19'86 uoheladQ sng jeads
%G €0°0- 290 §9°0 %S et %E'G- %69 %Z'gL %2 98- 6'€- 89 90l %lb'L 90t 96'09 06'9% ssadduy
ESRINESPERTe]
%t - L0°0- £0°S LS %Ll |%0€- %G'0¢ %G'EC %Ee Lo €€ {2 %P0l 092 06'08 QE'EL [SIETVECICT
%E 9L~ S¢'0- 8¢’ L €S %E9E-  |%PE- %EY %L9 %091~ S0 L'e ZE %b 0L 1571 1208 al'es SpUOY puel9 X0.
%L L 00 99°¢ Loz %Z'e %0~ %6 L %ETL %0'S Z0 8t 9t %e 0L 6474 96'€8 919/ wsales X09
%P'C- e o- 99'6 06'6 %ZEL-  |%6'S %0'6E %06y %L’ L= Lo e (A %S0k FA- SP'8L 86°0L puUepIod S0
Apozsiu]
%t €00 oL'L 80°L %E'C % 0 %l'6 %66 %¥e 1’0 ) %E'L 6L 98°0L 1099 N0y pajeira (elo L
%SG 60°0- Lol 0Lt %6 L %40 %9'6 %68 %8'Le 20 ¥ 8'E %49 98’ €Lt LeeL Al ujedu 0
%9’ 900 LeL Sse'l %02 %e 0 %8°0L %0 L1 %S0 00 8’6 6'G %E'L 08t a0'ezL GL'49 EllUEZUB E0
%G'6 0L0 oLt 1oL % e %< 0~ %S %S %6t~ 20 £e ge %&°L 98t 9969 0Lv9 8pIsueadQ/suUeleN 20
%9 ¢- 200 0L0 L0 %8 0L [%EL- %401 %02l %S’ L~ 4 8'6 66 %9'L €St 96'€9 £¥'65 doo umoy Lo
3oy pajeinag
%0'LL-  [eze- €592 18’62 %EL- %80 %2 85 %0'65 %802 €0 9l el %68 |18 1804 L] dva [elol
%Er |59 166 ] %Gl |%Z L %L 6L %G 8L %091 10 0l g0 %v6  |L29 €82 EEEL] S8pid MN
%Ll SO0 98¢ L8'g %L'6 %01 %9'LL %9°0L %Ll 0 Fara £e %L'8 9e's 96°99 09°'L9 apiy-v-Ielg
BOIAIES apTd-v-EId
110 1uadiad | §iQ Junouy aleq aled HIJ 1Usdied | Jig unouwy oney oney HIQ Wu80iad [ Hig Wnouy nep; INoH/ 10 JUa21ad | Jig Junowy  21ey AlINOH 218y ANCH uny/sinoy
abesany abesany X0gales x0qaled 1Bussed Jbusseq
0e/61 6L/81L 0z/6l 6L/81 0c/6L 6L/8L 02/61 6L/8L
6102 100 NIyL 6102120 iyl 6102 1200 Nyl 61L0Z 120 NIyL

02/6L Ad O3 6L/8LAL
uosiiedwon aouewWIOUad d)eq 0} JeaA Jo13sig uoneuodsues] Aunod yoowey|iL



CONNECTOR

Coordinating Committee Meeting
November 8, 2019
Tillamook County Transportation Distriet
3600 39 St
Tillamook, OR
10:00 am—2:00 pm
Teleconference Information

866/755-7677
Pin # 005939
Agenda
10:00— .
10:05a 1. Introductions Doug Pilant
2. Consent Calendar (Action ltems)

— 4 October 11, 2019 Meeting Minutes (Attached) ;
B 53 4 October 2019 Financial Report Doug Pilant

15 #* Ridership Tracking

% Calculating Average Passenger Miles Progress
3. NWOTA Standing Items

10:15— 4 IGA Approvals Update Benton County

) %+ Website Alert Implementation All

4 Travel Studio/Transportation Committee Jeff Hazen
10:45- 4. Website Trip Enhancement RFP Doug Pilant
11:00a 4 Project Update
11:00— | 5. Discussion: Transitioning Discretionary Inter- All
11:30 City to STIF Formula Funding
11:30— | 6. Lunch
12:00p
12:00— |
. } 7. NW Cennector Marketing .
LI0p ] & ] . ddi : Selina Barlow
Tentative Presentation and discussion _
Time :
Lh 8. Other Business and Member Updates All
2:00p
Attachments:

October 11, 2019 Meeting Minutes October NWOTA Action Items

NWOTA meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with
disabilities. If a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Mary McArthur at 503.228.5565 at least 48
hours prior to the meeting,.

www.nwconnector.org

Benton (ounty

TRANSPORTATION

F SUNSET EMPIRE
TRANSPORTATION

IMSTRICT




Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA)
Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes
September 13, 2019
Tillamook County Transportation District
Tillamook, OR

1. Introductions: Doug Pilant, Coordinating Committee Chair, opened the meeting. Lisa
introduced Lee Lazaro’s replacement: Brad Dillingham who worked for SmartTransit in
Portland prior to joining Benton County transit. Partners welcomed Brad to the group.
Meeting attendees/teleconference participants included:

Jeff Hazen—Sunset Empire Transit District

Doug Pilant—Tillamook County Transportation

Lisa Scherf, Brad Dillingham—Benton County Transit

— Mark Bernard, Arla Miller—ODOT

Excused: Cynda, Todd.

2. Consent Calendar: Unanimously approved. (JH/LS)
% September 13, 2019 Meeting Minutes—No changes.

4+ September Financial Report—Received $12,000 in partner dues and TCTD paid out
$6,007.75 in administrative support.

“ July Ridership Performance Report—Missing numbers from TCTD and Lincoln County.
Mary still needs to work with Johti Dreezen at Columbia County Rider. November
agenda.

% Calculating Average Passenger Miles Progress=Doug noted that he makes random
on/off counts to calculate passenger miles by route. Jeffand Lisa will start work on their
calculations.

3. NWOTA Standing Items: ! '
% IGA Approval Ut)dates—Benton County—Brad will start work on getting it passed.

% Management Plan=Benton Cqunty—Brad will also start work on this.

4+ Website Alert Serviee~TCTD has had-acouple of alert misses, but by and large it is
working well. Still have to remind staff about putting in alerts. Benton—Lisa has had the
training and will have Brad get the formal training. Not sure they have had any service
interruptions that required an‘alert.

“( Travel Tourism Studio/Transportation Committee—Jeff reported that he, Doug and
Mary participated in a panel discussion. Pilot project for a Car-Free travel to Cannon
Beach initiative, the first project for the North Coast Tourism Studio. Will include links
to transit.in lodging eonfirmation. Cannon Beach is starting work on its TSP, looking at
language that may look at expanding the number of vacation rentals for people that
travel to Cannon Beach without a car. Looking to expand the pilot project to other cities
along the north coast.

4. NW Connector Marketing
Selena reported on her travel on the NWConnector system on 13 different buses, every one

of which was on time. Connections were all made. All drivers were courteous, although a
couple weren’t as knowledgeable about the visitor passes as others. More trips going to and
from the coast to the valley is an improvement and makes a more robust system. That also
broadens the market for the NWConnector. Branding—In some places, very good:
Tillamook co-branding on the buses, the shelters that have the new signage. Some old logos
are still in place at some shelters and maps. Important to have consistency. Got a strong
sense that there are opportunities for targeted marketing using on-board messaging. Make

I

I

NWOTA Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (g-13-19) 1|Page



messages very direct, rather than cryptic or cute, eg, the number of trips going to and from
the coast. Also, leveraging partnerships with local tourism partners and linking to
NWConnector as an option. Visit Tillamook Coast links to Tillamook Transit not to the
NWConnector. Option may be setting up a NWConnector Facebook, with posts that could
also get posted on tourism partners sites. Co-op incentives with local tourism partners.
Social media and digital advertising to target individuals who are transit-ready and/or
interested in NW Oregon. (eg, looked at/liked their local transit website and looked at/liked
coastal destination pages.) Also, potentially those that look at biking sites. When click on a
digital ad, it will take to NWConnector.

Trip planner—Create some same itineraries, eg, for day trippers, romantic couples, family
one-day trips to the beach. Add to website, NWConnector Facebodk page, and on the
landing pages for social media ads.

Next steps: Research transit advertising in the three markets, and how to use social media
advertising. Develop marketing recommendations. Bringto Nofvember meeting. Begin to
develop the marketing tools.

Partners discussion: Excited to hear the feedback. Suggestions seem doable and very
practical. Marketing should help not only across the regionjbut within our individual
districts. Will also start looking at enhancements to'the visitor pass.

5. Website Trip Enhancements
Partners reviewed the draft RFP prepared by Mary against the Scope of Work from the grant
agreement. A couple of contract amefidments will need tobe paid: Page 11, #9—change
implementation period to 18 months ratherthan the 2 years listed: Delete the word
“Trillium” from page 11 paragraph starting “Recipient, in the performance of this Project. . .”

6. NWConnector Website Events/Trips
Updating postponed until the. marketing plan is completed, to provide direction.

7. Other Business/Member Updates

4 Sunset Empire Transit—Both Board Chair and Vice-Chair have gone off the Board, and
Kathy Kleczek has been hired by SETD. Have hired more staff and will be replacing the
Finance Director. Bought a motor coach for the Lower Columbia Connector run. Hard
to tind motor coach with a lift. Seaside Transit stop is outside of work that ODOT is
doing nearby and would cost. $150,000—$200,000. Will be triggering all ADA
requirements. Too.much for a small rural transit. Still struggling for drivers, will need
more drivers for STE expansion.

4 Benton County—Glad to have Brad onboard. Working on sunsetting the Albany—
Corvallis Amtrak connector service but utilizing new transit service starting November
5™, Nextwill be working on expanding the Coastal connector.

4+ Tillamook County—No progress on collective bargaining agreement. Selected Kittleson
to do the analysis on using next STIF funding. Working on partitioning property from
the City for the transit center. Amtrak stop for Tillamook buses getting worked out.
Started pay equity and staffing analyses. Automating more of the HR activities, and
Finance person will be picking up more HR work. New staff assistant for Tabatha.
Selected to do new Drug/Alcohol audit. New administrative person replacing Cathy.
Ride Care’s call center is taking on scheduling of rides for their clients, including
brokerage for Portland ride to care agencies as well.

Discussion on transitioning discretionary inter-city to STIF formula funding. Add to the
November board meeting agenda.

Recorded: Mary McArthur, Col-Pac EDD and NWOTA Coordinator

NWOTA Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (9-12-19) 2|Page



[ :28eg UBLIEA 79 195png (11 A/M Hodn] qOg AJyiuo

%P6t CTT6V86T 00°000%1€ SLLOSSI £8°0TS°L 00°0

%L0’S 000619 00°061°6S 00°000°¢ 000 00°0

20070 00°061°9% 00°061°98 00°0 00°0 00°0

2%00°001 0070 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢ 0070 000

%16Y CTTOETHT 00°018ST SLILOSTL £8°0TS°L 000

26000 00°000°S 00°000°¢ 00°0 LY9T¥ 00°0

%000 00709591 00°09S"+91 0070 000 000

%000 00°005°L¥ 00°00S° LY 000 £E€'856°¢ 000

299798 00°000°1 00°008°L 000059 00579 00°0

%E0FT CTT66'81 00°000°ST SL'LO0D £€°€80°C 00°0

20070 00°05T°S 00°08T’S 000 0S°LEY 000

%97 11 (00°000°8L2T) 00°000°F1€ 00°000°9¢ 00°0 0070

%000 (00°000°6¥1) 00°000°6+1 00°0 000 000

2007001 000 00°000°C1 00°000°C1 000 000

2%00°0§ (00°000%2) 00°000°8% 00°000%T 00°0 00°0

2000 (00°000°501) 00°000°601 00°0 000 00°0

9% €€ 20UBLIE A 1238png [e0], [emoy 198png pouad (BN POLIdJ

128png [e10], 13 & JUaLIn)) juaimy) Jua.LnNy)

610Z/1€/01 YSnoIy, 610T/1/01 WO

JUDWIRIE]S [BIOURUIL]
LS woneliodsued ], Ajuno)) yoowe[Ly,

0316
0€l6

0zes
[61¢
061¢
coI¢
101¢
0oie

glev
[T6¥
cTey
0ose

INd PE-EEE0 61/S/11 =21B(

sasuadxq [el0L
SIQJSUBI], [BI0]
reg pun, 3urpus pajerdorddeun
pun,j [eI2U2L) 0} IAJSUBI],
SIQJSUBL],
SIAIAG PUE S[BLIAIB[A [BI0],
ururelr] 79 [9ABLL
uB1Sa(1-9% 2HSqIA
Funapey
SOURUDIUIBIA LS A
uoddng aanensunupy
S90IAIRS [BUOISSDJOI]
SADIAIRS PUR S[BLISJBJA]
sasuadxy

S22IN0SAY [B10],
pung J[LS Woif I3Jsueiy,
pun,j [eIUaLy WoL,| 19jsuel |,
YoTeN 0D U] V. ILOMN
Teude)) Sunjiop
§201n05Y



NWOTA Action Items
September 2019

e Action Items Assignments | Progress
IGA Mary to get copies of Lincoln Co (/) (V)
Get approved by each partner signed IGA’s from Tillamook (V)
commission/board. each partner for the Columbia Co (V)

file SETD (V)
Management Plan M%W“Send out Plan

and most current i
Get ap_prgved by each partner Action Plan )
commission/board g

enton .
Columbia Lincoln (V)
Sunset Empire Tillamook ()

Mary—Get approval
documentation from
each partner

Management Plan Updates
Mobile app for NW Connector

Transit language for Comp Plans and TSPs
Purchase rides online
Reserve a seat online

Website Events/Trip Planner/Newsletter
Draft RFP/Scope of Work

Mary

Awaiting results from
the Marketing Plan

Bike and Ride Info on Website

Add instructions/video on how to use the bike
rack

Jeff to provide the
video and language

Mary to add to website

In Progress

2019—2020 NWConnector Marketing

Selina Barlow to test
travel the

Report—November
Board meeting

NWConnector system
NW Connector Ridership Partners do Tillamook (V)
calculations

Update performance methodology assumptions

Lincoln, Columbia

Lincoln (V)

Compare monthly ridership year-to-year oilbean = Benton )
Mary to meet with Tillamook (V)
John Dreeszen Sunset (v)

NW Connector Holidays Policy (Lincoln drop 1, | Doug/Cynda

TCTD add 3 days)

Adding Connector Partners—Meet with

Washington County initially

NW<Connector Trips and Events Mary to coordinate Awaiting results of the

Marketing Report

Transportation Options Consider addinga TO | NW Connector follow
page to NWConnector | on to Oregon’s July
Website

NWOTA Action Plan Items Progress (September 2019)

i|Page

2

O



Action Items = Assignments Progress

Drive less Connect
promotion
NW Connector
highway signs
displaying website
info

[] | Transit App Alerts Trillium train partners | Sunset/Tillamook Vv

[] | Updated Visitor Passes Include in Marketing

NWOTA Action Plan Items Progress (September 2019) 2|Page



N
T SRR,

6L0Z ‘L€ 1890300 =ohum.unm.ﬂuwm¢hm N
uobaip h

Atewwing juswanoidw| dois lisuel|

100l0id sso©929y }Jisueld] uobaiQ }samylioN
JOLDIANNODIMU



(Ayunon

1usIa dosje|0) 1ousia
uoneuodsuel| uoneuodsuel | lsuel] Japry uoneuodsuel|
AlunoD yoouwe||iL alidw3 jJosung Aunoo ujooun Alunog eiquin|o) AjunoD uojusg

NOILVLHOdSNYYL

=

‘aJe salouabe jisuel W1 OMN @Al 8yl "SuOljeulSap Jayjo Auew pue ‘yiom

1o saoe|d ‘salIAlo. [BUONEaIOB. ‘SaI)[I0.) [BOIPaW ‘SUONIBINE ISLNO0] ‘SaN}0 Jolew Ylim SSIUNWLLOD |[ewsS Pue sesle [eind
usamiaq sabeyul| 1isuel) [eonuo sapiroid 1] '1SB02 UoBaIQ 1SOMULON BU} UM AS|[BA SlIBWEjIAA 84} }o8uu09 jey) sajnol
SNQ J0108UU0Y) 1SeMULION [euolfal sy} sebeuewl WNIOSUoD anbiun siy] “[oABJ} 0] Aem a|gepJoye ‘9|qISSe00e Ue Sey
SUOAISAS JBY) 0S SUOIOBUU0D Jisuel) [euolbal Jusiuaauod apiroid 0} si [eob sy 1 OMN "UobaiQ 1SeMUMON Ul S2iunod

SAl} Ul pajenyis ale ey suoneziuebio usuel; olgnd aAl usamiag welboid aaneioqe|jod Aousbe-iajul ue si 1 OMN

"lISUBJ) 0] SS90 8SBaIOU| 0} |e0b ||eJaA0 8y} adueApe 0} Y1 OMN jo poddns

ur jJuawsbeuew pue Buipuny 108foud papiacid | OQO “S8IN0J JISUBI) J0JoBUU0D) ISeMUKON Sy} Buoje sdojs snq pasueyus
10 mau Jo} subisap |aAs|-1deouod pasueape dojaaap pue suonedo| Ajluspl 0} Y1OMN PUB 10d0 YHM 3iom O} wes)
JUBINSU0D pal-sqooer B pue (V1OMN) 2@2uel|y lisuel] uobalQ 1semylopN ayl (1L0qO) uoneuodsuel] jo uswiedsq
uobalQ syl usamiaq Loys 10al0id SAIIBIOCE|0D B WOJL PA}INSal 1BY] SSWI02IN0 A8y ay] SazlewwWnNS 19Pooq siy |

uononpouu|



"uoljeo0| yoes Joy
ojeudoidde jsow se ussoys atem / pue g sebed uo umoys sadA} ubisep dojs sng papuswiwodal [enuaslod Inoj Jo suQ

'(Vd3AN) 10V Adljod
[EIUSWUUOIAUT |eUOIIEN 8Uj} JapuUN UOREBIUSWNDOP [BIUSWUOIIAUS 81NN} Joddns 0} pepasau uoljelllojul Jo uoljeledald -
sjuswaAoldwi Buipul-Aem pue uoneuiwn||f e
sBuissolo Aempeoy .
(LMOY.) ABM Jo by -«
1l0JW09 pue Alajes Jesn aoueyus 0} saljuswe pue sbulysiuing Jayjo pue adA) ‘ezis Jsays -
uoneinbiyuoo uoneoo| dojs Jo Jno-|nd sng -
Aljigisseooe ueljsapad pue ajhoig -
uonepowwodde (,\vay,) 1oV senljigesiq UM SUBdLsWY e
AjiqisiA doys yisuel] .
Aljeuonouny pue Ajajes .

‘sjusws|e ubisap Buimojjoy syl passalppe joslold ayl 19004 Siy} Ul Jayuny
paquasap dojs yoea yjim ‘dell MaIAISA0 SU] U0 UMOYS Se suoljeoo] dojs JISUBl} $Z JO UORedjuspl Ul paynsal yoafold aul

‘sjuswaje dols JIsued) JBY10 Jo ‘sSe00. 3[oAdIg/uel)sapad ‘snojind ‘uoljepowwodde QY PaXoe| Ing

sayouaq pue sIsyays pey siayjo ajiym ‘ebeubis Agq paxlew Ajdwis asom suofjedo| dojs sawos :sdojs JIsuel) Jo suonipuod
Bunsixe pajeanal 10A0 Ag pepiroid uoneulioul pue suonebiisaaul pal4 “spesu juswanocidwi pue ss|pusiolyap

umouy aAey Jey) sdojs Joj SaIAISS JUSLUSSOSSE [BjuawiuoJIAUL pue ‘ubisep jdeouod ‘Bujuueld jo pajsisuod jasloid syl

"uoneloge||od lsuel ybnody) [@As| |euoibal e uo Aljigissaooe ajowold 0} s wie S 1OMN



BupsauiBue|d ‘uospieyaly ajoie)
SQOJB[ ‘USSSIoD)IapUBA USAS]S
SQOooe[ JaWwny Umeys

SQO2E ‘UBWYDIY 100G
Xuleweled ‘quioouie ueiy
wes| jueynsuon

aa3d auoed elquiniod INypyap Aep

Japly Auno) elquinjo) ‘POOM pPpoL

101181 Uonepodsuel | anidwg Jesung ‘uszeH yer
101181 UoneWodsuel] Aluno) joowe|il ‘uejid Bnoq
uonelodsuel] Alunog uojuag ‘Leyosg esi
uoleuodsuel| AjunoD) uousg ‘olezeT] 897

Hsued] AlJunoD ujooul ‘eanig epuin

VLOMN

Z uoibay ‘szuiH euuog

Z Uoibay '3d 'poomieT uinen
Z uoibay "'34 ‘uoidn Aujolog

z uoibay 9N ely

Z uoibay ‘pleulag e

z uoibey 1000 ‘Y8|IMYUCYS uBY
10do

‘s)uaLWsbBpamouN oy



A\p

S 6102 'LE 1200

100lo1g ssaosoy usuel] uobaip 1somylioNn HOLOINNOOIMU
MIIAIBAQ }23f0ud

“AJBLILINS SIY) Ul UMOYS JOU 3Je pue 3jJom Jo saseyd
Jslppes Buunp pafold auyy wolj paaowal alam /| pue ‘gl ‘g sdols 810N

ﬁmﬁ = tnnu_n.sﬁ..

tumc._o___._ E
;J.h\?. ;oua_\w_.. @

|

Alj3 ujoauiT g

)

&
1PieqlieD

uopepodsues) Ajuno) uojuag

: ® a8eIA Jiepy ¥
“odman

T {(gn) Ay J28uRID B MEEHO 18 BINgsImaT €T

- aad (95) 8y 1a3uelD 3 MEEHO 38 8INgsImaT I

e (83) 1S YITT '8 0TSN 18 Lpewojiyd a1z

(8M) 1S YIT 78 TSN 18 Ylewo|iyd BIZ

uoyeliodsues) Ajunod yooweljiL

\ 1odpjem (074
S oSy A e yanos podman 6T
% 3 YrioN Jodman 81

_ D ysues] Ajunod ujodur

v

: Ay ayied ST
003H 14
= (8S) @Ay pIg YLION pue TOT AMH - Yoeag Aemyedoy €T
S ) {ie9 (8N) 2AY PJE YLION pUB TOT AMH - Yoeag Aeme oy [4
1 _o—| (85) @AY pIE YINoS pue TOT AMH - Yoeag Aemesaoy 1T
; A Ae (9N} ®Av pIg YINOS pue TOT AMH - Yoeag Aemexdoy 01

‘. Aemeyds0y 3
e ; piseas 6
i
._|»P LN o Yoot e (.r_!|n 1o }ey.tean) 8
asooldess Rl UDIUBIIBAN L
&W. [esTaueien eddeuy 9
sSuUBjaH 15
() E_s: A uonepodsuel) andwy jasuns
M apiseas (@ (83) "PAIg BIQWIN|OD OESN 38 SUBJRH '1§
Jajurey % (to3 Ueyiesny (g3) peoy ajgeD pue QESN 1e sua|aH 1S

=R :. 1|0

(am) peoy a|ge pue QESN 1€ SU3aH 15
(gM) AL MIIABH 1B DESN 1B 3scoddeds

Japiy Ajuno) eiquinjo)

14
€
4
T




5

6102 'LE 4090100 9

190f01d SS90y Nsuel] uobaig 1samyioN HYOLIOINNOIMU

- ¥
~ ol
EE:%T

e
Bunsixgy — A

Heayqgnd jeuondQ e
(maN) uonels Jieday ayig |euondQ
(MaN)(s4ax20] Jo syoea Z) Bupjied 2yig e
(maN) 3jpe1d203y ysed] «
(Bunsix3 1o maN) yauag e
(maN) 281e7— usis | dols e

(maN) [2ued uopewsoju| 25eUBIS 191/3YS
(8unsixg Jo MaN) 1213YS

S3LIBA UOISUBWIP
(uoneuiquod/man/3unsix3) Juudiood dois

JuswisaAu] mo/diysiapry ybiH

suswa|] ubisag pasodoliy

uonels Jedsy

a1g [euondo

“dAL Soey axig
ajpeidaday ysed|
(Atessazan 1) 3N

|aued |euoijeuwoju|
13313ys Sunsixy
uBi§ g| dois asdieq

Uy 21|gnd |euondo
(Anwixoud 3sopo ul Funyd) 193415 Bunsixa ou JI) Y31 2|0d «
|euondo - uopels Jieday |ig e
(s4220] JO $x2E4 ) SUjed 19 «
ajpejdaday ysed| e
sayousg 7 e
a8ie7 - udis g) dois
Sunys passmod Asaneq/|aued 1ejos «
|[Sued uonew.oju| 98eusis Ja1ays «
131)3ys 28ue «
L0GX,ZT :suoisuawiq — julidiood dois e

JuswisaAu] ybiH/diysiepiy ybiH

swawa|3 ubisaq pasodoid

g [euondo
youag
(psepuels xz) Jayays
|aued [BUOHELLIO|
sjoeydaday yseay

(Asessanan 41) 3N
“dAL spey g

ugis g| dois 281e7



O

79

L 6l0Z'IEseq0R0 198f044 sS929y 1sues] uobaig 1semylioN HOLDINNODIMU

sidasuon doig ysuels]

|euondo yauag e
[lews — ugis g1 dois «

J31j2Ys- ||BWS, e

97 X T :suoisuawig — juridiood dois

JuswseAu| mo/diysiepry Mo

yousg

|3uRd [BUOIIBWIO)U|
Lﬁ._m;m CIIY

udig g dog ||ews

youag
llews — ugis g dois e
Bunysi pasemod Aseneq/|sued Jejos o
|[Sued uonewJoju| ageusis 4313YS
1913yS pJepuels «
,9T X ,ZT isuoisuawiq — widloo4 dois e

uswisaAu| ybiH/diysiapry moT

\ sswaig ubisag pasodoid

youag

131J3YS piEpUElS

|sued |BUOIIRWLIOW |
udis g doig [jlews




S~
<D

(] 610Z 'LE 489010 8

193[04d $S@992y 1suel] uobaip 1samylioN HOLDIANNOOMU

"uonossIalUl 8} 0] SS820B (Y pue ‘Ue)dys e Buipnjoul sajiusawe Jabuassed ‘no-||nd snq e sepnjoul dojs Jisuel)
pasodoud ay| Juswaroidwi Jo) seniunuoddo Bululensuod ‘aull peodjiel ybialy annoe ue pue og AemybiH ussmiaq
s uoneoo| dojs sy "peod 8y} Jo Japinoys [eAeIb ay) uo snq sy} Joj Jiem siabusssed 'sal)i|ioe) ou sey dojs Bunsixa

8y ‘esooddess ul AL YiABH pue o AemybiH JO UOIjoasIajUl BY) JO JBUIOD JSESYOU 9y} UO pajedo| si L# dois

Jseaypiou Bupjoof ‘eys L dojs °L ainbi4

MBIA J98.4)S 8]6009) - 6L0Z Isnbny

suonipuos Bunsixg omo&%uw.r :mEmu “mmm;toz - punogisapp) @Al YIABH Je ¢S nmsp_m_z ‘.‘w.:_l L# n,_Bw



6 B10Z 'LE 12010

1334
o oz oL [
N

@ uopels nedat ayig [

SI2EIdRI8) YSELL @
FELTETY E—
wod by -

ubys gy dois sng |

‘parresosd pup paasssssd
3G [)Pys UONIE JAYIO 10 13531 BAOIES
40/ PAIBUBISAP JOU 3.0 19y} '$33jA3p
041103 JEL) BUIpnpIXS ‘Swa) BUlISIXF | fyausg 1) 181faYs dOIS SNG

sajoN
GNIDIT JOLS S8

XPW %S/ 9d0jS
Xew %S°1 adojs

Aemanuig

pase dojs sng

U01EI0] BUiSS0.I PAPURILY JO PIYIEW

2IB4IRS BUILIEM JGRIDIISP WP PIIPIUMLL

SUONISHP YIOG XeWw KE} '2oeds Buiny

yfemapis

-
=

198fo1d ssa2oy Nsues] uobaip 1somyrioN HOLIANNOOMU

sideouon doig 1isued]

Japry Aiuno) eiquinjo)
aALIQ Yl|AeH '8 0£SN Je asooddeds - (Gm) L# dois

Moyjad A1ajes ‘aejins Bujurem
arqeioaiap auiop paiesuns isue) (§)

(renpuadiad) dwer qina Isuc) @
pajjamog “iwaed 3uod ujeld I5u0D @
N/EMIPIS DUOI I ISUOD @

(pu3 yemapls) dwies qind 1sL0d @
Bupua qind Isued e
JEUB]S PE3YIAAC

2did wiio3s “B1xa 1331040 pue L3S 9
auyy sef “Bixa pajosd @

xoq jeubys 1snpy @ "61x3 135104d PUE 3A18531Y @

s10132)8p dooj [eubs ISPy 9 SSEIB YIM paas @

NIEMIPIS P2IIMOY Al ‘ABMIALD 15U0D @ uonngysnd ueLsapad piEpURIs ISU0J @ YIPIM - 4206 pUE QN3 ISU0D @
Aemanup (anesb 1suod 9 aod vonngysnd 1suod 9 qn> pIEpUR)S “ISUCD @

STLON AZX

™

i il ..wmoo.nnmum ._.._w_d...b._%m_ NABH #:Em:uww._wm:_. :
E:mw:om%scsz..m.:uc:oemma..cmEau.a_,,w_..r.%_w.,_,.h_



"
e

—\
100fo1d ss8929y lisues] uobaiQ 1samylioN HOLIDINNODIMU 610216 20RO L

‘suoljoasIaUI
2y} 0] $S820. YAy pue ‘Us}jeys e Buipnjoul seniuswe Jabuassed ‘no-jind sng e sapnjoul dojs jisuel) pesodold ay |
uswaAosdwi 1oy senunuoddo Buiulesisuod ‘sull peodjiel Jybiall aaijoe ue pue og AemybiH usamiaq S| UOIEIO|
dois sy Mip/sselb ul Bunybije pue Buipseoq aie siebusssed pue sanijioel ou sey dois usuel) Jseaypou Bunsixa
3y 'SUS|eH 1S Ui peoy ajges) pue gg AemybiH Jo UOI}OSSISUI BY} JO JBUIOD JSESYOU 3y} UO pPaledo| S| g# dois

M8I/ 19843 8]600D) - 8402 AInp Jsea Bupoof ‘ays zZ# dojs 'z ainbly

i T A M SO Sy A

suonipuog Bupsixg SUJaH 1§ - (punogisapy) peoy ajqes pue o¢ Aemybiy 's°n - z# doig



S
s

L B0z Leseqoi0 198f0id $$999y 1sues] uobaiQ 1samyiioN HOLIIANNOOIMU
sydaosuon doig ysuedj

1334
oy 0z oL 0 5 .
F 5 XPUI %S SdOfS -
N NP E°| 2dolS =
Aemaang
ST, . eaJe dois sng
Sraeideanu yvell _Q ajoyuew "B1x3 1331040 pUP dAI353id e
PRIOYY  — woniesoy Gutssos papuziul 10 Py [T 7o i Gixe sasoud pue anseseis (@)
‘pa1aioid pue paasasaid
gt e ﬁ.ﬁ fal ek ...wsuhﬁ LG 384ns BUILIEM 3)qEI2319p SWOP PAEIUNILL won Ay “Goxa sieaoyay (5)
J0) pareubiss) c JEY] 58
[0411103 214011 Buipn|XD Swal Bupsxg “| ubjs @ dois sng L] J3juy *Bax3 12310id pUP ARSI e
= SUONDAHP YI0G "XEW KE°| ‘aIeds Bujuing xoq [eubls “G1x2 1snipy e
(youag 1) 1aiays dois sng . s S1013213p dOO] [RUBIS 1SNIPY e
AR g (DU YIEMAPIS) dUIES GUND IS0 @

dNFDIT JOLS 5718 INTDF T Gugpus qun wsue (62)

s g ot

Japry Aluno eiquinjod

peoy ajqeo 2 0£SN Je SudjeH s - (aMm) z# dois

afod jeubls

“B1xa 1221040 pUP 3531 @

884) 'BIX3 aACLLBY g

aai} ‘Blxa 1331040 pup anasald @

sseits qym poos (b)
Wb IyBlay “Bay

.9 B2y “xew
JIBIDUBY Y1M [1EA BUILIPIAL 1SUOD @

asuoy (D)

ajod vonnqysnd “1suo) e

MOjjaA Aiages ‘aoepns BupIEm
2jGEIIRIIP FLIOP PAIRIUNLL ISUOD o

(1B pUadiad) duies ging "1Sue) @
pajemoq “iamed Juo2 weyd Isug) @
NIEMBPIS JU02 D ISUOD @

YIPIM ,OF - 221N5 pue qIn3 Isued) @

SILON ATX




o

193f01d ssa99y 1usues] uobaig 1samylioN HOLOIANNOOIMU 5102 '1e 80000 2|

‘suoljoaslalul
3y} 0} $S900B YOy pue Jsyeys e Buipnpul senjuswe Jebuassed ‘Ino-|jnd snq e sepnjoul dojs Jisuel; pasodold ay |
quaweanocidwi Joj seiunuoddo Buiuressuod ‘aul| peodjiel Jybial) anjoe ue pue og AemybiH usamiag s| UoONEDIO]
dols ey ‘Mip/ssesb ul Bunybije pue Buipieog ale siabuassed pue sanijioe) ou sey dojs Jisuel) jsesypou bunsixs
3y ‘susjeH 1S Ul peoy 8jgen pue og AemybiH 10 UoYasISlUI BY} JO JBUI0D }SEMUINOS BY} UO paledo) s| ¢ dols

MBIA 18841S 8iboor) - gLoe Ainp 1samypnos Bupjooy ‘alis g# dojs ‘g 84nbi-

i

suopipuog Bunsix3 SUdJaH 1S - (punogise3) peoy jqes pue og AemybiH 's'n - ¢4 dois



e
p

O — 19afload ssa29y Hsues] uobaiQ 1samylioN HOLOINNOIMU
sidaouoyn dois ysuea]

o (U4 oL o

N Japry Alunog eiquinjo)
® e B (83) peoy ajqes B 0¢SN & SUJAH IS - ¢4 doig

WRW FS{ adofs =

adid wiio)s ‘O1xa 132]04d pup 2435304 9

Aemanug
spado soqy Grxa paiosy (L3)
wonels yedas ayig
e ealp dois sng Bty sa1EM Gixa 1391048 @ adoys 212.3u03 I5U0D @ Y vz

dadad Moy Bs ‘2381405 By
wpeadesasyes @ ouyy se5 Gxo 1oroig (53 ajod peusis ‘Syxe pajoid pur swssait (Z2) oigeresap o poreuni 1560 ®

yors ayig o UG/IBI0] BUISSOI? PAPURILY IO POYIEN ] .
‘parseiond pue parasasd i » soqup “Bexa 9300 pue ansosass (59) ajod Ay G1x3 13910:d pue ansssai (12) (ouesech duses qina 1su0y (@)

G JEYS UONIE JBYI0 JO ‘1358 1BNOLISS 47 p od ) o0sd adsad) d k
o) paIeutIsap Jou 218 81 'S3NIP 3284115 BUjUIEM 3/qEI2212D BWIOP PaIEIL xoq Ayan Guxe ssnipy (19) a10d 5y Bixa 2auo1d pu swsesaig. (&) rnoypuadsec) duses qun 2su03. (L)
104003 S1yyea) BupnyaX3 'SRy BUISIXT ubys gy dois sng o x0q feubys Bixa 150fpy e ubjs "61x3 1251040 PUE 3AIBS3id @ Ppajasoq “awaed w03 ueld I5U0 @

‘saloy

SUOIBHP Y10 XPW FS| ‘3I0dS Buping ubjs 2120/3y e S5BIB Y1 poas e ypemapis w03 g asuor (v)
(sayouag 2) sayays dois sng . o aj0d by aresopzy (OF)  wey H, vonnqysnd uepisapad 1suo @ IO OF - 13uRB pUB QN3 I5U0T @
JUEIpAY “B1X3 132104 PUP SNIISld e /o uonnqysnd Jsuc) e Q4n3 pIEPUE]S I5UOT @

ON7FDIFT OIS 518 aNFDTT STLON AN




OO
pse.

198[0id sS920y lsuel] uoboeiQ 1semylioN HYOLDINNOIMU 6102 'l 0a0R0 )

"SUOI}D8SIS)UI BY] 0] SS8008 Y(Y pue Ua)ays e Buipnjoul saiuswe Jabuassed ‘Jno-|ind snq e sepnjoul dojs jisuel)
pasodoid ay| "sanljioe} a|qIss200e YV PJEPUEBISNS INg Y|emapis pue Japnb ‘gino e sey dojs jisuely Bunsixs ay|
‘'SUBISH °1S Ul pJeAsjnog eiquinjo) pue 0 AemybiH Jo uoiloasialul 8y} JO JBUIOD }S8MYINOS 8U} U0 pajedo| S| ¢4 dois

MaIA Jeauis aiboony - gLoe Ainp jsemynos Bupjoo| ‘sys p# do)s 't 8inbiH

suonIpuo) Bupsixa susjoH ‘18 - (PUNogyse3) pieAsinog eIqINIOD PUE o KemyBiy ‘s - v dois



e
e

Gl 6102 ‘L€ 1240100 199loigd ssads9oy 1sues] commho 1IsamylioN MOLIOANNOODMU
x B oa e sydaouog dois ysuedg
Japry Aluno) eiquinjo)

N Aemang
s
sy — (g3) pAIg eIqUIN|OD B 0ESN & SUSJRH 1S - T dois
ayarida3a4 ysesl .
Ani k B

R - R O ORI P dopyupads anoway @ #chhﬁn ﬂm._h..w. .nw%hwwﬁﬁb m.u.g_saw
ajod 1617 .‘. opns Bl e AR S auyf 21413313 BIX3 1331044 @ 2jod Jyby *bixa 1381010 pur 2AIdSRIY e (Enipuadiad) dwes gind Isuod @
ubis qf dois sng l auif suoydata) “Bixa 1321014 e aaJ) Bixa anoway 9 pajjamog “waed uod UEd ISUOD @
2 1eys %mﬂ“ﬂb&ﬂ nmnshﬂﬂnnu.ﬂ..n SUOPIANP YIOG XU %§°[ '9Ieds Buiuing auy seb "Bixa 121044 @ 555245 yym pass e YIEMIPIS U032 'D'd ISU0D @
J0j pareubisap Jou aue jeYy) 'sadmap (yauag 1) saiays dols sng . 13jup *B1xa 131040 pup aAsesalY @ 1 By BAy HYIPIM LOF - J2INE PUE GIND ISU0T @

i gyl . 2 2yB13Y Xep

IR PSR B, tﬁ.ﬁ«%ﬁh VERERE. B Gun3 "B1xa 12210 puE aAII52I4 9 WEIPUBY UM JfEs BUIIEIZS "ISUOD @ qun3 piepuEls 15u0 @
ONFDTTdOLS 5718 [(/VEREN] STLON ATN

¢

S e——
e —————— ———

T T



-

6L0Z 'LE 12400 9l

199f01d sS9920y ysues] uobaiQ 1samylioN HOLOINNOD

‘0¢ AemybiH o1 uinjas pue dois pasodold ay} ybnouayy dooj e Busjdwoo ‘dooT 3sa19)|iH ojuo Aemybiy sy}

JJO win} [|Im sng 8y "sepesb Bunsixa ay) 0} Buipusassep sdwel gind yim eale Bunybije pue Buipleoq pesiel e sspnjoul
dojs jisuel) paroidwi ay| "uoneoo| Aemybiy-4o auo ojul sdojs punogjsem pue punogjses sy} auiquiod pjnom dols
usuel) pasodold ay| ‘snqg ay) Joj yem o0} siabusassed 10} 9oeds pajeubisep ou pue eale Jno-||nd ou si 848y} :0g
AemyBiH uo ale sdojs punogisam pue punogisea Jisuel) Bunsixe ay ) 'sdojs Jayjo }sow ayjijun ‘waishs Aemybiy sjels
ay] uo jou si dois siy| “eddeuy ul dooT 3salol|iH pue o¢ AemybiH jo uonoasisiul 8y} Jo 1sem isnl pejeso) si g¢ dols

1sem Bunjooy ‘ejis 9# dojs G 8inbi4

/102 Joquieoaq

=y
X
+
ol

_m..
suopipuo) Bunsixg

eddeuy] - 94 doig



Ll 6L0Z ‘L€ J2GoR0
1333
08 ov U4 0

N

SE

Py APRIS S2YLIN ‘PaAOLIaI 3G 01 ARV

‘sasodind
Jayjo Ave Jo ‘Bupiiured ‘uojonnsuos
46j pasn aq jou jjeys pue 'abueya o
oafqns st Ao sasodind uoijensny o
umoys st somauy Buipyng jeroiawwod
UL 'QLOZ WGk ABYY UO payuugnS pue
odnaug ubjsaq sojuojoal Aq psanpaid
Buiping [ejosawiiios auy oy suejd jo jas
MBINaI 9508 BY) JO (uB|d BulpEID) |'ED
Je8ys woy packs] sem g pue 'saoeds
hs.ﬁmn_ ‘sufno Bupyng [eruswiwos sy 'E
‘BIE/NIE 3G Jou Aew pue
1ENIE30U03 5| LMOYS Buy Byl “12afoud siy)
404 Pa123]{03 SEM 1BY) ABAINS pUnOIb Jo
Arepunog ay1 spaaaxa jjif Jo 201 34l T

‘paraiosd pue paniasasd
3G [PYS YONIE IO JO 13531 (EACIAL
J0] pareubissp Jou 24e IEy] 'sadnap

242 OIS 3Y1 JO YLION PAIEIO| S33.1) OMI SYL F  [0IN03 JlY4el1 BUIPNiIXE ‘swial BUNSIXT “f

sajoN

wopls yedal 2yi9
320103231 ysesy
yaed 218

2fod 1ybr7

ubis g/ dois sng

(4au3g 1) J33/2ys dols sng I

ON3DIT40LS 518

nd | @ e

-

193foid ssa29y nsuel] uobaip 1samyuioN HOLIINNOOMU
s1daouo)n dois ysued]

10181 uoielodsuel | aadwg Jesung

XEW %S SdofS - Aemaniig
XEW F§'| adofs - G R
UOIEI0) BUISSOL3 PAPUBIS JO PAYIEW

28L4nS BUILIEM JJGEIISISP JLIOP PITEIUNIL
SUOJIIIP YI0q “XBW K§"] ‘9pds Buiwin)

wemapls

a1 “Gaxa anowsy (3N)
SSBIB YIM paas 9

eddeuy - 9# dojg

MOJjoA A13jes ‘arepins Buiuiem
ajqer3312p autep pasesun 1su03 (6)

(Enapusdiad) duwes qina 15U @
oy 1swea (5)

wemaprs suos 2y usuy ()

YIPIM & ~ JBUNGE puE qIn3 J5u0) @
STLON ATY



S

193[0id $S399y 1suel] uobaiQ 1samylioN YOLIDINNODIMU 610z 'lgse0o00 gl

"goe)deoal ysed) e pue ‘Bunybi) ays ‘syoel ayiq ‘Youaq e Js)ays e ‘abeubis meu ‘eale Ino-|ind snq
e sepnjoul dojs Jisues pasodoud ay| "youaq |jews e pue ease Bunybije/Buipieoq yjemapis 8)ai0uod e sey dojs Jisuel)
Bunsixa 8y "uojusiep) ul sue ubisug jseayinogs pue Lol AemybiH Jo J8uUl0D JSESYLIOU Y] U0 pajedo] si /# dois

MaIA 198.)S 816005 - §L0Z 41890J20 jseayiou Bupjoo] ‘eyis J# dojs "9 8.nbi4

e

suonIpuon mc_um__xm_ uojualiepy — (1aulo9 yseayuon) o:m.__cm_mcm um.um_::om pue ::‘ xmi:m_: SN - 14 n__Em



6l 610Z 'LE J2gojoQ

1334
or oz oL 0
N
® uopeis yedas ayig '3
3p3pida3as YSBLL @
yoes ayg [—
‘pa122104d pur pansasaid
24 [fEYS UORIL J2YI0 SO 353U JEAOWIIL ajod 14617 .*.
10} paieubisap Jou aJE 18y) ‘sadinap b o —
JO11U03 3yes Bpayx3 ‘SRl Bunsxg | s g dowssng. M

510N

(soyouag ) isyays dois sng

aNAD47d0LS 5118

XeW %54 adofs
XeW %S| adojs

Aemanug

2ase dois sng

B30 BUISSOL? PAPUBIU 1O PRYIEN

238LiS BUJLIEM JGEIIIIAP FUIOP PIIEIUNLL

SUDN2BNP YIOG XEW K5 ‘@Ieds Bujung

AEM3PIS

o,
g

198flo1d ssa20y ysues] uobaig 1samylioNn HOLIOINNOOIMU

sideouon dois 1suedg
101181 Uonellodsuel) aadw3 j@sung
uojuaiiepp - /# doys

Jafut “Bixa anoway @

adid wiIols 15u03 @ yjemaprs ‘B1xa aAoway @

adyd wiiois "Bixs Aoy @ sseI6 Yum paas e
sopr 15w (D) N O)

ando soqy “Gixe p2iot ([5) Aemapss w03 3 wsued (¥)
Fuy sarem B1xa 1391000 9 413 pIEPUR)S *)SUOD) e
SALON AFX




—
L 3

199fo1d ssas9y Hsuesl uobaip 1semylioN YOLIINNODMU 61021800000 0F

‘Repp oloed pue oL AemybiH Jo uonoasiajul

pazijeubis ay) 1e sdwel qInd 9|qISSe22e Y PUE ‘UOI}0aSIS}uUl 8U} 0} UO[O8UUOD 3|EMaPIS B ‘saljiusWie Yyim esle
Bunybije pue Buipieoq ‘eale Buniem JoBuassed e sepnjoul dols pasodoud ay] ‘Lol AemybiH uo sBuissoio uelysepad
payJew;panoidwi Jou uoneso| dojs Juaind ay} e Juasald syjemapis ou ale a1ay] ‘ease padeospue| e ul bunybije pue
BuipJeoq aie siabusssed pue sjuswaroidwl ou sey ‘dojs mau pasodoid sy} Jo ypou 388} 00 ‘dols jsuel) Bunsixe
3yl ‘Heysesn) ul Aepp ouloed pue Lol AemybiH jo uonoasisiul 8y} JO JBUJI0D JSOMULIOU 8U) Uo pajedo] si g# dois

MaIA 18841S 81009 - 8L0Z 1990120 Jsemypiou bunjoo| ‘ejs g# dojs 4 a4nbiH

- v > _ By, :

- - ' | _ .

- D) _
5

suopipuo) Bunsixg Heytess - Kepy aytoed pue Lo| Aemybiy "s'n - g4 doig



1z 6102 ‘L€ 12000

1334
o oz oL i
b e |
N
m uopes yyedal ayig @
paeidazas yseif Q
yoerayg  —
‘payaaoud pue pansasard
29 EYS LONIE JAYIO JO 13521 |BAOLUS 30 1ybr7 ‘.
40] paleubisap Jou aJe iyl 'sajnap
04U JEn Bupniaxs 'sway unsix3 | ubys gr dois sng Il
530N
A .

ANFDITdOLS 5719

wew gy sdofs

Xew %<y sdojs

Aemarrg

rase dois sng

UOIEI0) BUISS040 PIPURIUY 1O PRYIEN

3B/InS BUILIEM 3/qIIDIEP SWOP PIIEIUNLL

SUDNIBNP YI0G XEW K5} ‘@eds Bujuiny

Yemaps

>
N§

109fo1d $s820y Usues] uobaip 1samyioN YOLDINNODIMU

4By "BIx8 123104d PUE 8A185344 e
J2U1qe3 (eubys "BIX3 1321040 PUE 3AI25014 9
By ‘Bixa aredofay e

sideouon doig 1isuesy

101181 Uoneuodsuel] aadwg jJesung

MeyJees - g dojg

MOJfaA A12JES ‘@8NS BUILIEM
qrIIBIEP WIOP PAIEIUNL) ISUDT @

(13 espd) dwies qind ISuoy °

o asvoz (5)

wemapts oues g wsws (¥)
wipm 5z - somnB pue qina asu0y (Z)
QH:U }\gﬂ.—n- ISUo3 e

S4L Y

13yuf “61x3 133040 pue aasesazs (§3)
x0q Jeubls “61xa 1sipYy e

201 adesspuey 5ue3 (35

(pue yumapyss) dwes quna 3suo3 (55

C/ eubIs
ﬁkvh&%&h&n&u&&%& @

ubis "61X3 1321010 pUP 3AII531d @

—7

‘Heylean ul Aepp dI0Bd UM UO(10asIalul 3y} Jo yUou
3 s g g My - AR o B Y, |
1933 006 L0} ABMUBIH 'S’ PUNOGUINOS U Pajeso) i g dojs



6102 ‘LE 1290120

193loid SS099y lisuea] uobaiQ 1samylioN HOLIIANNOIMU

‘'sdwel N 9|qIsSa22. YAV UNM UOI}08sIS)ul 8U) O} UOIID8UU0D ¥|emapIs

e pue ‘saniuswe ‘eale Bunybie/buipieoq a|qissaooe QY Ue ‘Ino-|ind snq e sapnjoul dojs jisues) pasodoud sy "eale
Bunybije pue Buipieoq a|gissaooe YV UB @pn|oul Jou saop JI ‘Janamoy ‘ejoeldadal ysed) pue ‘ebeubis ‘Jajays e

sey dojs jisuel; Buisixe ay | "epIseas Uly anuaAy pue Lol AemybiH jo 1aulod 1Samy}ou 8y} uo pajedol s| 6# dois

M3IA 198413 81B00D) - §L0Z 418G0JO0 1sam Bupjooy ‘eys 6# dojs g 8Jnbi4

£k

suoppuog Bupsixg  apiseag -y anuany pue Lo} AemyBiH ‘SN - 6# doi



€z 6102 'LE 1290100

1334

ot [ir4 oL 0
I |
N
YONEIS UEdes axIg ®
20ada32s yseiy @
PE L —
soden
PIIRICIT pUE pIrIFSIIT ubis gy dois sng l

G [JEYS UOHIE JDYIO SO J3SBL PAOWSL
404 PRIRUBISIP JOU 348 JBY) 'S3JIN3P
104103 J1yjesi Buipnfaxa 'Swal Buusixd "l (saysuag z) sayays dois sng l
53l0N

ONFIFTdOLS 5NF

: .. (o

v
2 UL L

-
s

=

e
i \

i b gl T O

NEW KSY B00)S
wew g5° 2do)s

Aesmantic

ease dojs sng

3010l WIS 123104d PUP 3131 e
2djd Ase)ues 133)0.d PUR 3A1353Id e
sjoyuEN 500 @

ad)d Wi0)s 15103 @

adidl uiiols “61x8 anoway @

18 1500 @

xXog Ajpan Bixa 132)0.d pur 3A13s2.d @
auyy 1318m ‘BIxd 133104 e

HONEIO) BUISSOLD PIPUBILE 4O PANIEW
2I8INS BUILIEM BJGEIIZIBP SWOP PIIEIVNLL

SUONIBNP YOG "XPUW K| ‘32eds Buning

yemapis

i\ﬂ

O

108floid ssa29y Msues] uobaig 1samyrioN HOLDINNOOIMU

sidesuon doig 1isueu]
101181 Uoneuodsuel] aadwg Jesunsg

apiseas - 6# doig

auly $B "B1x3 1331014
@ s5ei6 yym paas (o)
12 Bixa snoway  (£5)
MOYaA A)ayes ‘2oeuns Gupusem
yIemapis pasamoy Alng 'Aemantip 1suod @ BIQEIISIEP SUICP PAIEILINI] ISU0T

(13/fe1ed) duies qin3 I5u03 o

aov asue (5)

JEMIpIS U0 ‘T “ISU0 @

YIDIM b7 — JINE PUP QN3 15U0D @
qun3 pIEpUELS 15003 @

STLON A3

820109301 YsEN "B1Xe BAOWBY e
J2)2ys snq "B1xa aA0wRY @

aum AN BIX3 1921040 PUE AIFSBIY 9
wespAy "B1x3 1221040 puE anasaid e
a(od yypan *Gixa 132304 pue ansosasd (12)

- ...mn_mmm.mh_.r.( SNUSAY UM UOI1D3SISIUI
mctmu:_‘o_.sm;:m_._._...wjE.:Es;omcoE._.So_m_mgew



6102 'LE Jaqoj0 14

198014 SS2929y Usues] uobaiQ 1samyrioN HOLDINNOOIMU

‘panoldwl Apuaiino jou si (uoneoso| dois punoquiiou pasodoid ayy) OL# dois

uswubije lel) Auaquowes Jledl-ylim-|ied, 8ininj sy} a)epowilodoe

0} pepuajul ate subisap dojs pasodoud ay] ‘sdwel qInd 8|qIssedde YV pue ‘uoijoasialul 8yl 0] UOIIaUU0D Y[emapls e

‘saniuawe dojs ysuely ‘eate Bunybije/Buipieoq ‘Buniem Jabuassed pasies e apnjoul sdols yiog 10| AemybiH 0] 1sem pasow aq ||Im
sdos 1suel; pasodoud sy ‘uoneoo| dojs sy} 8sn sasng punogqyinos pue punoquyluou ayj Ylog :8nusAy pig YiNnos pue 184S Joyouy
JO JBUJo9 JSeMUIoU By} Je paleoo) si do)s Bunsixa sy ‘yoeag Aemexo0y Ul SNUSAY pig Uinog pue oL AemybiH jo uonoasiajul

ay} Jo ‘Ajannoadsal ‘sisulod (PUNoOgUINos) 1S9MUIN0S pue (punoquuou) }SeayYINos sy} Uo pajedo| ale |L# doig pue QL# dois

MaIA Jo8d)S 816009 - 8L0Z 48G0J00 MaIA 18843 816009 - 8L0Z 4890300
jsamypnos Bupjoof ‘(punoqyinos) ays LL# dois 04 e4nbi ynos Bunjool ‘(punoqypiou) eys o L# dojs ‘6 @inbiH

-

suompuo) Bupsixg suopipuo) Bunsix3

yoeag Aemeyo0y - (punoqyinos) anuaay pig ynos pue Lo} Aemybiy 's°'n - Li# dois pue (punoqyiioN) anuaAy pig ynog pue Lol Aemybiy 's'n - 014 dois



=
&

19afo1d $S9829y Nsues] uobaig 1samyrioN JYOLIINNODMU
« B a a I s1doosuon doig 1isuel]

N At ® 1013SIg uoneuodsuel| AlunoD yoowe||iL

T4 6L0Z 'LE 5390R0

s aAY pig S Je yoeag Aemeyjooy - LL# B 014 dois
voREIS HEdDL 3Yig [ ]
. pase dojs sng
P © a2eidadsd ysesd

3G jfeys stmﬂuuﬂﬂﬂh_%h”\hﬂﬂﬂﬂsﬁ yoes ayig — UOEID} BUISS01I PAPURILS JO PIYIEN § Bujpus g Jsuo) 9
10 pRaeubisep Jou IE 1Y) ‘seAnap J a01d wiols "B1x3 1931040 PUE AIBSIId 9 o B e s @ (1oyesed) duwes gun> 1suoD O
1041103 3R} BUIPpNIIXD "SWA) n&t..&. J spod 1461 *. adid wuois “61xa pusixy 9 (Epn3IpUadsad) dwes gina Jsuod @

:sal0M 2384415 BUILIEM 3/GRIISIZP SUIOP PAILILNIL 204 AnB “Bixa 1321040 PUE SnI8SEI 9
ubjs gy dois sng g auly 340133/3 "61X8 139104 @ dov st @

SUONIANP YI0G "XEU K] 'a3eds Buriny

Buyf Fuoydasa) “61X3 123104 e

sjod Ajjjan G1xa 1321040 pup 153L] @

H(EM3PIS IU0I I ISUOD @

sses6 yym poas (o)

MOyaA A1ajes ‘a3p)ins BurIem
3/RI2213 AUIOP PAILIUNL) "ISLOD @

YIPI B Z - SONUNE PUE GIN3 “ISUCD @
qinz piepue)s suoJ @

STLION ATX

xaq Ayypn pes 30104 pue snszsesg (§3)
auy so1em Gixa avioty (33)

(yauag ¢ - gs)
qousq { - gN) s8y3ys dols sng

ONFDIT OIS 5718

IeH AuD je S| uoneoo| sy} o} ammmo“o dojs m_._;m_xm ay ._.g
>m>>mv_uom ul [leH AnD Jesu w::m>< PIES LOL >m_s:a__._vw ne

 ramaloe

:o uﬂmuo_ ale G::on:u:omv L} dois pue G::on;:o& nEw




* 5

B1DZ 'LE 4390100

193l0id ssa2oy Usued] uobaig 1semyioN HOLDINNODIMU

‘uswubije le] Auaquowies |len-yiim-|iel, aininj ayj s}epowwodde o0}

papusiul a1e subisep dojs pesodoid ay] “sdwes gind 8|qISSe29. (Y PUE ‘UOND8sIa)ul 8U) O} UOIID3UU0D Y[emaplis B ‘sapiuswie dojs
Hsuel) ‘eale Bunybije/buipieoq pue Buijiem Jabuassed pasies e apnjoul sdojs Jisuel) pasodoud oy Jeydse Bunsixe uo Jybie pue
pJeoq siebusssed pue sanluswe 10 sjuswaroidwil ou aaey suoieoo| dojs Bunsixs ay| "yoeeg Aemexo0oy Ul sNUsAY pig YLUON pue
L0 AemyBiH Jo uonoesialul 8y} Jo ‘AjeAnoadsal ‘siaulod 1SeMYHOoU pue Jaulod }JSeaylUou 8y} uo pajeosol aie ¢L# dois pue ZL# dolig

MBIA Joal)S 8j6009 - 8L0Z 4890J90 MaIA Je84jS 816009 - 8L0Z 489000
jseayjnos Bupjool ‘(punoquyinos) g L# dojs 'z, einbiH jseaypiou Bupyoo] ‘(punoqyiou) Z L dojs “LL 8inbiH

suonipuo) Bunsixg suopipuog Bupsixz

yoeag Aemexjooy ~ (punoqunog) anueay pig yHoN pue Lo} AemybiH s'n - g4 dois pue (punoqyuoN) anuaay pig YuoN pue Lo} Aemubiy 's'n - ZL# dois



LZ 610Z 'LE 420010

4334
ot oz oL o
N
uopels Hedat y)g [ ]
2y2e1da331 Y5ELL @
pajaa0.d pue pansasasd yaBs BYIg —
3G 1BYS UONIE I3YIO 10 13531 (EAOLAI
0] PaILuBISap Jou e Jey) 'S2IAap aj0d 617 l%.
1041403 J4yjen BuipnpXa 'Sl BUNSIXT |
5a10N ubiis gi dois sng ]

(4avag | - gs)
(42uaq | - gn) sayeys dois sng

AaNFD37 di

T e ——

‘Xeul %5/ adojs

Xew ') adojs

Aemang

pauE dois sng

UGITEI0] DLISS01 P3pURILL 1O PRYIEW

38405 BUILIEM B|qRIIAIEP BUIOP PRIEIUNLL

SUONIBAP Y10q "XBW K§°( 'S BuNLInL

HEMIPIS

e
X$D

190(04g ssa@22y ysues] uobaig 1semylioN YOLIDINNODIMU
s1deouoyn doig lisuedj

- JouISIq uoneuodsuel) Aluno?) yoouwe||i|

B aAY pIg N Je yoeag Aemexooy - ¢| % Z1# dols

xoq jeubis ix2 sy (LF)

sasuyd "Bixa isnfpy @

YIPIM ZE ~ J2LNG puE qin3 ISUO3 ®
BLpua qind “1Suo) @

pueyjoq Bixa 139i01d pue anasarg (L2
ajod Ayan Brxa 1321010 pur aniasaid (12)
aa4) ‘BIX3 anowsy 9

9247 "BIX3 178100 PUP ariasaly @

adjd wio)s “B1xa 1331010 PUP AI3Sald e
2did Areyues 133104d pue aniasald e

2did weis "6ixa puaix3 g

uj) aueydasal "BIXa 1331044 e

Hoyuew Blx3 1323040 puP aAIPsald e
x0q A B1x3 138104 pUE 3AI9S8ld 6
uyf 1o18M “BIXS 13010/d e

s3jut “Bixe 1231040 pue snsasasd (79

apest paysuy o1 xoq Aan “ixa ssafpy (13)

sseab yam paas (b1)

MOjjaA A19Jes 'a3epns Bujuiem
JQEIINNSP AUOP PAILIUNY] ISUOD @

(LE{AXPUILISG) dLIEs qIND JSUCT @
aov asu0d (5)

WEMBPIS U0 "D ISUOD @

LIPIM 47~ 23NE PUE QU3 ISUOD @
QU3 pAEPUEIS ISUCT @

STION ATY

[y emanenal

Feeteletetel|




=)
L3

198f01d s$9@29y ysuel] uobaig 1samylioN HOLDIANNODMU BL0Z'1E9QOP0 8T

‘Lol AemybiH Jo apis alsoddo sy} 03 Buissolo e pue ‘dwel gind 3|qISsa29e YOV Uk 0}

UON23UUOD ¥[EMBPIS B ‘Safjuswe yum eale Bunybije pue ‘Buipieoq ‘Buiyiem Jjebuessed pasies e sapnjoul dojs jisue)
pesodoud ay| ‘sselb pue uip ul Bunybije/Buipieoq ale siebuassed pue saijioe} 8|qISSeo0k J0 soljluswe ou sey dois
usuel) Bunsixs syl ‘ogsH Ul aue] ogaH yinos jo 1samisnl Lo AemybiH jo apis yinos sy} Buoje payedo| si 7| dois

MJA 1904)S 86005 - 8L0Z Ae jses Bupjoo] ‘p L4 dOJS '€ inblg

suonipuod Bunsixg 0goH — aueT 0qaH ynos pue Lo} KemyBiH 's'n - 14 doig



i
=
67  BLOZ L€ 8400 199foid ssa29y nsuesf uobaig 1samylioN HOLOIANNOIMU
. e s1daouoyn doig lisued]

N w g5y sds 191181 uoneuodsuel] Aluno?) oowe||iL
KEW K5
s 0gaH - 14 dois
Aemang . .
pase dois sng
uonEIS JEda) BY1§ [ ]
e —— spedaas ysei, @ wOuEIO| BUSS0I> PAPUBNY 40 PAYIEN 2au3) “Bxa 1331010 pue saseserd (k) wa h_n_.i ﬁhmﬂ@% _m.._“wuuu ®
M/Y BupIsxe Jo sy yoiaylg  — y (Xew b =3) .
:ﬂ&uﬁg&ﬁﬁﬁﬂ el IEHINS BUHIEA 3)qEIITIOP FUIOP PRIEIUNIL a2 e ey oygesien”2su03 () mmarpuacsa) dues qun3 sua3 (L)
reuopEp unsgroossng ol adic s 6xa wsicsd pue owsssatd (E3) Supue quns 15003 (E2) o asuey (3)
2q jfeys es..uuﬁmaﬁuuu&n\%ﬂ.nwﬂuwﬂ SUOIIRIP YIOG XPW K5°| ‘8Ieds Bupuiny auyf auoydafal "GIxXa 128104 @ MBij pue ajod Ayjin B3 1321040 PUT IS @ WEM3PIS 2U03 I ISUOT @
10j paIEuBISap 10U 1T 1EY1 'SIAAIP dt wy B)xa 13a101d puE 1S ubIs ‘BIX3 anowsy YIPIM OF - J3NAE pup GInd “Isu0)
(D403 J1YyBi) BUIPnIoXa ‘swal Bupsixs | fuaangiil s dors Ay . yremapis | : 4 e @ 9 i @
sy xoq Ayyn 1saipy a SSEIB yum pads 9 quna prepuels 1su0) e
GNFDFTdOLS 57719 anNiDI7 STLON AT

s

|

aUE" 0gaH S 1e8U || AEMUBIH 'S’ PUNOGUHOU UO Pateao) Si 41 dois




—

=)

199f04d ss999y lisuei] uobaig 1semylioN HOLDINNODIMU 6102°'1E 13000 0F

‘dwel guno 8|qIssenoe Y Ue pue Yemapls Bunsixa 0} UooauU0D ylemapis ‘eale Bunybije/buipieoq

pue Buniem Jabuassed pasies e sapnjoul (uoneso] dois Buisixa ay) jo 1sam Apybis) dois ysuely pasodoud ay| "aAlLQg
epuemMy @deD pue 19a.1S Jap|y 10 Uoi1Dasiaiul 8y} Jeau 18a41s ay) wodj Jybije pue pJeoq siebusssed saljiuswe ou
sey dojs Jisuel) Buisixe syl A0 ouoed Ul 8AlIQ epuemiy] ade) jo 1sam )snl }19a11s Jap|y uo pajedo| si GL# dois

MBIA Jo8.4S 8lboon - £10Z Jsnbny 1s9m Bupjoo] ‘GL# dojS k| 8inbiH

suopipuog Bupsix3 F310 94198 — onQ EpUEMY 8de) PUE jeeS J9PIY - 614 doig



B
-

LE  6L0Z LE 9GO0 198lo1d ss922y usuels] uobaiQ 1samylioN HOLIANNOOIMU
e B a s sidaosuog doig 1suesy
N 101181 uoneuodsuel] Ajuno yoowe||iL

voyeis wedat g wNew K52 2dols -

@ —— TR Ay3 syioed - 14 doig

pase dojs sng s
Kew ¥§°| 9005 e e

L
apoe1daal Ysels @

P J— wopeao) Buyssos papuay Jo payew |7 sjur Gux 33i0ud pue snissag (73)

b7 =
oy .*. 22BLNS BUIUIEM 3JGRIIBIBP SWOP PAJPILMLL ¥ (Pu3 3{eM3pPLS) dutes qund I5uo) 9
ujs g dos sng B aov asuoz (B)

“pazaosd pue parsasasd . -y i 3 ey
2 BYS UONIP 4310 10 ‘19531 (EAGWAL SUONIINP YIOG “XeW KS'| ‘2oeds Bunny | WEMIPIS U0 "3 15107 @

4oy paipubisap Jou 24 18yl 'sa2jAap YIPIM B ~ 13N pUE N3 15U0D

10511103 314520 Bulpnyoxa ‘suiay Bupsied | (R Bl gy g . Ueepls " 2
ghaii qun> prepurys asued (1)

ONFDITdOLS 5719

%

- A5 ujooui 0} u_DoEm___[_.”EE,,.uSE ,
sNq ¥ aur AjunoD yoowe(|LL au} 10 Inds € o UONEJO| punole-uiny
3U1 S17] and UED|ISd JO YINoS ‘AlID I9Bd Ul 8ALQ BpuBmy adeD

UMM UOND3SIB]UI BU) JEdu uwuoﬂ.wecu_,‘—cro_uﬂmog w_m_‘.amww RN
: . o % W § \ e i, il YA



=5

6102 ‘L€ 429010 FA

199(0ud $S@99y Hsues] uobaig 1samylioN YOLIINNODMU

‘uoijoesialul ay) 1e dwel gino a|qIsseooe
ue pue ‘eate Bunybije pue Buipieoq ‘Buniem Jabusssed ajgissaooe A|ny e sepnjoul dois Jisued) pasodoud ay ] ‘juasald
Apusiing si yjemapis e Ajuo ybnoy) 1e8a.1s ay} 0} JN0 paAow uaaq aouls sey dols ay) ‘Hew|(ep Jo Juol) sy} 1e Ajjeulblio

sem dojs ysuel) Bunsixs ay| "HodmapN ul Lol AemybiH jo 3sam isnf1984)s YIGZ ISOMUHON Uo pajedo) si gL# dois

MBIA J884)S 816009 - ZL0OZ AInp

ypou bupfooy ‘gL# dojs 'GL ainbi4

S bl

suoypuo) Bupsixa YMON HodMaN - L0} ABMUBIH SN PUE 19218 LG JSamupIoN — gL dojs



£€ 6L0Z 'LE 439010

REEE]
or 0z oL a

N

ey xoidde sy pue

EIE[ JOIXE] AJUNGT U[OIUT WO PAZEL] SEM
UMOYS AUl Bif| ‘PIARAINS 10U SEM MY BUIsIX] 7

pa1Iiosd pur pansasaud

84 JPYS VOLIE 19410 JO ‘1850 (EAOWSS

10) pa1pubisap Jou 18 Jey] 'SINAIP
1041005 44N Buipnoxa 'swal Bupsixy “{
“s810N

UoiIELS HEAS) 318
8/2eIdlaI8] Y5eLL
yaes ayig

ajod 1617

ubys gy dois sng

®
)
.

]

(vayauag z)
Jaijays dois sng

ON3FDITJOILS 5718

=%

199l01d ssa2oy usuel] uobaip 1samyrioN HOLDOINNOIMU

vew s adojs -
XEW %5°( adojs =S

Aemanpg
ra.p dOIS SNg
UOEI0[ BLYSSOLI PAPUBIUY IO PINIEW

22805 BUiLIEM 31 P BLWOP ‘

SUBIINP YI0G XEW 5| ‘23edls Bupuing

L i s i

sideouo)n dois lisues]
Hsuel| AjunoD ujoour

YHON Hodma - gL# dojg

55246 yym pass e

MOYaA A1ages ‘aepins Bujulem
yquIIaIap WP PAIEdUns) ISUOD @

(ajesed) dwes qind 15U o

d2V Isuod @
N/BMAPIS U032 d ISUOD @
auy Larem "B1xa 133104d
wbis ‘Bixa 123104 pUE aRSId 9 YIPIM  p@ = 22005 pUE QN3 “15U0D @

STION ATX

5:?;:9:%Eoﬁwam_.:o:mm.._.m
3 B d Jew|eAA By} 0 YyInos pajedo| si gl do
IS MIUC 0l Bubied Lewlizm Syl o ing: pajesol 131 dois



e

103fo1d ssaosoy Jsueld] uobalQ 1samylion HOLDOINNODO MU 6L0Z ' LE J940R0 ¥e

‘dwiel gind 9|gissed2e Mau B pue ‘uoljoasiaul

ay] 0] UONPBULO0D Ylemapis B ‘saniuawe yim eale bunybije pue ‘Buipieoq ‘Buljiem Jebuassed pasiel e sepnjoul dojs
nsueJ) pesodo.d 8y ‘sejnol [euoifal pue [ED0] USSMISq UOIIBIO)| JajSuUel) B SE @AI8S pue sajnol sng a|dinw aAIes
0} pepuajul I uoieao] dojs pesodoid ay] Lol AemybiH "S'nN uo pajeoo) si doys Jisued; Bupsixe ey ‘podmsp ul
199.1S Y101 1SB9UINOS pue 19218 Sy 1SBaYIN0S JO UONDasIajul U} JO JaUl0od }SSMUHOU 8y} Uo pajeaol si 6L# dols

s

MeJA JoalS 8iB00y - 240z Isnbny JseayLiou Bupjoo] ‘6L# dojs 94 einbi4

suonIpuog Bunsixg " 4ynog HodmaN 1881 Y0P ISEUINOS PUB 19811 USY JSERLANOS - L4 do)



SE 6L0Z 'LE 489010

1334
of 4 oL 0

N

‘3JBINIIE 3G JoU Aew pue

[ERICROUO3 5 UMOYS auy) 3y 13afoid

S/y1 10] PB1IZ{j02 SBM JBY] A2Auns punoll
40 AIEpUNOG 3Y) 5PIadXa Jjlj 0 301 L T

paiosd pupe passasasd

2 (fBYS LONIP 12410 IO 12534 (BACWIS

40 pajeuliisap Jou a1 Jeyl 'sadnap

[OUIU03 JiyJeS BUIpnOXa ‘swiel Bunisixg *|
“sajoy

‘1884S Y0P

IS Yylim uonossisiul ay Jo
yuou 1snf 198118 Ysy JO apis
1S8Mm 8y} 0} paiesolal aq
pinom 3| “LO L AemyBiH "s'n
uo dojs Beyy e Ajjussald
s1}| -8bajjon Alunwwon
1809 uobalp 8y} sanlas
yolym 101e[N2110 (00| B
puE yiomjau snq |euoiba.
2y} usamiaq juiod Jajsuel)
e se sonIas g doig

uopels Hedal ayig
3/2e10331 YSELL
yaes g

ajod 1467

ubts gy dois sng

(soyauag z) isiays dols sng .

ng| @

ANFDITdOLS 5119

NP F§L 3dofs
XBL %6 900[5

Aemaapg

pase dois sng

UDIIEI0] BUISSOI3 PIPUBILI JO PINIEW

2280S BULIEM 3/GRIISISP FUIOP PAIEIURLL

SUBNIANP YIOG XEW %§"| 'eds Buiuiny

Vfemapis

e
—

199l04d ss@29y lsuel) uobalg 1samylioNy HOLDINNODMU

sidaosuon dois 1suel]

usuel] Ajunod ujoaur

anNgoF7

auy ayuafa Bixa 2210k (G1)

Uy 2uoYTal BIXD 133104 e

afoyuRwW B1x3 132100 PUE 35344 ®

auyf sel Bixe 1391044 6

By pue ajod 148 “Bixe areaogey  (75)
J20n6 pur gind B1xa 123104d pue 2AI35id @
ajod 1yby 612 1301010 pur snsasasy (§1)

S58I6 Y1IM paSS e

mopad Ajages ‘aepns Bupsem
3JGEIIPIZP SUIOP PIIEIUNL] ISUOT @

(sEmnpusdiad) dures gin3 ‘15u03 ®
3 I5u03 @

YIBMSPIS IU0D Jd ISUaD @

yaum p - saunt pue quna asua3 (Z)

STION A3X

ynog HodmaN - 61# doig



5

199f0id ssa20y usues] uobaip 1samylioN JOLOINNOOIMU 6l0Z°lEBAORO  OF

‘yuou sy} 0} papircid aq [m dwel 8)gissaooe YAy Mau  1aulod 8y} 1B }|EmapIs Bulisixa 0} UOIJOaUU0D 3eMapIS

e pue ‘saniuswe yyum ealte Bunybie pue ‘Buipieoq ‘Buniem sebusssed pasiel e sapnjoul dojs Jisuel} pasodoud
ay] ‘sselb ayy Ui ybije pue pieoq siebuassed :sanijioe) 9|qISS929E JO saljiuawe ou sey dojs Jisued) Bunsixse ay |
‘Hodplepn Ul € AemybiH uoBalQ pue 19218 Aempeolg 1S8MYUON JO 1aUl0d }SaMULoU 8y} uo paleodo] si 0z# dois

MBIA Joel)s 816009 - 8L0Z 4890120 1semypiou Bupjooj ‘oz# dois /L einbi4

m_._o_u__:._oo Bunsix3g | | yodpjep - 75 AemyBiy uobalQ pue joa4ig Aempeoig JSomyuoN = ont_‘noum



FAS 6102 'LE 1290100

7>

193l01d ssa29y Hsues] uobaig 1samyrion HOLDINNOOIMU

1334
. ¥ sydasuoyn dois lsuelj
N xew sszodos o, Hsuel| Ajunon ujoour
XPUL 6] BAOJS =
Modplep - 0z# doig
Aemenrg "
‘parzziosd pue paaiesard OIS PR g o pasE dojs sng
2q JfEYS UO/IIE J3YI0 1O '1353] 1EACWS) ayaeidaras ysedq .
J0j Pa1eublsap 10U 34E JBYl 53D 3
1040003 2uyge4) BuipryXa 'Susal Ezn.ﬁou L — uo/E20] uysS0L) PIpURILY JO PYITH o e Y, 1) i h&u“ wseh hﬁn&mﬁﬁﬂ
2/0d 1617 .‘. s G A — sapus 12 150py - (25) (enypuadiad) diwes qin3 Isuod @
ubis gr dois sng L] foyuLL B1X3 ISPV 9 (BB YEMAPIS) Cwies gin3 IsioI @ 2V I5U03 @
SUBIANP YIOG XEW K§| IPdS Burin] ] adid wio1s "Bixa 1321040 PUE 3AI353id 9 Buim pue sjod 1By “Bixa aiedojay e WEMSPIS 300D T I5U0D @
(sayauag z) 1a1ays dols sng . — Jauy ysued @ adoys 2124303 J5U0) @ YIPM  BZ - J30NE PUE Qi) I5UGD @
¥ ajoyuew "61xa 13104d PUB 3A13SIH e paiyaads se ssesb yim paas 9 QNI pIEPUELS “1SUOD @

eas|y) ¥¢ AemybiH uobaiQ jo uol }

i A,

ANFDITdOLS 5119 STION ATN

e

3 L m.tonm_m>>. ul ;m_:ﬁ_m_I 2

108s19)Ul uE;mm:_J.w{;mu_\«,_ i

sAey 1B 198115 ABMPBOIG PN PUNOGYINOS UO Paleao| s 0z doig




=

198l01d ssa29y ysuel] uobaig 1samylioN HOLDINNOIDIMU 6L0Z ‘1€ 00000 E

"19)]ays oy} Buioe|dal pue sajjiuswe [euollippe apnoul 0} dojs jJisued)
ay1 Buipuedxa sepnjoul dojs Jsuel) pasodoud ay] ‘eale Bunpybije pue Buipieoq Jabuassed 8)a10u02 B YUm J}j8ys snqg
e sey dojs Jisuel) Bunsixe syl 1984S UYlyL YLUON pue 0z AemybiH 0 Jaulod jseayliou ay} uo pajedo| sl elg# dois

MBIA J08.41S 86009 - gL0Z aunp jsemypiou Bupjooj ‘eLz# dojs ‘gL ainbi4

= e

suopuog Bupsixg . YIRWO[IYJ — 1994 UipL YHON PUE punogisaph 0z AemuyBiH 'S'n — elz# doig



Lt

<

s8I0

6% 6102 'LE 1200100 193lo1d ssaoay Nsues] :ommho 1SoamylioN HOLIOANNOOMU
4334
B s e s o sydaosuon dois rsueld)
N cet e uoneuodsuel] Aluno) uosuag
@ v [ (GM) 1S Ui 2 0ZSN 12 yewojyd - e.z# dois
uopels siedad axig @
N . eaur dojs sng I

T - woneaoy Buissor papuaiy do paver |7 | qun> Gunsixa 1o101d pur snsesess (G2)

g BT e T e i

sauy aiyy PpaAanns 1au Sem M/ BulisiXg ¢ ubiys gy dois sng = AR RO P g J2)3Ys $nq "BIX3 20WIY @

ag .u.\me.n tﬂn_ umm.umu_wmwh“mm Nmuaﬂ‘ﬂh SUONSANP Y10q "XEW %§"| ‘3IEds Bununl spod Appin ‘Bixe 139101d pur 3A195044 @

RE&N__ WHE.. maﬁiukw ...Eh.. ht.nﬂ“ o (sayauag z) Jelfeys dols sng l — E NrEMIPIS W03 D ISU0) %

qun3 pIBPUEBIS ISHOD

ON3FDITJO1S STig [ ERE] STION AFY




uom._.o._n_ SS920V lisued] commLO 1somyrioN HOLDINNODOMU 610Z 'LE 1200120

9]910U09 3|gISsel2e YOV Ue sepnjoul dois Jisuel} pasodoid ay] "Ajjiqissa00e QY Jo} 99edS JUSIDINSUI UM J8)Bys
e sey dojs Jisuel) Bunsixe ay] 19anS Yyl YLON pue oz AemybiH 1o Jaulod }semyinos ay} uo pajeao) si qLz# dois

J19)jeys ay) Buioeldal pue sanjuswe Buipnjoul eale Bupybije pue Buipleoq

M/ Jo84)s 816009 - 8 L0 dunr

suopipuo) Bunsix3

jseayjnos bupjool ‘qLZ # dojs "61 ainbiH

W

yleWO|IYd — 19913 Uip) YMON PUE punogisap 0Z AemuyBiH °s'n - g1z dois

o



L 6102 ‘L€ 429010

334
or 0z oL 0

‘BJpwyxosdde 248 pur BIEP JOjXE]
ANOD UONIBG WO PRILIT BIOM UMOYS
seuy auf paAsnIns Jou SEm /Y BUNSIXT Z

‘persiond pue pantasasd

B JEYS LONIP J3YI0 10 13534 ‘(PAOUIRS

JOJ PAIBUBIS3P J0U 4B IBYT 'SINARP
1043002 2y4eJ) BUIPRaXa ‘SWal Bupsixg “f
SSRION

uoners yedal ayig
3/203d3as YseL]
yaes 31§

ajod 467

ubis gy dois sng

(sayauag z) \Q&...Eu.g&u.vsh

ON3DFTd40LS 5Nd

L#I..

199l01d ssa29y 1sues] uobaip 1semylion mO._.UmZZ.OU;C
sidoouon dois 1suea]

uoneuodsuel] Ajuno) uojusg

(g3) 1S Y3LL '8 0ZSN Ie Yjewojiyd - qLz# dojs

wow gy dos o
xeWw %§'| adojs =

Aemanug
rase dois sng

JeyjaYs sng BIXS eAOwIY @
894) "B1x3 1381010 pUE dAI353Id @

ss2I6 yym paas 9

UCHEIO) BUISSOLI PApUBILY JO PIYIEW

FIBLINS BUILIEA SIGRIIDIEP SWOP PITEIUNLL

sUONIAP y10q “Xews 5551 ‘9eds Buun aov 3su0z (3)
J2YaYs S7q "BIX3 FNOWIY e NIPMIPIS DU03 I ISUOD @

Ll aa.) "B1x2 1321040 PUP NIDSDIY e YIPIM,OF - 391106 PUP qIn3 ISU0 @

SALON AFN




%J
41

190(01d ssa@2oy ysues] uobaiQ 1samylioN YOLIOINNOIDMU BL0Z'1£ 00000 T

‘leubis ey} 18 sdwes qind Yy pue ‘uoioasiajul 8y] 0} UOIOaUU0D Y[eMapIsS

B ‘saljuawe ‘eale Bunybije pue Buipieoq Jebusssed ‘no-|ind snq e sepnoul dojs Jisuels; pasodoud sy ‘siep|noys
Aempeol uo Jo JIp uo Jayye ybije pue pieoq siebuassed pue sajjiuswie Jo sjuswsaaoidwi ou sey dojs Bunsixa sy
‘BangsimaT Ul enuaAy BingsimaT 1IseMULoN pue pee6 AemybiH 10 S1aul09 1SaMUINos ay) Uo paledo| si zz# dois

MBI\ 19843 81009 - 6102 dUny ypnos Bupjoof ‘zz# dojs 0z oinbi

suoppuog Bupsg K



54 61L0Z 'LE J8q0I00

1334
o 0z ol 0

N

S

‘parzlosd pur paasasard

G [JBYS UOIIIE IO JO 13531 |EAOWIR]

40 pareulisap Jou 24e Jeyl 'sadnap
043103 4yjea) BuipnyIxa 'sua) BUNsIXg *f
5310M

My B3

torang
06Z8+01 .22

fyausyg () isyays dois sng

KPW F§2 adojs
xew gef adojs
Aemaaug
wonels Jedas ayg Y po—
2/2e1d2330 Y5eLL @
yoes ayg — UOI1E0] BLISS0II PAPUBIUT JO PRYIEW
soduy 4
82815 BUILIEM SIGRIIBISP SUIOP PAIEIUNLL
ubis gr dois sng ]

SUONDBNP Yi0q “Xew %S°| ‘deds bulin)

AJNADFTdOLS 5NF

emops

—

108f01d s5390y Msues| uoBaip 1samylIoN YOLDINNOIMU

s1deouon doig 1isueuj

uoneuodsuels] Ajunod uojusg

(gs) aay 1abuels R M66YO e BingsimaT - zz# doig

aum Anb “Bixa 1snipy 9

0id wiois “6ixa w204 pue ansasard (ED)
sfoyuell mau JSU0D .

adyd wiiols Bixe puixg 9

20y wusors asued (EL)

24100 Jaqy "BIx3 138104 a

auy selb “B1xa 1331014 @

Spesli paysiul 01 xoq Auin Bixa 1snjpy e
xoq jeubls Bixa 1snpy e

3/0d vonngysnd Isuol 9

MoYA Alayes ‘a3ens Guiiem
3(gRII2)3P AP PAIEIUNI] “ISUOD

(Bnypuadiad) dwes §in3 1suo3 @
dov asues ()

yEmMapIs U033y 15103 @
YIpm g - 1216 pUE QIn3 5103 @
un3 pIEpURIS I5U0D @

SILON ATY

54012315p dOO] [PUBIS ISTPY 9
(PUS NjEMIPIS) DUIES GIND ISUOD @
a4m ANG 'B)x3 139704d pUB 3AI3SIid @

[eUBS pEalIBAD
"BIXD 1291040 pUE 3AII53id @

ojod Ayynn 6)xa 132j04d pue A5 @
sseib yum paas (v1)
asued @




LY
—

198f0i4d ssaday ysuel] uobaig 1samyrioN HOLDINNODIMU BL0Z'IE BUOP0 b

"|leubis ay] 1e sdwel gino Yy pue ‘uonoasialul 8y} 0} Uojjoauuod yjemapls

e ‘senuswe ‘eate Bunybije pue Buipieoq Jebusssed ‘Ino-|ind snq e sapnjoul dojs Jisuel) pasodoid ay] "siap|noys
Aempeos uo Jo uIp uo Jayiie ybije pue pieoq siebusssed pue sapiuswe Jo syuswaroidwi ou sey doys bunsixs
ay] -BingsimaT ul enusAy BingsimaT 1IsemyloN pue pME6 AemybiH Jo Jaul09 Jseaylou ay) uo paledo| si gz# dois

MBJA Jeaqs 81booD - 6L0 auny Yypiou Bupjoo| ‘gz# dojs Lz einbiH

L

) B e ' Loy J IR T Y , o
Auno9 uojuag ‘BingsimaT - (punoquion) peoy Jabiuels jseayuopn pue pmee AemybiH uobalp - ¢z dois



Gb  610Z 1€ 480010

1334
or oz oL 0
L ]

N

S

‘pa132104d puE pariasaid

3G [[BYS UOIIIP J3YI0 JO 13531 ‘(eAOWIa)

Joj paieub)sap jou 318 1Byl 'S32N3p
FOLUOI D14EST BLIpnidx3 ‘Sway Bupsix3 |
Is210N

uoyIels syedas axig
3faeida3ai ysel)

yops 3yig
3jod 1yb17
ubis gy dois sng

Xew %6/ adofs
Xew §<°f adojs

Aemaaug

pase dois sng

UONEIO) BUISSOLD PIPUSIUY 10 PIYIEN
20BLNS BUUIEM 3/GEIIDIBP JUIOP PRIPIUNLL

SUORIANP YIOG X KS°| ‘@oeds Bupuiny

Wemapls

!

B s
=

uum.ﬁo._n_ $5800Y lisuedj :Omw._o 1IsemylioN HOLODINNODMU

siydaouon dois 1isuedy
uoneuodsuel] AjunoD uojuag

(gN) oAy 1obueis) B Me6YO I BingsimaT - ¢z4 dojs

Buipua qind ‘15uo03 @

ajod jeubs
“B1x3 1321040 PUP MI353Id e

3fod Axjnn "Bixa 1321040 pup 2A/353)4 @

5245 yiim pass 9
vonnqysnd uetsapad pIEPUEIS ISUOTD @
ajod uonngysnd ‘3suod 9

201d wiels I5Ue3 @

IreipuEY I51H0D 9

(pua yemaprs) duies gin 15u6 ®

MOjjaA Alajes ‘a3eLins Buiem
3/qeIIa1ap JWOop Palesu] IS0 @

(eenypuadiad) dwes qind 1su0) @
v asued (5)

yemaps sua3 g wsued (F)

YIPIM 2 ~ 181INE  pUE QN3 “ISU0) @
qun3 pIEPUBIS 15U0T @




—
V-

199f01d $S220y Msued] uobaig 1samylioN HOLDINNOIMU 6102'1C1000R0 O

"aNUBAY JIED WA UO Jussaid Sy[emapls Ou pue joais ay) 0] Jajjeys
ay woJi Yred a|qissende Yy Ou S a1ay] "1924)s sy} uo jno sdois snq ay) ‘|ieH AlD Joj 10| Buppied sy u) 1981)s ay)
110 pa1e00] Ja1jays e sey dois sng ay] ‘|leH AlD 0} JusoB(pe anuaAy e WellIAA Uo pajedo) si dojs abe||iA Jiepy 8yl

Z1L0¢ 48quueosd

il

Yypou bupjoo ‘vz # dojs ‘gz 8inblH

i
1= b

suopipuog Bupsix3 | .. - aBeiiA Jiepy - pz# dojg



P
-

;msm.gﬁﬁo uum.ﬁo\_n_mmmuu_q:m:m._hcommhoamwazuhozN_O._.UmZZOU__SC
w B i sydaosuon dois ysueld]

N ik uojjepodsuel] Ajunod uojueg

abejliA Jiepy - yz# doig

Apmanug
HORRIE SRR 2 ® PaJE 0OIS SNg
“SRIE[IOSSY EINIINYIIY
iy 1j0Isug g _u..w...nqm Aq paanposd 2203331 YSELL @
B 115E)Y A3 SBEYA HEDY JO -
Af2 341 J0 0107 'S | 13qUINON PAIED I yous ayig —_ HOHIEIC] BUISSOI? PEPUSIU} J0 PaYIEN uautw._.un 2%% _uawh.rg asuod
punoibyoeq ued als pasodosd ayy £ i ‘*. vy cuses s 2510 o
oo 20)d wios “I1s5t0, (fapyesed) duses %
yemdaiuod s BIBLINS BUILLIEM JGEIIIFP SUWOP PRIEIUNLL id 2 @
7l pue ¥ Hl HE "uot) .th:.a_ e ubys gy dois sng [] adid wiro1s "bixa anoway @ Jd2V 15U @
padanns uaaq Jou sey punost Gunsixg g SUOHIPD ioq el 6+ Tasuds Bl 1213003 pausanied nnsued (15) WEMIPIS 3003 "I I5U0D @
‘PRI2SI0I pue parsasaid 4 - B g4nd 15U
9 11Pys UoRI 3410 40 1asas erowa (yauag 1) sayays dois sng . owops sjod Ay 6yxe 120104 pue ansesaig (1Z) IpIM  p7 - 1OHNE pUE g 02 (Z)
40y PRIEUbISIP JOU 248 18] ‘S2IIABP SSPIB UM paIs e Qi3 pIEpuRIS 1SU0D @
(020003 31ea) BUipnaXa 'Swd)) BUNsIxg
s aNIDIT7dOLS 5719 [¢'EREN] STION ATY

Anunwwod pue jieH Ao sBelIA JIepY 18 ugmoo_%_mo__ﬂ‘mm..o_...mw_wm.mnen“
El u..mmm___>-.__m_u< Ul B10S SOUBIUSAUDD B JB ‘SNUSAY. Binquapuep ypm

Ay ks . et

Ul BU) JB3U BNUBAY JIED " WEI|[I\\ U0 pa 841N2 4 sd




NWCONNECTOR

Marketing Recommendations
for FY 2019/20

TRANSITegmarketing —ll:-illiumSOLUTIONS

=




NWCONNECTOR

Transit Routes Used:
MAX

B To Downtown Portland to
catch bus at Salmon & 5th

CC Rider

B Portland to St. Helens
B St Helens to Rainier

Sunset Empire Transit District

B  Rainier to Astoria
m  Astoria to Seaside
B Seaside to Cannon Beach

Tillamook County Transit

B Cannon Beach to Tillamook
B | ocal Tillamook routes
B Tillamook to Lincoln City

Lincoln County Transit

B |incoln City to Newport
Coast to Valley Express

B Newport to Corvallis
Albany Transit

®m  Corvallis to Albany Amtrak
Bolt Bus

B Albany to Portland

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE
REVIEW

The five transit agencies that make up NOWTA and the
Northwest Connector network provide reliable, friendly
transit service. This consultant rode 10 routes during a three
day tour of the area.

B Every bus arrived as scheduled.

B Vehicles were clean and well maintained.

B  Connections worked as planned (though a few required
a longer wait than might be ideal for a visitor).

B Drivers were courteous, though some were unfamiliar
with the visitor pass and how to handle it.

B  The on-bus envirocnment was pleasant, with ridership
that included a variety of demographic groups - locals,
tourists and travelers., Quite a few people were
traveling with bicycles.

B The Trip Planner allowed me to plan my trip throughout
the region, though a glitch was found with one segment
and has since been corrected.

B  The Transit App was very helpful, providing real-time
info where available and schedule information in other
locations.

My initial boarding in Portland might have been a little
daunting for an inexperienced rider. | chose to board at the
downtown (Salmon and 5™) stop rather than Amtrak,
because | had stayed overnight downtown (as a visitor
might). | arrived at Salmon and 5" to find a very nice Trimet
stop but no indication that it was used by CC Rider. |
wandered down the block and found a CC Rider sandwich
sign closer to 6" It was not visible from the Trimet stop.
Once | found it, | felt more confident | was in the right place,
though it included no information other than the system
logo. Note: When | returned to Portland, | visited the stop at
Union Station and found it to be much better signed.

[ had planned to purchase a three-day visitor pass and had
$25 in cash. When | boarded the CC Rider bus, | was told
(by the driver trainer/dispatcher who was on board) that
the driver did not sell the pass on the bus as promised on
the website. | was told that | needed to purchase it after |
arrived at the Transit Center in St. Helens. So | paid a $6.00
fare to get to the point where | could buy the $25 pass.
From a visitor point of view, this is now a $31 3-day pass
and not quite as good a deal.

In marketing to visitors, NWOTA is seeking to attract a
steady stream of first-time riders. Providing a consistent
experience at every step of the trip is critical to success.

Trillium - Transit Marketing 1

40



NWCONNECTOR

f . BAX per day, 3 buses

ie UlRainier

ax per day, Direct
Coming: 8X/perday, Direct

i g 4X per day, Direct

Direct Bus Service
Po RTLAN_D T.

. S b

Dlrect to Astoria & Tlllamook
Connect to Cannon Beach & Lincoln City

NWCONNECTOR

NWConnector.org

PLANNED SERVICE
ENHANCEMENTS

When organizing the customer experience review, the most
challenging trip segment was getting from Portland to
Astoria. This required three buses and was only possible
once a day and only on weekdays. A rider not committed to
using the NWConnector routes would have probably
chosen to use the Northwest Point service even though it
would be more expensive and would not accept the visitor
pass.

This issue will be remedied in the near term when SETD
initiates direct service between Astoria and Portland.
People in Portland who wish to visit the coast will then have
six direct options each day - four trips to Astoria and two
to Tillamook.

An increase in service frequency is also planned for the
more southern route from Newport to Corvallis and Albany.
The frequency of the Coast to Valley Express will increase
from 4 round trips per day, to eight.

Residents of Salem will continue to have three round trips
per day to Lincoln City.

With the service improvements, the NWConnector network
will be significantly more robust. It will be possible to reach
the Coast from any of the three origin cities with a single
bus. With the exception of the Portland to Tillamook route,
travelers will be able to make a same-day round trip. This
provides a cost-effective option for city residents who
simply want to escape for "a day at the beach.”

The addition of a third round trip to the Tillamook route
would make day-trip travel on that route also possible. This
would be more attractive both to visitors and to local
residents traveling to Portland for personal business.

With the implementation of the planned improvements, it is
recommended that NWOTA take a very straightforward
approach to marketing the network. The image at the left is
NOT a recommended advertisement. But it is an example
of the kind of very direct messaging which will allow
residents of Portland, Salem and Corvallis/Albany to see
exactly what the NWConnector has to offer them.

Trillium - Transit Marketing 2

©\



MARKETING
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR
NWCONNECTOR.ORG

BRANDING

IMPROVE CONSISTENCY OF BRANDING ON
VEHICLES, BUS STOPS AND LITERATURE.

While the NWConnector is made up of five individual transit
systems, it is being branded/marketed as a single network.
For riders responding to an ad or the website, it will be
important that they see the NWConnector branding
consistently throughout their trip in order to have
confidence that they are in the “right place.”

Bus Stop Signage

This begins at the bus stop in the origin city where they
board. Bus stop signage in Portland, Salem and Corvallis
will be critical to starting each trip off on the right foot.

As can be seen in the photos at the left, work is needed to
improve the consistency of bus stop information. Each
“origin city” bus stop should include:

B NWConnector logo sighage (new logo)

B NWConnector.org web address

B Bus stop sign for individual transit systems with contact
info

Ideally, where possible, the stops would also include the
departure times for NWConnector trips and the
NWConnector Map.

Key stops to be addressed include boarding locations in
origin cities and major connection points:

Portland Union Station

Salem Amtrak/Greyhound
Downtown Salem Transit Mall
Corvallis Transit Center
Albany Amtrak Station
Astoria Transit Center
Tillamook Transit Center
Chincok Winds (Lincoln City)
Cannon Beach Midtown
Newport City Hall

Trillium - Transit Marketing 3

€O



+ 70X BUS FARES

Gt et o S Tl 10
e Pt Toot 1D oy

NYWCONNECTOR
NWCONNECTOR.ORG

Assea

Your. lickel

TO THE

Ofm‘gzofz. Coadt!

Vehicles

Each of the five transit agencies which make up the
NWConnector has its own distinct branding, as is
appropriate. However, this can be confusing for a rider who
has found their way to the network via the website or in
response to an ad, and is unsure if the bus that arrives is
“their bus.”

This worry can be alleviated by placing the NWConnector
logo in a secondary but highly visible location on each
vehicle that is part of the network. The photo of the wave
bus at the left is an ideal example of co-branding. The
placermnent of a NWConnector logo decal on the window
near the passenger door makes it clear to the rider that this
bus is part of the network. The SETD bus in the lower
photo is not co-branded, but could easily use the same
approach, as could the buses of all of the NWOTA systems.
This is particularly key for the routes which are included on
the NWConnector map.

Literature

Including the NWConneactor branding and map on local
passenger guides serves a somewhat different purpose. It
lets local riders know that the individual system is part of a
larger network which gives them access to more
destinations along the coast and inland. If visitors pick up
the guides along the way, it also reinforces the fact that
they are traveling on the NWConnector network.

As soon as practical, all systems should bring the branding
on their local materials up-to-date with the new
NWConnector logo, web address and map.

Trillium - Transit Marketing 4 CB 9



WEBSITE/PASSENGER INFO

NWOTA is well aware that effective, easy to use passenger
information is at the core of attracting new riders to a
transit service. Establishment of the NWConnector website
insured that potential riders could easily plan trips to and
along the coast without having to access multiple
information sources.

CONTINUE TO ENHANCE WEBSITE FOR
USABILITY

Trillium is continuing to make NWConnector.org more
usable with enhancements to the trip planner function and
the overall content.

B Explore Trip ldeas was recently updated with new
events listings. More events should be added on an
ongoing basis to keep the calendar up to date and
interesting.

B Trillium has plans to develop and implement an
OpenTripPlanner to replace the Google Trip Planner on
the website. This trip planner will be customized to
include all transit options provided by NWOTA (not just
fixed routes), and allow for trip planning months into the
future.

CONTINUE TO UTILIZE THE NWCONNECTOR
MAP AT MAJOR BUS STOPS

The NWConnector Map, used as a shelter poster or smaller
poster is an excellent marketing tool that should be used as
broadly as possible. At bus stops, it allows passengers to
see where they are and can go from here. On bulletin
boards at local venues (e.g. visitor centers, grocery stores,
and social service offices) it can provide inexpensive
promotional value by building awareness of the network of
routes and the places they go.

As the network continues to grow more robust and the
map is updated, NWOTA might consider adding frequency
notes. For example highlight the number of round trips per
day between Portland and Astoria, Portland and Tillamook,
Salem and Linceln City and Corvallis/Albany and Newport.
This will allow potential riders to see that they have many
options for travel.

Trillium - Transit Marketing 5 ' U\



FARES AND FARE MEDIA

The 3-Day and 7-Day visitor passes, sold on the buses, have
been the primary fare media promoted by NWOTA. While
these are effective marketing tools, there are opportunities
to build on this foundation.

UPDATE PAPER TICKETS

The paper tickets need to be updated to reflect the revised
logo. At this time, they might be redesigned to be twice
the current size, folded over. This would have two
advantages.

B The inside space could be used to include a small
version of the system map, giving riders easy reference
to the overall system.

B [t would make the pass somewhat more sturdy, to hold
up to 3 day or a week of being pulled in and out of
pockets.

It goes without saying that it is extremely important that all
NWConnector bus drivers sell the passes and be familiar
with how to accept them, as this is what the website
promises visitors.

MOBILE TICKETING

The current system of selling passes on the bus requires
that visitors pay cash and have the exact amount. Tourists
often travel with little cash and are used to paying for
everything with a credit card or their Smartphone. To make
the system easier for users to access, NWOTA should
consider the establishment of a mobile ticketing platform
for the NWConnector routes.

Some ticketing platforms can be implemented quickly and
with no cost up front, but take a 10% commission on sales,
For the short term, NWOTA might consider implementing
one of these options to be promoted during the 2019/20
campaign.

B Token Transit
B Hopthru

It should be noted that the mobile ticketing arena is in a
state of transition. It is recommended that NWOTA limit any
contractual arrangement to 12 months and reevaluate its
options at that time.

Trillium - Transit Marketing 6

a?



AMTIRAIKC

N o

CONSIDER FAMILY FARE

Another fare related consideration is the implementation of
a family fare to make transit travel to the coast affordable
and attractive for families with children.

B One easy approach is to amend the Visitor Pass policy
such that children under 6 and one child 6-12 or 6-15,
ride free with each adult pass,. Additional older children
would need to buy another pass (each pass would be
good for two additional older kids).

B Another more complex approach would be to actually
create a Family Pass Package (e.g. $50 for 3-days, $100
for 7-days) that would be good for two adults and up to
a certain number of children (e.g. 2 to 4) under a
specific age (e.g. 12 or 16)..

ESTABLISH TICKETING AGREEMENTS WITH
AMTRAK AND GREYHOUND

Tillamook County Transit is currently working to establish
ticketing agreements with Amtrak and/or Greyhound such
that passengers would be able to purchase tickets to
Coastal Oregon destinations. The final leg of the trip would
be provided by the NWConnector.

YARTS, the transit agency which serves Yosemite National
Park, has been very successful with a similar Amtrak
agreement from Merced, CA.

Amtrak is heavily used by international travelers. Having
such agreements for travel from the Amtrak and/or
Greyhound stations in Portland, Salem and Albany could be
an excellent tool for marketing the NWConnector system
more broadly.

Trillium - Transit Marketing 7

v



The Dusiry bands I ?

Around Town

‘own carf Hoproblem. :-.-.rz.r e
yionds. 1

|
1
i
i
1
|
|
I

www.GoTillamook.com

HOW TO GET HERE

BY CAR

@ WHATE * WHEREZ. + CITIES 2 - STOR

TRANSPORTATION

www.VisittheOregonCoast.com

PROMOTIONAL PARTNERSHIPS & SOCIAL

MEDIA

Many organizations are promoting travel to the Oregon
Coast - communities, chambers of commerce, tourism
bureaus, destinations, hotels and events. Most of these
have websites and social media pages with much broader
audiences than that of NWConnector.org. The members of
NWOTA each need to ask key promoters within their own
service area to promote the use of the NWConnector
network to reach their destination.

NWCONNECTOR.ORG LINK ON PARTNER
WEBSITES

Websites for organizations that promaote tourism on the
NW Oregon Coast should be asked to include a link to
NWConnector.org on their websites - potentially on the
“Directions” or "How to Get Here"” page. Images at the left
are from three of several websites which already has such a
link. In many cases these point to the individual transit
system page. They would be more effective for tourists if
they pointed to the NWConnector.org homepage so that
the trip planner and map are immediately visible.! Following
is a starter list of target websites - many of which already
have transit links that simply needed to be updated.

B GoTillamook.com (in place, redirect to trip planner)

B TravelAstoria.com (Directions, redirect to trip planner)

B Tillamookcoast.com

B VisittheOregonCoast.com (in place, redirect to trip
planner)

B DiscoverNewport.com (has link, needs to be redirected)

B Hatfield Visitor Center -

seagrant.oregonstate.edu/visitor-center (Coast to
Valley schedule)

' Many of these external links are pointed the individual
agency’s site name that was in use before the
NWConnector site was created (e.g. ridethebus.org or
tillamockbus.com). These old site names are currently
redirected to the new agency page. To quickly update
many of these links, NWOTA agencies could change the
redirect settings for their old site names to instead go to
the NWConnector homepage.

Trillium - Transit Marketing 8

)



ESTABLISH AND MAINTAIN NWCONNECTOR
FACEBOOK FAN PAGE

While the individual transit systems have Facebook pages
which they use for various purposes, the NWConnector
currently has no social media presence. In order to
implement the Facebook advertising discussed in the next
section, it will be necessary to establish a Fan Page for the
NWConnector. However, this is also recommended for a
number of other reasons.

B |t will provide another means for those who have visited
the website to engage with NWOTA.

m |t will allow NWOTA to post upcoming events that are
occurring on the coast and can be reached via the
NWConnector network.

B |t will provide a platform for posting seasonal trip
itineraries (discussed in more detail later).

B |t will provide a channel for interacting with the
Facebook pages of coastal communities, stakeholders
and destinations which reach significant audiences: For
Eeample:

s The Oregon Coast (142K followers)

»  Oregon Coast Aquarium (110K followers)

#  Blue Heron French Cheese Company (12K followers)
= Travel Astoria-Warrenton (12K followers)

= Tillamook County Pioneer (12K followers)

= Rockaway Beach Visitors Info Center (6K followers)
B Cycle Oregon (15K followers)

ASK PROMOTIONAL PARTNERS TO LIKE AND
REPOST NWCONNECTOR CONTENT

A key in effectively utilizing the NWConnector Facebook
page will be to engage local promotional partners
(communities, tourism bureaus, destinations and events) to
like the page and to repost items that are relevant to their
own audiences. For example, if the NWConnector posts an
item about using the bus to get to the Summer Kite Festival
in Lincoln City, it might be reposted by the Kite Festival and
Lincoln City Oregon Coast Facebook pages to reach a
much broader audience.

Trillium - Transit Marketing 9

4%



People
fraveling to
NW Oregon

Transit
Ready

Residents of Portland, Salem
and Corvallis

PROMOTE NWCONNECTOR TO POTENTIAL

VISITORS

At the heart of the NWOTA alliance is the desire to
promote use of the NWConnector by visitors traveling to
the coast from Portland other origin cities. However,
advertising to the broad audience of Portland or Salem
residents or all coastal visitors is quite expensive, with the
majority of exposure "wasted” on those with little likelihood
of using the NWConnector. This plan proposes a more
targeted approach to marketing the network through a
combination of transit advertising and social media to reach
audiences that have at least one of two characteristics:

B They are transit ready - that is they are already transit
users or follow their local transit agencies on social
media.

B They have indicated interest in coastal travel by liking
Facebook pages associated with the Oregon coast.

IMPLEMENT ON-TRANSIT ADVERTISING CAMPAIGN IN
PORTLAND, SALEM AND CORVALLIS

On-bus and on-train advertising is a cost effective way of
reaching residents of Portland, Salem and Corvallis who are
already transit users. May of the riders on Trimet, Cherriots
and CTS are young, active and likely to view the coast as a
desirable destination for a day trip or weekend getaway:.
However they are more likely than the general population
to be open to the idea of riding a bus to get there
affordably.

The proposed budget for the plan allocates approximately
$15,000 to on-train and on-bus advertising. Two thirds of
this would be spent in Portland - on MAX and Trimet - and
the remaining third in Salem and Corvallis. For this budget
NWOTA can implement a 6 month campaign which
includes:

B Michelangelo Ads (24" X 48") on 60 Trimet trains and
buses

B Overhead Ads (11" X 28") on 30 Cherriots

B Overhead Ads (11" X 28™) on 10 CTS buses

The objective of the ads would be to use a combination of
appealing destination photos and straightforward
messaging to make the target audience aware that transit
to the coast is available, affordable and can be accessed
through NWConnector.org.

Trillium - Transit Marketing 10 0\



Visit the Coast Car-Free

Direct Bus Service

Portiand to Tillamook l :

NWCONNECTOR.ORG |

UTILIZE ON-LINE ADVERTISING TO REACH TARGETED
AUDIENCES

Facebook advertising works by allowing the advertiser to
target viewers based on their “interests” - derived from the
Facebook pages they interact with, like and follow. We
propose to advertise to an audience with the overlapping
interests of “Oregon Coast” or specific coastal destinations
and "Public Transit.”

Google search ads work by showing text ads at the top of

Google Search results when someone searches for specific
key words, such as Oregon Coast, Oregon Coast Aquarium,
Transportation to Oregon Coast, etc.

Both of these advertising approaches would allow NWOTA
to reach individuals with the potential to use the
NWConnector network. Since our campaign is focused on
building awareness of the services and associating
NWConnector with the idea of traveling to the coast, it is
recommended that the campaign initially utilize Facebook
ads.

Facebook ads allow for the use of images of coastal
destinations and the NWConnector logo, rather than just
text. Viewers attracted by the images will click on the ad
and be taken to the NWConnector.org homepage or a
specific landing page on the website. Google Analytics can
be used to track their activity on the site.

The response to specific messages can also be tracked,
allowing NWOTA to see the measureable results of its
advertising.

UTILIZE BUS BACK ADS ON NWCONNECTOR BUSES TO
BUILD AWARENESS IN “ORIGIN” CITIES

Advertising decals on the backs of NWConnector buses
which serve Portland, Salem and Corvallis can build
awareness for where those buses go and the fact that there
is direct bus service to the coast. These could mirror the
messages/images that are included in the transit
advertising campaign discussed above.

Trillium - Transit Marketing

o



CREATIVE APPROACH

STRAIGHTFORWARD MESSAGING

The creative approach we propose for both the on-board
and social media advertising is to use a combination of
stock photography of coastal destinations with
straightforward messages about the bus service - using
words like "direct,” "car-free,” and "low-cost” that will tell
our target audience exactly what NWConnector has to offer
them. The primary objective of each ad will be to get them
to visit NWConnector.org so that they can learn more and
plan a trip.

SAMPLE ITINERARIES BASED ON CUSTOMER SEGMENT
PROFILES

An approach which we believe will complement the
straightforward messaging is to create sample itineraries for
particular target segments to show them how they can use
the NWConnector for a fun getaway. The itineraries will
have names that will appeal to particular groups.

Day Trippers - A Car-Free Day at the Beach

Young Couples - Romantic Ride to the Coast

Families - Car-free Family Fun

Bikers/Hikers - Car-Free Coastal Adventure

Event Goers - Festival Fun with no parking required
Boomers - Bed, Breakfast and Beach - no car required

The itineraries will be added to the website, but can also be
used as a landing page for some social media ads, and
featured as posts on the NWConnector Facebook page.

Trillium - Transit Marketing 12

o\



ADVERTISING TO LOCAL RESIDENTS

While this marketing plan focuses on attracting visitors to
use the NWConnector, the core ridership market for each of
the five NWOTA systems is made up of local residents who
rely on public transit for day-to-day local transportation
needs and/or trips to the “city” for work, college, shopping,
medical care or longer distance travel.

Following are three strategies for supporting and building
this core ridership base.

BOLD, CONSISTENT BRANDING

Branding is marketing at its most basic - how you identify
your service and everything associated with it through
name, logo and packaging. Vehicles and bus stops are in
essence a transit system’s "packaging” and its most
important branding tools. They are seen by thousands of
people every day.

Bold branding of buses and bus stops has three
advantages:

B |t offers immediate and constant communication that
transit service is available. This is relevant both for local
residents and the more transient tourist population.

B |t turns necessary capital expenditures into highly
effective marketing tools with long term
communications value - hence it is an extremely cost
effective marketing approach.

B |{ offers the potential to create an image that is upbeat,
is consistent with the local character and positions
transit as part of the Coastal experience.

The NWOTA members have embraced bold branding for
the NWConnector network and to varying degrees for their
local transit services. This is just a reminder of the
importance of that strategy.

EASY TO UNDERSTAND PASSENGER INFO

Effective passenger information is at the very core of transit
marketing and NWOTA's systems have recognized this. The
establishment of NWConnector has been a boon to all five
systems as it provides an easy trip planning/mapping
platform for riders, as well as individual pages for each
transit agency. When directing passengers to the website
for transit information, the home page - NWConnector.org
- is the appropriate destination.

The Transit App which is now active in the region is another
excellent passenger information tool for regular riders -
providing real-time info where available, and schedule

Trillium - Transit Marketing 13

Ao



SET
YOURSELF
FREE
TO GOYOUR
OWN WAY
VICTOR m

VALLEY
TRANSIT
- Ride FREE for five days!

. cta Ses other side for details

e
TE0MA 030

FREEDOM IS JUST A SHORT
WALK TO THE BUS STOP

1 Wik Ve Bt v o Barsiom, [ e

Viurer Valey Valbry

-.',E_':L—-QH b

e E
B e Mmoo e b B e

information otherwise. | was pleased to see it promoted on
vehicles and at bus shelters.

However, printed passenger information continues to be
relevant to many local riders.

B System maps (to allow riders to see where they can go
and which routes are relevant)

B Timetables to provide schedule information

B Basic how-to-ride info including local fares and fare
media.

Printed guides should also reference the fact that each
system is part of the NWConnector network and direct
riders to the website for info about regional services.

EVERY DOOR DIRECT MAIL WITH FREE RIDE OFFER

NWOTA's systems currently use a mix of print and radio
advertising to promote local services. In conjunction with
the upcoming service improvemeants, another medium
offers the potential to provide more measurable response.

Every Door Direct Mail (EDDM) is a product of the United
States Postal Service. It allows for the mailing of oversized
post cards (up to legal size) to all households within a
defined geographic area (postal carrier routes or post
offices) which can be selected using their mapping tool. No
maziling list or address labels are required and the mailing
cost is $.187 per piece.

The post cards should be bright and eye-catching (so they
make an impact immediately upon being taken from the
mailbox). They can deliver:

B Promotional messages (photos, graphics and text)
B Targeted passenger information (e.g. system map)
B Free ride coupon (to provide a measurable response)

The image at the left shows the front and back of a mailer
used for a rural transit agency in Barstow, CA. It offered the
potential riders 5 free days passes,, provided a system map
of routes in the area and included information about using
Google Maps for trip planning.

EDDM could be an excellent tool for promoting new and
improved services such as new weekend service or more
frequent intercity trips.

Trillium - Transit Marketing 14 Q/\)



NWConnector Marketing Budget
FY 2019-20

Timing Budget

Transit Marketing: Customer Experience
Review and Development of Marketing Plan October $10,000
Transit Marketing: Creation of Marketing
Tools Nov-Jan $5,000
Trillium: Marketing Support &
Implementation of Facebook Advertising
and Social Media October-June $10,000
Transit Advertising

Lamar Advertising:Trimet Feb-Aug $10,400

Stott Advertising: Salem Mar-July $2,640
Printing of Signs for Local Use $300
Facebook Advertising Feb-June $10,000
Contingency $1,160
Total Budget $50,000

Trillium - Transit Marketing 15 \x



| d
Y ,

it ¥

KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC.

TRANSPORTATION ENGINEERING /PLANNING
610 SW Alder Street, Suite 700, Portland, OR 97205 ~ 503.228.5230 503.273.8169

NGRS |
i \ :\\

N

MEMORANDUM #2

Date: June 25, 2015 Project #: 17542.1

To: Doug Pilant
Tillamook County Transportation District

From: Susie Wright, PE and Anais Malinge (Kittelson & Associates)
Bridget Wieghart and Sine Bone, AICP (Parsons Brinkerhoff)

Project: TCTD Transit Plan Update
Subject: Updated Goals, Objectives, Strategies and Action Items

INTRODUCTION

TCTD provides six fixed-route bus services, dial-a-ride service within the county, and service into
adjacent counties via agreements with the adjacent transit providers, including service to Cannon
Beach in cooperation with the Sunset Empire Transit District, service to Lincoln City in cooperation with
the Lincoln County Transportation Service District, and intercity bus service to Portland and Salem.

This memorandum provides guidance to TCTD for how to update the Business Plan and shift their focus
to new opportunities that will help achieve their mission and vision.

TCTD 2013-2015 BUSINESS PLAN

In 2013 TCTD adopted the 2013-2015 Business Plan. This plan identifies and builds from the agency’s
mission, vision, and values with clearly stated objectives, which are listed below.

Mission Statement: Connecting the Community through sustainable transit services
Vision Statement: Committed to innovative transportation services

Values: Accountability, Innovation, Safety, Communication, Service Excellence

Objectives:
1. Increase Stable Funding
2. Positive Settlement of Union Contract Negotiations
3. Create Measurable Outcomes for Services
4. Increase Presence in South County

FILENAME: H:|\PROJFILE|17542 - TCTD TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN|MEMOS|MEMO 2|17542_MEMO_2_FINAL.DOCX q 6



TCTD Transit Plan Update Project #: 17542.1
June 25, 2015 Page 2

5. Meet The General Administrative and Facility Maintenance Needs
6. Look for opportunities to develop innovative services

The following strategies were identified to achieve the six objectives.
Strategies:

Gain Community Support for the Transportation Services
Increase Grant Writing Opportunities
Adjust Fare Base Policy
Develop Clearer Contract Language that protects the District
Negotiate wage increases that are within projected budget
Improve relationships between Administrative Staff and Union Employees
Maintain a positive public image during the negotiation process
Identify a labor attorney (group) to represent the District
Identify and build primary performance measures
. Building Customer Service Satisfaction Measures

L A A

= =
= O

. Interact with citizen groups in South County
. Interact with County entities such as: Public Works, Planning and Road Departments

=
N

Action items were identified as steps to implement most strategies and ultimately achieve the six
objectives. Over the past two years, many action items were executed or are nearing completion. The
table below lists the strategies and actions included in the plan along with the TCTD assessed level of
completion. The table gives an assessment of the action item and recommends to eliminate or refine
those that have been achieved and suggests new strategies and action items to be adopted by TCTD.
Some of the strategies and actions have been identified for further assessment during the course of
this Transit Development Plan project.

Table 1 TCTD Strategies and Actions

Percent
Strategies & Actions Completion Notes and Recommendations

STRATEGY: GAIN COMMUNITY SUPPORT

Friends of the Wave 50% This action item should continue to be an agency focus.

Establish a Foundation 0% This action item should continue to be an agency focus as
long as there is the community momentum to pursue.

Participate in Community Events 75% This action item should continue to be an agency focus.
Consider seeking a community booth at farmers markets.

Gain Support by Interaction from 30% This action item should continue to be an agency focus.
Other Agencies

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. Portland, Oregon

G



TCTD Transit Plan Update
June 25, 2015

Project #: 17542.1
Page 3

STRATEGY: INVOLVEMENT WITH OUTSIDE ORGANIZATIONS

Oregon Transit Association Ongoing These action item should continue to be an agency focus.

Public Transportation Committee

Northwest Connector Alliance

Coordinating Committee

Northwest Oregon Area Commission

on Transportation

STRATEGY: LONG RANGE PLANNING

Scoping the Project 100% Eliminate these action items from Plan.

Hiring a Consultant 100%

Planning Start 50% These action items should continue to be an agency focus.

Updating the Plan 0%

Fiscally Constrained Plan 0%

STRATEGY: PARTNER WITH EMPLOYERS RECOMMEND THIS STRATEGY IS EVALUATED AS PART OF THE TDP.

Identify Employers 100% Eliminate action item from Plan, if complete.

Survey Employee Groups 25% These action items should continue to be an agency focus.

Employer Interviews 25%

Taertity the Nesds 25% Suggest revising firit action to: “Survey Employee
Groups/Employers

Planning Phase 0%

Implement the Plan 0%

Follow Up 0%

STRATEGY: ADJUST THE FARE BASE POLICY

Review Fare Box Return Ratio By 100% Eliminate action item from Plan.

Service Type

Conduct Peer Review Of Rural 0% This action item should continue to be an agency focus.

Systems Fare Policies And Fare Box

Return Ratio

Prepare Dial-A-Ride Analysis 100% Eliminate these action items from Plan.

Board Approves New Policy 100%

Adjustment

Implement A New Zone And Fare 100%

Policy For Dial-Ride

Review All Fares 0% These action items should continue to be an agency focus.

Use Metric Informaticn and Develop 0%

Board Policy On Fare Changes

STRATEGY: POSITIVE SETTLEMENT FOR UNION NEGOTIATIONS

Pasitive settlement for Union 100% Recommend modifying Strategy to “Continue to Monitor
Negotiations and Improve Union Relationship.”
Quarterly Meeting with Union Proposed Recommend quarterly meetings to discuss any issues that

Representative

may be occurring and to generally maintain and improve
working relationships.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

Portland, Oregon d 7




TCTD Transit Plan Update
June 25, 2015

Project #: 17542.1
Page 4

STRATEGY: CREATE MEASURABLE OUTCOMES FOR SERVICES

RECOMMEND THIS STRATEGY IS EVALUATED AS PART OF THE TDP.

Build Primary Measures 100% New/Revised recommended performance measures will be
an outcome of the TDP effort.

Build Secondary Measures 50% These action items should continue to be an agency focus.

Educate the Board on Measures 50%

Communicate Measures to Public 0%

Communicate Measures to Drivers 25%

Communicate Measures to the City 25%

Council and County Officials

Celebrate 1,000,000 Rider 100% Eliminate action item from Plan.

Celebrate 20 years of Service 0% These action items should continue to be an agency focus.

Compare Measures Against Other 25%

Transit Organization of Similar Size

Conduct a Public Awareness Survey 25%

STRATEGY: INCREASE PRESENCE IN SOUTH COUNTY RECOMMEND THIS STRATEGY IS EVALUATED AS PART OF THE TDP.

Meet with Pacific City Chamber 0% These action items should continue to be an agency focus.

Set up a meeting with Cloverdale 0%

Group

Complete Cloverdale Transit Center 0%

Lincoln City/NCAC 50%

Complete Neskowin Transit Center 100% Eliminate these action items from Plan, if complete.

Salmon River Services 100%

Identify and meet with other Proposed. This will contribute to regional recognition of TCTD and

business, planning and
redevelopment groups in south
county.

allow TCTD to better understand their market needs. For
example, attend the Cape Kiwanda Planning Meeting.

STRATEGY: MEET DAILY GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND

MAINTENANCE NEEDS

Preparations for Board Meetings 0% This action item should continue to be an agency focus.
Write and Implement Title VI Plan 100% Eliminate these action items from Plan, if complete.
Write and Implement Regulation 100%

Governing District Property Ordinance

Write and Implement Northwest 100%

Connector Alliance Ordinance

Develop and Approve Annual Budgets Ongoing This action item should continue to be an agency focus.
Review and Revise Facilities 100% Eliminate action item from Plan, if complete.
Maintenance Plan

Develop a more Comprehensive Proposed A Comprehensive Facility Maintenance Program will help
Facility Maintenance Program that TCTD to prioritize capital needs and regular maintenance.
Iincludes Buildings, Shelters, etc.

Hire and Train an In-House Service Proposed There may be cost savings associated with having an in-

Tech to Perform Bus Repairs and
Preventative Maintenance

house tech on staff.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

Portland, Oregon




TCTD Transit Plan Update
June 25, 2015

Project #: 17542.1
Page 5

STRATEGY: CUSTOMER OR STAKEHOLDER SATISFACTION

Survey yearly to Measure 15%

Implement a Public Awareness Survey 0%
every two years

These action items should continue to be an agency focus.

PROPOSED STRATEGIES AND ACTION ITEMS

Below are proposed Strategies and corresponding action items for TCTD to consider adopting and

prioritizing over the next two to five years.

Strategy: Improve Customer Service Support

Customer service support is very important to attract and retain riders. TCTD should seek opportunities
to become more accessible and open to their constituents through the following action items.

Actions Notes and Recommendations

NEW STRATEGY: IMPROVE CUSTOMER SERVICE SUPPORT

RECOMMEND THIS STRATEGY IS EVALUATED AS PART OF THE
TDP.

Identify areas of need during TDP and make a Fact Sheet in
English and Spanish (i.e. how to ride the bus, lost and found,
common questions, etc.)

Making bus routes easy to access and understand is
fundamental to the success of the services. Providing
easily accessible answers to common questions will
help potential customers use the system.

Provide overview of how to use the bus in all TDP and other
outreach sessions

Providing this information frequently will reach more
and more people who are unaware of what TCTD
provides.

Establish a Customer Service Phone Number and/or Email
Contact

There is an existing Title VI Customer Service number
and email; consider making this available to broader
customer service.

Invest more resources towards Customer Service Support for
staff and bus operators

The face of TCTD are the bus operators and
customer service staff. Providing adequate training
and resources for these staff members will
contribute to the positive image of TCTD.

Strategy: Improve Operations

Efficient and predictable operations will attract and retain riders. Identifying ways to streamline
processes and standardize practices will contribute to efficiencies and predictability. The following
actions are recommended steps to achieve better operations at TCTD.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

Portland, Oregon O\(:)\




TCTD Transit Plan Update Project #: 17542.1

June 25, 2015 Page 6
Actions Notes and Recommendations
NEW STRATEGY: IMPROVE OPERATIONS RECOMMEND THIS STRATEGY IS EVALUATED AS PART OF THE
TDP.
Develop Dispatching/DAR Operations Procedures Communication between and among bus operators

and support staff will allow everyone to quickly and
easily communicate if issues arise while in operation.

Development of a Comprehensive Driver Training Program Audit current program and policies for gaps and
needs to define clear and objective standards and
expectations

Improve On-Time Performance Identify and analyze things that are currently
degrading on-time performance. Understanding the
problem and measuring it will help to establish
expectations for improvement. Identify strategies to
improve on-time performance. This may be
accomplished through the TDP.

Increase Reliability of connections with Lincoln County and Similar to improving on-time performance,

Sunset Transit Systems understand why the reliability of these two
connections is not sufficient and identify strategies
to improve reliability. This may be accomplished
through the TDP or NW Connector work.

Transit service to the Port of Tillamook Bay to serve Investigate the ability of TCTD to service these
businesses, the Justice Center and the Oregon Youth destinations.
Authority

Strategy: Enhance Local Jurisdictional & Other Entity Coordination

Many of the local jurisdictions within TCTD’s service area do not have capital projects identified in the
near term. Often this is not due to the lack of need but because of the lack of funding resources. TCTD
should engage their local partners to identify opportunities where their joint efforts could secure
funding. Below are action items to consider incorporating into TCTD’s business plan.

Actions Notes and Recommendations

NEW STRATEGY: ENHANCE LOCAL JURISDICTIONAL & OTHER ENTITY RECOMMEND THIS STRATEGY IS EVALUATED AS PART OF
COORDINATION THE TDP.

TCTD should partner with the City Mayors and Administrators in This was identified in the 2009 TCTD Master
Tillamook County to promote public transportation and ensure that | Transportation Plan which was not adopted.
the goals and strategies of the cities are being met by the TCTD. However, it is still relevant to current TCTD

Use outreach calls as part of TDP to initiate coordination. TCTD can efforts and should be included as an action.
build this partnership by engaging with the City Mayors and
Administrators in Tillamook County during the year, presenting the
status of the TCTD projects, collecting new ideas for projects, and
identify any service issues.

Engage with Community and Private Groups. Continue to engage This was identified in the 2009 TCTD Master
with community and private groups such as the Columbia Pacific Transportation Plan which was not adopted.
Economic Council to represent public transportation in the However, it is still relevant to current TCTD

economic development planning within Tillamook County that efforts and should be included as an action.

these groups are performing.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. Portland, Oregon D




TCTD Transit Plan Update
June 25, 2015

Project #: 17542.1
Page 7

Participate in Transportation System Plan (TSP) updates with
surrounding jurisdictions, including County, Cities, and
Communities.

Coordination is important to ensure transit
becomes a more prominent consideration in
local plans.

Work with Tillamook County Agencies. Work with Tillamook
County Agencies such as the Future's Council and the Citizen
Planning Advisory Commissions to ensure community involvement
in the TCTD planning process and that public feedback on the TCTD
projects is received.

This was identified in the 2009 TCTD Master
Transportation Plan which was not adopted.
However, it is still relevant to current TCTD

efforts and should be included as an action.

Identify a primary point-person at local agencies to coordinate with
over the long term.

Establishing solid working relationships with
one or two individuals at the local jurisdictions
will help TCTD to be a more visible agency
partner in the community.

Participate in ODOT Statewide Public Transportation Plan (OPTP).

ODOT is currently developing a new OPTP. The
plan will provide a vision for the public
transportation system and describe the role of
public transit in contributing to the
transportation system overall.

Coordinate with ODOT staff to identify federal, state and local
funding opportunities.

Working with ODOT to identify funding options
will ensure TCTD is aware of all funding
opportunities.

NW Connector Coordinating Committee

TCTD service as the Fiscal Agent and has
ongoing joint projects. The Coordinating
Committee meets monthly. Recommend
continued engagement on this committee to
identify opportunities for joint transit
development.

STRATEGIES RECOMMENDED FOR EVALUATION AS PART OF TDP

The TDP will provide TCTD with strategic guidance for the provision of transit services within the
district, for providing highly visible transit stops and facility siting, and for the coordination with the
Northwest Oregon Connector Alliance (NWOCA). The following strategies have been identified for
evaluation as part of this project as they will be instrumental for developing a TDP that responds to
TCTD’s needs. TCTD should continue to pursue and execute all actions identified in this memorandum.

e Partner With Employers — Many of the actions of this strategy are needs assessment based.

This information is critical to the creation of a successful TDP.

® Create Measurable Outcomes for Services — This strategy lends itself to analysis. The TDP will
identify and evaluate primary and secondary service measures.

® Increase Presence in South County — South County is growing. The TDP will need to identify an
approach to responding to the growth areas. This strategy will be evaluated and refined as part

of the TDP.

® Improve Customer Service Support — TCTD Service must have a friendly face to be recognized

and successful. Promoting awareness of the service provided will contribute to a successful

TDP.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

Portland, Oregon



TCTD Transit Plan Update Project #: 17542.1
June 25, 2015 Page 8

° Improve Operations — Understanding existing operational deficiencies and efficiencies of
TCTD's system will be important background information for the TDP. Tracking this strategy will
lay the groundwork to achieving many of the action items.

® Enhance Local Jurisdictional & Other Entity Coordination — It will be important to identify a
coordination framework for TCTD to pursue with identified stakeholders. This will be
instrumental to the success of implementing the TDP.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. Portland, Oregon

07



Regular Meeting 10/24/2019
Tillamook County Transportation District s
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting
Thursday, October 24, 2019 — 6:30PM
Transportation Building

3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR

Meeting Minutes

1. Callto Order: Board Chair Judy Riggs called the meeting to order at 6:30pm
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present
TCTD Board of Directors
Judy Riggs, Board Chair
Gary Hanenkrat, Treasurer
Jim Huffman, Secretary
Jackie Edwards, Director
Melissa Carlson-Swanson, Director (via telephone at 6:35pm)
Linda Adler, Director

TCTD Staff

Doug Pilant, General Manager

Brent Olson, Superintendent

Cathy Bond, NW Rides Supervisor/Board Clerk

Absent
Marty Holm, Vice Chair
Tabatha Welch, Accounting Specialist

Guest
Arla Miller, Regional Transit Coordinator, ODOT Rail & Public Transit
Chris Kell, public

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: 1) Add Tillamook County Mobile Clinic; 2)
Remove executive session.

5. Public & Guest Comments:

Arla Miller was introduced to the Board. Arla serves as the ODOT RPTD Regional
Coordinator who provides the District both technical support and other assistance.

San Sun Owen provided the Board an update on the new CPCCO initiatives and next
steps. Director Huffman asked if the Portland area issues affect the District. San Sun
Owen explained the Portland issues have resulted in the Oregon Health Authority
creating additional regulations that will impact future contracts.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words.

1 i
(U2



6.

Regular Meeting 10/24/2019
Executive Session - Cancelled

REPORTS
¥

Financial Report: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the September 2019 financial reports.
District has now completed 25% of the Fiscal Year. Director Hanenkrat requested
information on why the Board expense are $6,000. GM Doug Pilant explained this
expense was to pay Tillamook County for the May 2019 election. Director Adler noted
there appears to be an error with the Visa transaction and that a correction was
needed for it to balance with the description of the transaction. Director Huffman
asked about what is the RTAP conference. GM Doug Pilant explained this was the
National Rural Transportation Assistance Program conference that brought together
people from all over the Country to Portland for technical training and staff
development opportunities.

Service Measure Performance Report: GM Doug Pilant reviewed performance
measures with the Board.

YTD Ridership overall is up 1.4% over the previous year. The YTD passengers per
hour are +3.6%, the cost per trip was +7.1% while the cost per hour was +10.9% and
the fare box return was -10.4%.

Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the NWOTA meeting
agenda, minutes, finance report with the Board. GM Doug Pilant reported the
Pedestrian and Bicycle Access Study was almost complete and the NWOTA
Marketing Plan started the 2" week of October.

10.Planning & Development:

a. Cape Kiawanda Master Plan — The Plan’'s Parking Management Plan Town
Hall meeting was held in Pacific City last week and went very well. The Parking
Management Plan will be introduced to the County Board of Commissioners
next week. Director Adler asked for clarification on what this plan covers. GM
Doug Pilant explained the Parking Management Plan is one of the elements of
the Cape Kiawanda Master Plan and the purpose of this Plan is how to manage
the parking in Pacific City during the tourist season.

11. Grant Funding

a. STIF/STF Consolidation: GM Doug Pilant explained that ODOT'’s Consolidation
Advisory Committee convened its last meeting and agreed upon 2 proposals.
This recommendation will be reviewed and approved by the Oregon
Transportation Commission and will be forwarded to the Oregon Legislature to
choose in the Spring 2020 Legislative Session. Upon completion there will be
a period of rulemaking on how to administer the revised program that should
be completed before the FY 2021-2023 Biennium.

b. STIF Formula: The STF/STIF consolidation’s final impact on the District is still
unknown. After reviewing the project outcome, it appears it should be minimal
to TCTD. GM Doug Pilant reported the District has received 2 STIF payments
from ODOT and that the amounts appear to be less than the 130% projection.
GM Doug Pilant also reported the District needs to brace for a 13.7%

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quoiation

marks report a speaker’s exact words.

2 Ik



Regular Meeting 10/24/2019
healthcare insurance increase that will be effective January 1, 2020. The 5
Year Financial Sustainability Plan will be updated after these impacts are fully
understood.

12.Facility/Property Management —
a. Low Voltage Project — equipment has been ordered to get the Bus Maintenance
Facility wired.
b. Building Signage Project has been scheduled to be completed.
c. Post Office Bus Stop: Waiting for final comments from Hoquarten Interpretive
Center regarding the final bus shelter selection. Working on a plan for the
concrete pad to be designed to blend in with parking lot brick pavers.

13.NW Ride Brokerage
a. No additional updates after presentation by San Sun Owen at beginning of
meeting.

14.Miscellaneous

a. Union Negotiations — No meetings currently scheduled.

b. Risk assessment has been completed.

c. Best Practices was completed and has been included in the Consent Calendar
for approval.

d. District Credit Card Policy revision has also been included on the Consent
Calendar for approval.

e. Timber County $1.4 Billion Class Action Lawsuit. GM Doug Pilant reported that
the trial started today and will likely last through November. The purpose of this
trial is to determine the value of lost revenues over the past 30 to 40 years,
which is when the State began to restrict logging in the State Forest(s). The
trial's decision will most likely be repealed by the State. The Counties have
identified Oregon Lottery funds to fulfill the State’s obligation to the Counties.
Director Huffman asked if the logging and forestry locals were able to express
their feelings at this hearing. GM Doug Pilant explained that he had previously
testified to the State Forestry Board and that Director Huffman had submitted
an editorial that had been published in the local newspaper. Director Hanenkrat
asked if they take the funds from the Lottery, won't that take from others that
need those funds? GM Doug Pilant said he was at a meeting where he recalled
it being explained the payment would come from Bonds that would be repaid
by the Lottery. GM Doug Pilant said it was his recollection that TCTD could
receive up to about $750,000 to $1 million in a one-time payment. GM Doug
Pilant said he'd like to see these funds be allocated to the District’s capital
reserve fund to earn interest that could be used to provide local matching funds
to purchase buses and other capital projects.

CONSENT CALENDAR

15. Motion to Approve the Minutes of October 17, 2019 Board Workshop Meeting Notes
16. Motion: Acceptance of Financial Report: September 2019

17.Motion to Accept SDIS 2019 Best Practices Survey

18. Motion to Amend the TCTD Business Credit Card policy #3

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.



Regular Meeting 10/24/2019

Motion by Director Huffman to adopt the Consent Calendar. Motion Seconded by

Director Edwards. Board Chair Judy Riggs called for further discussion; followed by none,
she called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Huffman,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Judy Riggs.

Director Carlson-Swanson Absent

ACTION ITEMS

19.Resolution 19-34 In the Matter of Adopting an Intergovernmental Agreement between
TCTD and Tillamook County to Provide a Multimodal Facility in Cloverdale

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board. Legal counsel has reviewed the
IGA and are satisfied with the terms. This IGA terminates the 2011 IGA and moves the
scope of the project from the Noble Wayside location to the Tillamook County Public
Works location. The IGA states the District and County will work together to use the
remaining ODOT funding to identify outcomes that meet each parties needs. Director
Huffman asked if this just gets this started. Director Adler asked if the GM was aware
there are fuel pumps and that there is fencing all around the building. Director Hanenkrat
is concerned about the building, grounds and possible pollution, and is there an actual
need for a facility in Cloverdale and states he is not in favor of this particular property.
Director Huffman asked if there are access to buses. GM Doug Pilant explained this IGA
gets both parties to the table to begin developing the project to see what is possible.
stated this contract just allows us to get involved and discover what the options may be
for the District in regard to this location. ODOT funding will be used for the planning,
engineering and construction of this project. Director Adler asked to clarify if this means
it's only for this location. Director Huffman asked if law enforcement is still interested in
sharing the building. GM reported this IGA moves the project location from the Noble
Wayside to the new location. He explained that County Sheriff Department is onboard
with the project. Director Carlson-Swanson asked if the law enforcement would pay the
expense or would that be on the District expense. GM said he would expect the County
to pay its own expenses and that these are details that will be determined as the project
moves forward.

Motion by Director Edwards to approve Resolution 19-34 In the Matter of Adopting an
Intergovernmental Agreement between TCTD and Tillamook County to Provide a
Multimodal Facility in Cloverdale. Motion Seconded by Director Carlson-Swanson. Board
Chair Judy Riggs called for further discussion; followed by none, she called for the vote.
MOTION PASSED

By Directors Carlson-Swanson, Huffman,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Judy Riggs.

Director Hanenkrat voted nay

Director Holm Absent

20.Resolution 19-35 In the Matter of Adopting the Revised TCTD Staffing Plan

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

4

|0



Regular Meeting 10/24/2019
GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board. Director Adler asked why there is
both an Administrative Assistant, an Office Assistant and if the Finance Supervisor be
responsible for the HR tasks? GM Doug Pilant explained the Administrative Assistant will
report to the general manager while the Office Assistant will report to the Finance
Supervisor. GM explained that ADP has automated many of the HR related functions
such as reducing the Finance personnel time from 2 days to 15 minutes to complete
payroll. Director Adler asked if Tabatha Welch has an accounting background and if she's
onboard with taking on HR responsibilities. GM explained that Tabatha has accounting
background experience and that she’s onboard with taking on HR responsibilities.
Director Huffman stated SDAQO has conference workshops available for HR as well.

Motion by Director Adler to approve Resolution 19-35 In the Matter of Adopting the

Revised TCTD Staffing Plan. Motion Seconded by Director Huffman. Board Chair Judy
Riggs called for further discussion; followed by none, she called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Carlson-Swanson, Huffman,

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Judy Riggs.

Director Holm Absent

DISCUSSION ITEMS

21.Tillamook County Mobile Clinic — GM Doug Pilant the District has been discussing a
plan on the District can provide drivers for the Tillamook County Mobile Clinic. GM
said the District would establish a similar arrangement the District has with the
Tillamook Cheese Factory shuttle service. Director Huffman asked how many hours
they would need. Director Adler asked if the driver will wait with the clinic. GM Doug
Pilant said he was unsure about how many hours they would be required and said this
will provide part time and sub drivers additional work. The Agreement will be included
in the November board meeting for approval. Director Hanenkrat did mention that the
GM should ask about their union.

22. Staff Comments/Concerns
GM Doug Pilant: Thanked the Board for being available for meetings and for taking
the time to participate at the workshop. He shared a Ronny joke about a dog. Shared
with the board that DAR did 104 trips at 94% on-time performance. Brent is working
with ODOT on a drug and alcohol audit.
Superintendent Brent Olson: Shared that the District just completed annual training
and getting buses ready for winter. Brent shared a small joke.
Accounting Specialist Tabatha Welch: Absent.
NWR Supervisor/Board Clerk Cathy Bond: Shared the pilot program that Care
Oregon and NW Rides are working on for the future of the brokerage.

23.Board of Directors Comments/Concerns
Jim Huffman — Shared that Bob Kenny passed on 9/26 and shared a memory of Bob's
legacy with the District and his personal experience on behalf of Bob’s memorial.
Judy Riggs — Thanked Cathy for the meal before the workshop. Thanked Arla for
attending.
Marty Holm — Absent.
Jackie Edwards — None.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

5

vl



Regular Meeting 10/24/2019
Gary Hanenkrat — Wants to see the passenger count for Cloverdale. GM can share
some on/off studies at the next meeting.
Linda Adler — She enjoyed the workshop, found it enlightening and looks forward to

similar events.
Melissa Carlson-Swanson — Thanked everyone for the workshop, the good food and

allowing her to attend by telephone today.

UPCOMING EVENTS
Adjournment: Board Chair Riggs adjourned the meeting at 7:55pm.

These minutes approved this 215t day of November, 2019.

ATTEST:

Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meefing. Only text enclosed in quotation

marks report a speaker’s exact words. %
6 U



